
  
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

Wednesday, 2 February 2011  
2.00 p.m. 
Morecambe Town Hall 
 

Mark Cullinan, 
Chief Executive, 
Town Hall, 
Dalton Square, 
LANCASTER 
 
 



 
 



 

 

  

 

 

Sir/Madam, 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Lancaster City Council to be held in the 
Town Hall, Morecambe on Wednesday, 2 February 2011 commencing at 2.00 p.m. for the 
following purposes: 
 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
2. MINUTES  
 
 To receive as a correct record the Minutes of the Meeting of the City Council held on 

15th December, 2010 (previously circulated).    
  
3. ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
5. ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
 To receive any announcements which may be submitted by the Mayor or Chief 

Executive.    
  
6. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 11  
 
 To receive questions in accordance with the provisions of Council Procedure Rules 11.1 

and 11.3 which require members of the public to give at least 3 days’ notice in writing of 
questions to a Member of Cabinet or Committee Chairman.    

  
7. LEADER'S REPORT (Pages 1 - 2) 
 
 To receive the Cabinet Leader’s report on proceedings since the last meeting of Council.  
  
REPORTS REFERRED FROM CABINET, COMMITTEES OR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY  
 
8. BUDGET & POLICY FRAMEWORK UPDATE 2011/12 (Pages 3 - 25) 
 
 To consider the recommendations of Cabinet from its meeting on 18th January 2011.  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 



MOTIONS ON NOTICE  
 
9. NOTICE OF MOTION - REDUCTION IN NUMBER OF COUNCILLORS (Pages 26 - 28) 
 
 To consider the following motion submitted by Councillors Peter Robinson, Keith 

Sowden and Paul Woodruff : 
 
“This Council considers that 60 Councillors is too many for a small District Council. 
 
Furthermore, given the pressures on the revenue budget, this Council resolves to 
reduce the number of Councillors from the current 60, to a more acceptable 40. 
 
To achieve this objective by 2015, the Council further resolves work with the Boundary 
Commission.” 
 
An Officer Briefing Note is attached.  

  
OTHER BUSINESS  
 
10. MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES SCHEME - REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT 

REMUNERATION PANEL (Pages 29 - 61) 
 
 To consider the report of the Head of Governance.  
  
11. ELECTION OF CABINET MEMBER  
 
 To elect a new Cabinet Member in accordance with Article 7 of the Constitution, 

following the resignation of Councillor Jane Fletcher from the Cabinet. 
 
Since a PR Cabinet is currently in place for 2010/11, Council will invite nominations from 
the Green Group to fill the vacancy.    

  
12. QUESTIONS UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 12.2  
 
 To receive questions in accordance with the provisions of Council Procedure Rules 12.2 

and 12.4 which require a Member to give at least 3 working days notice, in writing, of the 
question to the Chief Executive.    

  
13. MINUTES OF CABINET (Pages 62 - 92) 
 
 To receive the Minutes of Meeting of Cabinet held on 7th December 2010 and 18th 

January 2011.    
  
 

 
…………………………………………………. 

                                                                                                         Chief Executive  
Town Hall, 
Dalton Square, 
LANCASTER, 
LA1 1PJ 

 
Published on Tuesday, 25th January, 2011.   



COUNCIL  
 
 

Leader’s Report 
 

2 February 2011 
 

Report of the Leader of the Council 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To present the Leader’s report to Council.   
 

This report is public.   

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
To receive the report of the Leader of Council.   
 
 
REPORT 

 
1.0 Cabinet 

 
Information on Cabinet matters is provided in the minutes from the Cabinet 
meetings held on 17 December 2010 and 18 January 2011, later in this agenda. 

 
2.0 Decisions required to be taken urgently 

 
There are no decisions to report since the last Leader’s Report on 15 December 
2010. 
 
 

3.0 Leader’s Comments 
 
Much of the Cabinet’s time since the last Council meeting has been spent on the 
budget and on understanding the implications for the district of the settlement 
figures.  Cabinet has been meeting on a weekly basis to discuss priorities, options 
for savings and the future.  A full report on the budget is part of the agenda for this 
meeting and it contains Cabinet’s initial recommendations. 

Agenda Item 7Page 1



Other items of interest. 
 
Visitor Economy. 
Morecambe exhibition in the Platform – I am pleased to be able to report that an 
exhibition of pictures of old Morecambe has been placed on display in the 
Platform.  This idea aims to develop the venue and is a small start in expanding 
the visitor offer in the town. 
 
Report on Fireworks Spectacular - This has been produced by Lancashire 
Blackpool Tourist Board who have analysed the feedback of 142 people, taken on 
the night of the fireworks display.  
  
Using the information and a range of criteria they use to assess economic impact 
they believe this event delivered over £400,000 of tourism value to the area.  The 
VIC at Lancaster reported one of its busiest ever days. 
  
A similar assessment gave a figure of approximately £194k for the Seaside 
Festival.  This underlines the importance of the visitor economy to the district and 
the council’s commitment to this as a corporate priority. 
 
 
Winter Gritting. 
I am pleased to be able to report that the partnership working with the County 
Council produced an improved reaction to the snow before Christmas.  This 
resulted in limited disruption to waste collection – despite the comments of the 
minister on the national picture. 
 
 
Other meetings: 
 
Lancaster Public Sector Leader’s Symposium. 
A second meeting of this group has emphasised the impact that both reductions in 
budgets and changes to the public sector will have on the district.  Though there 
remains a large degree of uncertainty about the future there is a recognition that it 
is important to talk about these changes and to work more closely together.  
 
Arts Council England.  
Officers and myself met with representatives from the Arts Council to discuss the 
importance of their funding in the district. 
 
University Vice Chancellors. 
A meeting was held to discuss future issues relating to this sector. 

 

 
4.0 Other Matters 

 
Cabinet minutes are attached at the end of this agenda.  
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Cabinet agenda and minutes of the meeting on 17 December 2010 and 18 January 
2011. 

Page 2



COUNCIL  
 

Budget and Policy Framework Update 2011/12 
02 February 2011 

 
Report of Cabinet 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
To update Council on the latest position regarding the development of the Council’s budget 
and policy framework for 2011/12 onwards and in that context, to approve the level of 
Council Tax increase for 2011/12 and also the Housing Revenue Account (Council Housing) 
revenue and capital budgets. 

This report is public. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
In respect of the Policy Framework: 
 
1. That the following priorities be used to develop the policy framework for the 

three year period from 2011 to 2014: 
 

• Economic Regeneration – Energy Coast and Visitor Economy 
• Climate Change – prioritising reducing the Council’s energy costs and 

increasing income 
• Statutory responsibilities – fulfilling at least our minimum statutory 

duties - focus on keeping the streets clean and safe 
• Partnership working and Community Leadership – working with 

partners to reduce costs, make efficiencies and create resilience within 
the district; 

 
and that the intention to protect the most vulnerable in our society should 
also be a thread that runs through all the above priorities. 

 
In respect of the General Fund Budget: 
 
2. That the 2010/11 Revised Budget of £23.616M be approved, with the net 

underspending of £1.124M being transferred into Balances. 
 
3. That City Council Tax rates be frozen for 2011/12, subject to Government 

confirming Council Tax Freeze Grant entitlement (equivalent to a 2.5% tax 
increase). 
 

4. That Council considers the supporting draft budget information and 
proposals to date, as set out in this report. 

 
In respect of the Housing Revenue Account (Council Housing): 
 
5. That the Housing Revenue Account budgets and future years’ projections 

as set out at Appendix D be approved. 

Agenda Item 8Page 3



 
6. That the minimum level of HRA Balances be retained at £350K from 01 April 

2011, and that the Statement on Reserves and Balances (as set out at 
Appendix E) be noted. 

 
7. That the Capital Programme as set out at Appendix F be approved. 
 
 
1 INTRODUCTION AND STRATEGIC CONTEXT 
 
1.1 Under the Constitution, Cabinet has responsibility for making proposals to 

Council each year in respect of the Budget and Policy Framework.  Over the 
last few months, Members have developed and approved various proposals 
as well as undertaking public consultation to inform its strategic planning and 
resource allocation.  Approval is now sought to adopt updated corporate 
priorities to develop further the Policy Framework for the next three years.  
This then sets the context within which budget proposals (and any further 
budget changes) should be considered. 

 

1.2 In terms of the Budget, as in previous years this report’s recommendations 
seek formal approval for the level of City Council Tax increase in 2011/12, but 
the detailed General Fund budget proposals are presented only for Council’s 
initial consideration at this stage.  Council may therefore indicate whether it 
supports the proposals, whether it wishes to amend or to substitute any, or 
refer any issues back to Cabinet. 

 
1.3 In due course Council will be requested to approve the full Revenue Budget 

and the full 2011/12 Council Tax at its meeting on 02 March, once Cabinet’s 
budget proposals are completed and details of all other precepts have been 
received.  Subsequent to that, full corporate and financial planning proposals 
for the period 2011-14 will be presented to the April Council meeting. 

 
1.4 To assist Council in its deliberations, the main points associated with the 

budget and policy framework position to date and associated underlying 
assumptions are outlined below; the related resolutions of the January 
Cabinet meeting are included elsewhere on the agenda.  For more detail, 
Members may also find it helpful to refer back to the actual Cabinet reports. 

 
 
2 POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
2.1 Back in June 2010 the City Council published its Corporate Plan for the 

period 2010-13.  At that time, however, it was already recognised that the City 
Council faced a number of enormous challenges, with the very real prospect 
of a reduction in the funding the authority received from Government to help 
deliver services.  Given that context, the Corporate Plan was intended to 
focus on those areas which the Council believed were of the greatest benefit 
to the community.  

 
2.2 The challenge facing the Council has been and continues to be to ensure that 

it is structured in the right way to deliver its agreed priorities, whilst 
responding to the financial difficulties it continues to face.  

 

Page 4



2.3 In November 2010, Cabinet first set out its updated draft priorities, changing 
the emphasis in certain areas, and it is now proposed that these be used to 
develop the policy framework for the next three years: 

• Economic Regeneration – Energy Coast and Visitor Economy 
• Climate Change – prioritising reducing the council’s energy costs and 

increasing income 
• Statutory responsibilities – fulfilling at least our minimum statutory duties - 

focus on keeping the streets clean and safe 
• Partnership working and Community Leadership – working with partners 

to reduce costs, make efficiencies and create resilience within the district 
 

2.4 Furthermore, it is intended that protecting the most vulnerable in our society 
should also be a thread that runs through all of the above. 

 
2.5 In line with the above, Cabinet requested officers to bring forward proposals 

for generating additional income from services, reducing expenditure on 
services which do not meet the updated draft priorities, or for meeting the 
draft priorities more efficiently.  Information on such savings is included later 
in this report, together with outline information on areas of growth. 

 
2.6 As well as considering specific proposals, however, there is also the need for 

Council to understand the Council’s current financial position and its overall 
expectations for future years, and these elements are covered in the sections 
below. 

 
 
3 GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 
 
3.1 2010/11 Revised Budget 
 
3.1.1 Following an in-depth review, the City Council’s draft revised budget for the 

current year stands at £23.616M, representing a net underspending of 
£1.124M or 4.5%.  This includes some fairly large specific variances although 
many of these have arisen as a result of proactive management, as well as 
drawing on the previous year’s outturn.  In particular: 

 
– around £410K underspending is forecast across environmental services, 

with the largest savings arising through efficiency measures on waste 
collection;  

 
– around £215K underspending is expected on concessionary travel, based 

on recent monitoring information; 
 

– senior management restructuring has resulted in in-year savings of 
£191K; 

 
– some areas of spend have been delayed until next year and the draft 

budgets reflect this.  In particular, a total of around £120K in connection 
with the Local Development Framework and Morecambe Area Action Plan 
is proposed to slip into 2011/12. Capital financing costs are also under 
budget by £76K, because of associated capital spend and financing being 
later than planned, and these cost pressures will also slip into next year. 

 

Page 5



– Investment interest is around £103K under budget, primarily because of 
the changes made at outturn regarding Icelandic investments. 

 
3.1.2 Council is now recommended to approve this revised position, with the 

underspending transferring into Balances.  This would result in them reaching 
£2.356M as at 31 March 2011, should the outturn prove in line with the 
revised budget.  Importantly, it would mean that the Council has increased 
flexibility to help manage its financial position and this is reflected in Cabinet’s 
budget proposals for future years. 

 
 
3.2 2011/12 Council Tax and Provisional Local Government Settlement 
 
3.2.1 For 2011/12 Council is recommended to approve a 0% increase in the basic 

City Council Tax, subject to receiving confirmation of Council Tax 
Compensation Grant entitlement.  This would result in a Band D City Council 
Tax of £192.25, as shown at Appendix A.  

 
3.2.2 The Council’s Tax Base for 2011/12 has been set at 43,450 Band D 

properties, which represents a year on year increase of 50 (or 0.1%).   
 
3.2.3 In terms of the provisional Settlement, this was announced on 14 December.  

For the City Council, funding levels are around £1.2M better than recently 
thought, predominantly because the Council will not lose as much grant as 
was expected in relation to the transfer of concessionary travel 
responsibilities.  Nonetheless, the Council is still faced with major year on 
year reductions in its funding levels:   

 
− For 2011/12, the provisional amount of Government support that the 

Council will receive is £13.037M.  After adjusting for concessionary travel, 
this represents a year on year cash reduction of £2.087K or 13.8%. 

 
− For 2012/13, support of £11.620M is expected, representing a further year 

on year reduction of £1.417M or 10.9%. 
 
3.2.4 The Government has introduced various changes in the way in which support 

is distributed across local authorities and it has removed most ring-fenced or 
specific grant funding streams, but it has also made it clear that it considers 
the existing distribution system unworkable in the longer term.  For this 
reason, the Settlement only covers two years and the Government has 
committed to undertake a further review of Local Government Finance in due 
course. 

 
3.2.5 With regard to capping, for 2011/12 “the Government will take capping action 

against councils that propose excessive rises”.  This is an interim measure, 
pending the introduction of powers for residents to veto excessive council tax 
increases through local referendums, as was consulted on last autumn. 

 
3.2.6 There is one change for next year, however, in that capping principles for 

2011/12 are to be set out when the final Settlement is to be announced.  This 
is much earlier than in the past, and should at least allow councils to have a 
clear understanding of capping criteria prior to finally setting their full council 
tax rates. 

 
 

Page 6



3.3 Draft Base Budgets 2011/12 Onwards 
 
3.3.1 The first draft of the 2011/12 budget has also now been completed and 

currently it stands at £21.215M, as shown in Appendices A and B.  This 
takes account of various decisions made at the January Cabinet meeting, 
subject to call-in, including proposed increases for fees and charges relating 
to parking and environmental health services.  It also takes account of the 
decision to continue managing the three Community Pools. 

 
3.3.2 With regard to the Pools, in support of the 2010/11 budget and policy 

framework, back in February 2010 Cabinet took the decision to give notice to 
Lancashire County Council of the intention to withdraw from managing the 
Community Pools on the County’s behalf.  Subsequent to that, the City and 
County Councils agreed to work together to explore options with a view to 
finding a way to ensure that the Community Pools could remain open, for the 
benefit of local residents under the management of the City Council. 

 
3.3.3 In line with this, the two Councils have been working together to develop local 

shared services and various other joint initiatives. The vacation of Palatine 
Hall and its subsequent occupation by the County, as well as the delivery of 
County services through the City Council’s Customer Service Centres 
coupled with other related efficiency savings already built into the draft 
budget, have meant that sufficient funding has been identified to enable the 
Community Pools to remain under the management of the City Council.  
Accordingly, at its meeting in January Cabinet resolved that its earlier 
decision to withdraw from managing the Community Pools be rescinded.   

 
3.3.4 If no further changes were made, the draft budget as it stands, based on a 

Council Tax freeze for next year, would allow a contribution to Balances of 
£176K,  though this is before consideration of any further savings or growth. 

 
3.4 For subsequent years, however, the draft budget projections present far 

greater challenges.  Initial savings requirements are shown below; again 
these are before consideration of savings or growth but they do provide for a 
2% year on year increase in Council Tax from 2012/13, this being the 
maximum target supported by Council back in December. 

 
 

Revenue Budget Projections (before any 
savings & growth proposals) 

 

Net 
Budget 

Annual 
Increase / 
(Reduction) 

Assumed 
Contrib. from 
Balances 

Savings Requirement 
(again, before considering 

savings and growth 
proposals)  

 £000 % £000 £000 % of Budget 

2012/13 21,199 (0.07) -- 1,049 4.9 

2013/14 21,930 3.4 -- 1,832 8.4 

 
 
3.4.1 The importance of both considering risk and taking a longer term view when 

considering budget matters cannot be over-emphasised.  Looked at in 
isolation 2011/12 may look ‘easy’, but as with many other councils, from 
2012/13 financial prospects still look hugely challenging.  Admittedly this has 
generally been the case for the Council, but then subsequently forecasts have 

Page 7



improved for a variety of reasons, both within and outside of the Council’s 
control.   It is considered, however, that a number of areas that have 
previously generated significant savings or budget uncertainty will no longer 
have the same influence or scope to change in future.  These include 
Environmental Services and Revenues and Benefits, as well as 
Concessionary Travel. 

 
3.4.2 It is with the future in mind, therefore, that Cabinet has set out its Council Tax 

and initial budget proposals.  Council is advised to use 2011/12 as time in 
which to build financial and other capacity in order to meet future challenges.   

 
3.5 Savings, Growth, and Invest to Save Proposals 
 
3.5.1 The budget proposals both to fit with the recommended freeze in Council Tax 

and to make progress against proposed priorities and future years’ savings 
targets are also set out at Appendix B for Council’s initial consideration.  It 
can be seen from this that some proposals are still uncertain and more work 
is required.  The following issues and points are also highlighted: 

 
i. The majority of proposed savings are based on achieving efficiencies 

rather than reducing service levels. 
 

ii. There are very few savings currently proposed that would reduce service 
standards.  This has been possible because of the improved short-term 
financial prospects, but there will be increasing pressure to reduce other 
service areas in future, as the scope for achieving efficiency savings or 
generating extra income diminishes. 

 
iii. Regarding growth, one new proposal was supported by Cabinet at its 

January meeting, this being to consider gap funding  support if necessary 
for continuing some Police Community Support Officer (PCSO) provision.  
This service may have its funding reduced in future, primarily as a result 
of the withdrawal of Area Based Grant funding by Government.  At this 
stage, the proposed growth cannot be accurately quantified but as an 
indication, in order to maintain existing staffing levels, the growth needed 
could be up to £110K per year. 

 
iv. Based on the proposals quantified so far, an additional contribution to 

Balances of £547K would be possible, resulting in total Balances 
estimated at £2.9M by the end of next year, i.e. £1.9M above the current 
minimum.  The s151 Officer’s formal advice on the level of Balances will 
be reported initially to Cabinet in February.  Nonetheless, in line with 
earlier comments it is expected that the Council will have significant 
surplus balances and one of Cabinet’s key budget proposals is that in 
principle, any such surpluses be used to support invest to save schemes. 
Should Council be supportive of this proposal, further details would be 
incorporated into the Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

 
3.5.2 Council’s initial views are now sought on the savings and growth proposals.  

In total, at present they amount to a net saving of just over £370K per year.  
To reiterate Cabinet’s position, at this stage it supports consideration of all the 
proposals listed but they may be subject to further changes. 

 
 

 

Page 8



4 GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 
4.1 As part of the Spending Review, Government made it very clear that they 

expected public sector capital investment to reduce over the next few years.  
Whilst they are planning to introduce various measures that may offer some 
alternative funding sources for priority areas, these will not fully offset the 
spending reductions overall. 

 
4.2 It is in this context that a limited review of the capital programme and 

investment priorities has been undertaken.   Taking account of information 
received to date, the latest capital position is summarised below and a more 
detailed statement is included at Appendix C.  At present a £290K shortfall is 
shown for the next 5 years.  

 
General Fund Programme 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16  5 Year 

Total 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 

         
Total Provisional Programme  6,183 6,177 3,804 1,709 1,444 678  13,812 
         
Estimated Financing 6,183 6,177 3,804 1,709 1,444 388  13,522 
  
Cumulative Shortfall 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
-- 

 
290 

  
290 

 
 

4.3 An update on the main issues arising is outlined below for Council’s 
information and consideration: 

 
- The Head of Property Services has reviewed potential property disposals 

for future years, in line with the Medium Term Property Strategy and 
Cabinet’s draft priorities.  The draft programme is based on the Council 
generating £9M of capital receipts in next year, predominantly from the 
sale of land at South Lancaster and Heysham Mossgate.  If these are not 
completed then this will add further pressure onto the revenue budget.  As 
an indication, £1M of additional borrowing need could result in extra 
revenue costs of £70K per year, but exact figures would depend on 
various factors. 

 
- For regeneration, certain growth proposals have already been considered 

by Cabinet and the draft programme includes these.   
 

- Regarding climate change and energy efficiency, specific growth / invest 
to save proposals are currently being developed for consideration at 
February Cabinet so at this stage, only the original outline budgets are 
included.   

 
- In terms of housing, Government will continue to provide capital grant 

funding towards Disabled Facilities Grants, but it is not yet known how 
much the Council will receive.  For now, the programme makes a broad 
assumption on the estimated level of funding receivable over the next five 
years but this will need updating in due course. 

 
- The other housing related matter relates to Chatsworth Gardens, but at 

the time of the Cabinet meeting a decision from the funder (Homes and 

Page 9



Communities Agency) had not been received.  Currently the draft Capital 
Programme has no budget provision for this scheme. 

 
- Municipal Buildings Works estimates need updating to reflect recent 

developments, and also, various Information Technology (IT) provisions 
may change in due course, in light of any further developments regarding 
Lancashire County Council’s Strategic Partnership, or use of open source 
software in line with the recent Council motion. 

 
- There are still some other aspects of the programme to consider, 

including potential use of the Renewals and Capital Support Reserves 
where appropriate, and concluding the Luneside East project. 

 
4.4 Whilst last year’s outturn and the above points change the profiling of the 

Council’s underlying need to borrow (known as Capital Financing 
Requirement: CFR) to 2015/16, there are no other changes built in at this 
stage. 

 
 
5 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
 
5.1 In respect of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA), which covers only the 

Council Housing Service, the recommendations complete the budget setting 
process for 2011/12.  In considering them Council is asked to note the 
following: 

 
i. The revised budget position for 2010/11 is summarised at Appendix D.  

Whilst operationally some net savings have been achieved, surplus 
balances brought forward from last year have now been applied to other 
areas, particularly the financing of capital slippage, resulting in an overall 
increase in net expenditure of £173K when compared with the original 
budget.  

 
ii. Next year’s proposed revenue budget (also summarised at Appendix D) 

takes account of Cabinet’s decision to set average housing rents at 
£64.20 per week, which represents an increase of 6.9%.  Whilst this is 
higher than in recent years, it fits with the various caps and limits set by 
Government, taking account of the long-term policy objective to achieve 
rent convergence, i.e. for local authority and other social housing provider 
rent levels to be broadly the same.  It also supports the continuing need 
for the Council to maintain and invest in its housing stock and therefore 
represents the best position financially, to help sustain a good quality 
housing service. 

 
iii. For future years, Government is planning to withdraw the existing housing 

subsidy system but this will require legislative changes, to be taken 
forward under the Localism Bill.  Such changes will bring about major 
changes to HRA budgets but for now, and until any better information is 
available, forecasts for 2012/13 onwards simply assume that the existing 
arrangements will continue.  Accordingly, they assume rent increases of a 
little under 5% per year.  

 
iv. A formal review of the HRA’s Balances, Reserves and Provisions has 

been undertaken, the outcome of which is reflected in Appendix E.  It is 
recommended that the minimum level of Balances be retained at £350K.  

Page 10



After taking account of the proposed revised budget for the current year, 
HRA balances are expected to be in line with this recommendation. 

 
v. With regard to capital, the proposed programme is set out at Appendix F 

and it has been driven primarily by the existing 30-year Business Plan for 
the service.  No major changes have been required in order to balance 
the capital position for the 5-year period.  The proposed programme will 
enable the housing stock to continue to meet both the Decent Homes 
Standard and the Council’s own higher Standard, using information from 
the most recent stock condition surveys.  Again though, future capital 
investment plans will need to be reviewed once the Government’s housing 
finance reforms are known. 

 
vi. As in previous years it is not proposed to undertake any prudential 

borrowing to support capital investment in Council Housing, and therefore 
there is no direct impact on the Council’s Prudential Indicators. 

 
 
6 DETAILS OF CONSULTATION 
 
6.1 A range of consultation exercises has been undertaken to date, in 

accordance with the community engagement plans approved by Cabinet back 
in July of last year.  Cabinet has considered the information arising in 
developing its budget and policy framework proposals. 

 
6.2 In particular, Cabinet’s budget proposals for Council Housing were presented 

to the District Wide Tenants’ Forum on 25 January.  Feedback from that 
meeting was positive;  a summary is attached at Appendix G for Council’s 
information. 

 
6.3 Finally it should be noted as usual the Leader will outline the Cabinet’s budget 

and policy framework proposals at an open meeting of the Budget and 
Performance Panel on 25 January, to which all Members of the Council, LSP 
Thematic Group chairmen, and business stakeholder representatives have 
been invited.  Feedback from this meeting was not available at the time this 
agenda was published and so it will be circulated under separate cover as 
soon as practicable. 

 
7 OPTIONS AND OPTIONS ANALYSIS (INCLUDING RISK ASSESSMENT) 
 
7.1 For General Fund, options are dependent very much on Members’ views on 

spending priorities balanced against Council Tax levels and what is 
affordable.  Outline options are highlighted below: 

 
– Regarding Council Tax, Council may consider approving a different 

percentage increase or decrease for next year.  In essence, however, 
agreeing an increase anywhere between 0 and 2.5% would give no 
financial benefit to the Council, at least for the next four years, but it would 
mean taxpayers being charged more.  Approving an increase above 2.5% 
is considered likely to risk capping action being taken by the Government, 
and is therefore inadvisable. Similarly a reduction in tax rate is advised 
against, because of the impact on future years and the already substantial 
savings needed. 

 

Page 11



− With regard to considering alternative corporate priorities or developing 
savings and growth options to produce a budget in line with preferred 
Council Tax levels, emphasis should be on affordability and managing 
expectations as well as taking account of public consultation, given that 
substantial reductions in revenue spending are needed in future. 

 
7.2 With regard to the HRA the position is different, in that this report includes 

Cabinet’s final budget proposals for both revenue and the capital programme. 
 
 
8 CONCLUSION  
 
8.1 For General Fund, the provisional Settlement is much better than expected, 

albeit that the Council will still face significant year on year funding reductions.  
This highlights how much expectations have shifted in recent months.  The 
Council has been successful in achieving major budget reductions and 
therefore in the short-term, the Council’s revenue prospects may be easily 
managed and a Council Tax freeze for next year is readily achievable, but the 
medium to longer term must not be overlooked;  the challenge of balancing 
the Council’s budget beyond 2011/12 to deliver its corporate priorities still 
remains.  With regard to capital, the key risks still centre on completing land 
sales and determining the way forward for stalled regeneration schemes. 

 
8.2 For the Housing Revenue Account, in order to fit with Government constraints 

and policy objectives and to support the financial sustainability of council 
housing service provision, the budget proposals take account of relatively 
high year on year increases in housing rents.  Recognising this position, the 
budget proposals are supported by the Housing Tenants’ Forum.  For the 
future, however, the detail behind Government reforms is expected to have a 
major bearing on council housing finance and future planning. 

 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
No additional impact arising – any specific issues would be (or have been) considered as 
part of the relevant aspect of the policy framework or individual budget proposals, etc. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
Legal Services have been consulted and have no further comments. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
As referred to in the report. 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources / Information Services / Property / Open Spaces: 

Various budget proposals have resource implications and these have been taken account of 
in Cabinet’s consideration of budget options.  Their implementation would be in accordance 
with council policies and procedures, as appropriate. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Local Government Act 2003 placed explicit requirements on the s151 Officer to report 
on the robustness of the estimates included in the budget and on the adequacy of the 
Council’s reserves.  Previous Cabinet reports have already included some relevant details of 
this advice, together with the risks and assumptions underpinning the budget process so far.  

Page 12



A summary of the s151 Officer’s advice to date is provided below for information, but it some 
of this is provisional until such time as Cabinet’s full budget proposals for General Fund are 
known.   

HRA Reserves and Provisions 

• Specific earmarked reserves and provisions are satisfactory at the levels currently 
proposed. 

• Unallocated balances of £350K for the Housing Revenue Account are reasonable levels 
to safeguard the Council’s overall financial position. 

• With regard to Housing Revenue Account balances, £350K represents approximately 
2.4% of gross income.  With regard to any surplus balances, the same general principles 
apply (as they have done in recent years), in that they would be used to support the 30-
year Business Plan, taking account of housing rent increases 

Robustness of Estimates  

A variety of exercises have been undertaken to establish a robust budget for the forthcoming 
year.  These include: 

- Producing a continuation budget, taking account of service commitments, pay and 
price increases and expected demand / activity levels as appropriate, and the 
consideration of key assumptions and risks. 

- Reviewing the Council’s priorities and its associated service activities and spending / 
income generation plans.  This is being supported and challenged through public 
consultation. 

- Reviewing the Council’s medium term financial strategy and planning, following its 
adoption last March, together with other corporate financial monitoring information 
produced during the year. 

- Undertaking an initial review of the Council’s affordable borrowing levels to support 
capital investment, in line with the Prudential Code, but taking account of 
assumptions regarding Icelandic investments. 

These measures ensure that as far as is practical at this stage, the estimates and 
assumptions underpinning the base budget are robust, but clearly further work is required to 
present a final General Fund budget, as well as a balanced General Fund Capital 
Programme.  

Affordability of Spending Plans 

In addition, the s151 Officer is responsible for ensuring that when setting and revising 
Prudential Indicators, including borrowing limits, all matters to be taken into account are 
reported to Council for consideration.  This will be covered in the report to Budget Council, at 
which time Council will consider full proposals regarding the capital programme and 
financing for the five year period to 2015/16. There is no borrowing to be undertaken in 
respect of the Council Housing Capital programme included in this report. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Prudential Code 

Local Government Finance Settlement 

Contact Officer: Nadine Muschamp 
Telephone:  01524 582117 
E-mail: nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 13



APPENDIX A

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
Budget Estimate Projection Projection

£000 £000 £000 £000

   Original Revenue Budget Projection (Per Budget Council 03 March 2010) 24,740 25,323 25,678 0

Draft Budget Projection 23,616 21,357 21,335 22,060

Base Budget Changes arising from Cabinet 66 74 79
Changes Subject to Council 02 February +1,124 -209 -209 -209

Current Net Revenue Budget A 24,740 21,215 21,199 21,930

Budget Proposals to be considered further

Income Generation +0 +0 +0
Savings not linked to draft priorities -46 -46 -46
Efficiencies linked to draft priorities -612 -591 -590
Growth proposals +286 +258 +262

Contribution to Balances (to help support Invest to Save initiatives) +547 +0 +0

Resulting Net Revenue Budget B 24,740 21,390 20,821 21,555

   Provisional Government Support 16,377 13,037 11,620 11,387

   Collection Fund Deficit / (-) Surplus -19 +0 +0 +0

   Amount met by Council Tax 8,344 8,353 9,201 10,168
0 0 0 0

Latest Tax Base Estimates 43,400 43,450 43,500 43,550

COUNCIL TAX IMPLICATIONS :
A : Excluding Budget Options

Band D Basic Council Tax (across district) £192.25 £188.20 £220.22 £242.08
Percentage Increase Year on Year 3.75% -2.1% 17.0% 9.9%

B : Including Budget Options
Band D Basic Council Tax (across district) £192.25 £192.25 £211.52 £233.47
Percentage Increase Year on Year 3.75% 0.00% 10.02% 10.38%

Target Year on Year Basic Council Tax Increase   In % terms 0.0% 2.0% 2.0%
  In £ terms (Band D) £0.00 £3.85 £3.92

Target Basic City Council Tax Rate across the District £192.25 £196.10 £200.02

Budget assumptions to achieve these targets: £'000 £'000 £'000

Current Revenue Budget Projection ('B' from above table, including budget proposals) 21,390 20,821 21,555
Target Revenue Budget Requirement 21,390 20,150 20,098

REMAINING SAVINGS REQUIREMENT 0 671 1,457

Note -  A 1% reduction in Council Tax equates to £84K.

Future Years' Budgets, Provisional Settlements and associated Council Tax Rates

For consideration by Council 02 February 2011

\\ofsfile02\finance.$\Public\2011-2012\Council Tax and Collection Fund\Council Tax Projections\Ctax Projection Council 02Feb11.xls25/01/2011, 12:55

Page 14



APPENDIX B

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Original Revenue Budget Projection (Per Budget Council 03 March 2010) 24,740.0 25,323.0 25,678.0 0.0

BUDGET PROJECTIONS 23,615.6 21,357.2 21,334.5 22,059.7

Changes arising from Cabinet 18 January (subject to call-in):

+182.7 +189.4 +195.6

Environmental Health fees and charges -19.2 -16.5 -15.8

Car parking fees and charges -97.4 -99.2 -101.0
Changes Subject to Council 02 February:

2010/11 Estimated Surplus to be transferred to Balances 1,124.4

-208.8 -208.8 -208.8

LATEST BASE BUDGET PROJECTIONS 24,740.0 21,214.5 21,199.4 21,929.7

TARGET REVENUE BUDGET (for a 0% increase in Council Tax for 2011/12, then 2% thereafter) 21,390.0 20,150.0 20,098.0

NET SURPLUS RESOURCES (-) / SAVINGS REQUIREMENT -175.5 1,049.4 1,831.7

Budget Proposals to be considered further (see schedules on next page) :

Income generation +0.0 +0.0 +0.0

Savings in service areas not linked to draft priorities -45.8 -46.0 -46.2

Efficiencies linked to draft priorities -612.1 -591.0 -590.0

Growth proposals +286.2 +258.2 +261.6

Invest to Save Scheme proposals +0.0 +0.0 +0.0
Net Total -371.7 -378.8 -374.6

Contribution to Balances (to help support Invest to Save initiatives) 547.2 0.0 0.0

REMAINING SAVINGS REQUIREMENT 0.0 670.6 1,457.1

Details of Budget Options on next page

Additional Government funding for setting a 0% Council Tax increase

2011/12 Revenue Budget : Savings & Growth Options
For Consideration by Council 02 February 2011

Community Pools 

G:\Public\2011-2012\Budget & Planning Process\Summary Budget Position\SUMMARY BUDGET POSITION 201112.xls 25/01/2011, 12:10

Page 15



APPENDIX B

Budget Proposals to be considered

INCOME GENERATION PROPOSALS SERVICE +0.0 +0.0 +0.0

Wellbeing fees and charges Community Engagement ?? ?? ??

Charging for replacement waste collection bins / boxes Environmental Services ?? ?? ??

SAVINGS PROPOSALS FOR SERVICES NOT LINKED TO DRAFT 
PRIORITIES SERVICE -45.8 -46.0 -46.2

Children and Young People - budget reduction Community Engagement ?? ?? ??

Access for the Disabled - removal of non-statutory element Regeneration & Policy -33.8 -33.8 -33.8

Environmental Services Admin / Support staff - review of staffing Environmental Services ?? ?? ??

Bus shelter cleaning - take back in-house and use existing capacity Environmental Services -12.0 -12.2 -12.4

Vehicles - review replacement programme Environmental Services ?? ?? ??

EFFICIENCY PROPOSALS LINKED TO DRAFT PRIORITIES SERVICE -612.1 -591.0 -590.0

Wellbeing Function - restructure Community Engagement -121.7 -117.4 -120.7

Partnerships Function - restructure Community Engagement -26.0 -26.3 -26.6

Children's Trust - shared support with County Council Community Engagement -20.0 -20.0 -20.0

Museum Partnership - withdraw from shared service Community Engagement 0 ?? ??

Community Safety - develop shared service arrangement with Wyre BC Community Engagement ?? ?? ??

Economic Development - reduction in business support Regeneration & Policy -48.0 -48.0 -48.0

Financial Services - restructure Financial Services -77.3 -78.0 -78.8

Financial Services - Revenues & Benefits Shared Service Financial Services -43.0 -46.0 -46.0

Health & Housing - restructure Health & Housing -97.3 -100.4 -102.1

Homeless Prevention - saving due to additional Government grant allocation Health & Housing -25.0 +0.0 +0.0

CCTV - review of operations Property Services ?? ?? ??

Facilities Management & Property Services - restructure Property Services ?? ?? ??

Waste Collection - reduction in staffing but would require changes in fleet Environmental Services -81.0 -64.5 -55.9

Waste Collection - enforcement / performance review Environmental Services -52.8 -70.0 -71.1

Waste Collection - consider bidding for other contracts Environmental Services ?? ?? ??

Building Cleaning - option of working with County Council Environmental Services ?? ?? ??

Grounds Maintenance - community payback work during summer Environmental Services -20.0 -20.4 -20.8

Vehicle Maintenance - review shared service opportunities Environmental Services ?? ?? ??

Bulky Matters - consider options to expand / review charges Environmental Services ?? ?? ??

Environmental Enforcement - review of enforcement levels Environmental Services ?? ?? ??

GROWTH PROPOSALS SERVICE +286.2 +258.2 +261.6

Partnership Team - removal of external grant funding Community Engagement +172.8 +172.0 +175.4

Regeneration Team - removal of external grant funding Regeneration & Policy +84.9 +86.2 +86.2

Temporary Planning Assistant - 12 months contract Regeneration & Policy +28.5 +0.0 +0.0

Private Sector Housing Standards - to meet statutory requirements Health & Housing ?? ?? ??

Establishment of Lord Mayoralty - subject to submitting successful bid Governance +0.0 ?? ??

Funding contribution for PCSOs Community Engagement ?? ?? ??

INVEST TO SAVE SCHEMES SERVICE +0.0 +0.0 +0.0
To be considered further at February Cabinet ?? ?? ??

NOTE : For items marked "Operational" or "Personnel (Delegated)", no separate Member approval is required.

Not yet determined

Not yet determined

Not yet determined

Council 02 Feb

Personnel 01 Feb

Operational

Cabinet 05 Oct

Cabinet 05 Oct

NOTES

Subject to Personnel Cttee

Personnel 01 Feb

Operational/Delegated

Not yet determined

Operational

Not yet determined

Operational

Personnel (Delegated)

Not yet determined

Operational

Not yet determined

Personnel 01 Feb

NOTES

Report required

Subject to Personnel Cttee

Personnel (Delegated)

Not yet determined

Not yet determined

Operational

NOTES

Operational

NOTES

Cabinet 15 Feb

Not yet determined

NOTES

Not yet determined

Subject to Approval

Council Business 14 Jan

Cabinet 18 Jan

Not yet determined

G:\Public\2011-2012\Budget & Planning Process\Summary Budget Position\SUMMARY BUDGET POSITION 201112.xls 25/01/2011, 12:10

Page 16



!""#$%&'()

*+,-./+(0(*/1+2+
3454055 3455053 3453056 3456057 3457058 3458059

8(:+;,(
<=>;?

@ @ @ @ @ @ @

#A-.,=A2+A>;?(B+,-./+B
District Playground Improvements 96,000 60,000 94C444
Greaves park resurfacing 16,000 4
Ryelands Park improvements 24,000 4
Cedar Park Playground Improvements 13,000 4
Hala Park Playground Improvements (subject to external funding) 9,000 4
Toilet Works 125,000 90,000 90,000 60,000 90,000 664C444
Allotment Improvements (subject to expenditure plan) 16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000 97C444

)=22DA.>:(#AE;E+2+A>
Energy Efficiency Schemes 22,000 20,000 20,000 74C444
The Platform Improvements (subject to business case) 0 108,000 54FC444
Happy Mount Park Natural Adventure 31,000 4
Williamson Park Developments 0 75,000 G8C444
Salt Ayre Athletics Track Security Fencing 20,000 4
Salt Ayre Reception Refurbishment 40,000 4
Salt Ayre Synthetic pitch 25,000 4
Salt Ayre Reflexions changing rooms 30,000 4
Salt Ayre Replacement of pool filters 18,000 4

H+;?>1(;AI(H=DB.AE
YMCA Places of Change 783,000 4
Impact Housing association 50,000 4
RHP and Government funding (subject to allocations) 0 653,000 653,000 653,000 653,000 653,000 6C398C444
Disabled Facilities Grants 753,000 4

&AJ=,2;>.=A(*+,-./+B
I.T. Infrastructure 26,000 10,000 35,000 78C444
I.T. Application Systems Renewal 267,000 143,000 230,000 6G6C444

I.T. Desktop Equipment 25,000 110,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 634C444
Electronic Room Hire Booking System 13,000 4

K+E+A+,;>.=A(L("=?./:
Cycling England 409,000 4
Toucan Crossing-King Street 70,000 4
Artle Beck Improvements (Flood Defences) 91,000 241,000 375C444
Christmas Lights Renewals 31,000 4
Strategic Monitoring (River & Sea Defences, subject to EA funding) 96,000 113,000 113,000 113,000 113,000 783C444
Denny Beck Bridge Improvements 139,000 4
Mill Head Warton (Flood Defences) 120,000 8,000 FC444
Wave Reflection Wall Refurbishment (subject to EA funding) 53,000 507,000 507,000 507,000 477,000 5CMMFC444
Slynedale Culvert project 26,000 4
The Dome (Demolition) 140,000 4
Amenity improvements 10,000 34,000 67C444
Luneside East - Land Acquisition & Associated Fees 150,000 235,000 368C444
Luneside East Compensation Claims 230,000 68,000 35,000 546C444
Poulton Public Realm-Edward St, Union St, Church Walk 25,000 4
Bold Street Renovation Scheme 908,000 4
Clarendon/West End Rd Rear Yard Wall 0 4
Marlborough Road Redevelopment 200,000 4
Lancaster Square Routes 0 220,000 334C444
Ffrances passage (Square routes S106) 0 73,000 G6C444
Morecambe THI2: A View for Eric 0 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 538C444
Poulton Pedestrian Route 0 160,000 594C444
Public Realm Works 13,000 4
Storey Institute Centre for Industries 45,000 4
Port of Heysham Sites 1&4 (Payment of Clawback) 0 328,000 63FC444

",=N+,>:(*+,-./+B
Car Park Improvement Programme 0 50,000 84C444

Corporate and Municipal Building Works 1,025,000 2,830,000 2,275,000 8C548C444

O#$#K!P(QR$%()!"&<!P("KSOK!TT# 9C5F6C444 9C5GGC444 6CF47C444 5CG4MC444 5C777C444 9GFC444 56CF53C444

Q.A;A/.AE(U
Grants and Contributions 3,698,000 1,722,000 1,255,000 1,255,000 1,225,000 653,000 9C554C444
Usable Capital Receipts (see table below) 612,000 8,989,000 314,000 65,000 64,000 20,000 MC783C444
Revenue Financing 379,000 214,000 95,000 45,000 0 0 687C444
*DVW>=>;? 4,689,000 10,925,000 1,664,000 1,365,000 1,289,000 673,000 58CM59C444

&A/,+;B+(0(K+ID/>.=A(XWY(.A()QK(XRAI+,?:.AE()1;AE+(.A(Z=,,=[.AE($++IY 1,494,000 -4,748,000 2,140,000 344,000 155,000 -285,000 W3C6M7C444

<S<!P(Q&$!$)&$O 9C5F6C444 9C5GGC444 6CF47C444 5CG4MC444 5C777C444 6FFC444 56C833C444

*1=,>J;??(0(*D,N?DB(XWY 4 4 4 4 4 3M4C444 3M4C444
)D2D?;>.-+(*1=,>J;??(0(*D,N?DB(XWY 4 4 4 4 4 3M4C444 3M4C444

);N.>;?(K+/+.N>B(*D22;,:( 3454055 3455053 3453056 3456057 3457058 3457058 <=>;?
£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Balance Brought Forwards: 150,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 0 0 586C444
Receipts Due In Year: 463,000 8,989,000 314,000 64,000 64,000 20,000 MCM57C444
In Year Capital Programme Financing: -612,000 -8,989,000 -314,000 -65,000 -64,000 -20,000 W54C497C444
Z;?;A/+();,,.+I(Q=,[;,IB(U 5C444 5C444 5C444 4 4 4 6C444

Q=,(/=AB.I+,;>.=A(V:()=DA/.?(43(Q+V,D;,:(3455
O+A+,;?(QDAI(%,;J>(O,=BB();N.>;?(",=E,;22+

G:\Public\2010-2011\Capital Programme\Working Copies of Capital Programme\GF Capital Programme 2010-11 working copy.xls / Council Feb 2nd 21/01/2011 at 14:30

Page 17



!""#$%&'(%

)**+,-* )*-*,-- )*-*,-- )*--,-) )*-),-. )*-.,-/
0122134 516782 98:;<86 516782 =>38?@<2 =>38?@<2

A A A A A A

&$B0C#

Rental Income - Council Housing (Gross)
-11,416,100 -11,717,900 -11,720,600 -12,527,200 -13,113,400 -13,718,900

Rental Income - Other (Gross)
-183,900 -188,600 -192,700 -193,100 -196,400 -200,300

Charges for Services & Facilities
-1,874,900 -1,841,900 -1,821,800 -1,835,000 -1,871,300 -1,911,100

Grant Income
-7,700 -7,700 -7,700 -7,700 -7,700 -7,700

Contributions from General Fund
-167,900 -165,200 -165,200 -165,200 -165,200 -165,200

D>2@E(&4?>F8 G-.HIJ*HJ** G-.H+)-H.** G-.H+*KH*** G-/HL)KH)** G-JH.J/H*** G-IH**.H)**

#'"#$%&DM9#

Repairs & Maintenance
4,236,600 4,028,500 3,943,100 4,071,900 4,001,900 4,282,800

Supervision & Management
3,012,600 3,357,300 3,393,600 3,285,300 3,341,500 3,413,300

Rents, Rates, Taxes & Other Charges
92,600 99,400 94,000 103,200 112,100 121,300

Negative Housing Revenue Account Subsidy 
Payable

946,900 1,574,500 1,748,600 2,348,000 2,680,200 3,069,800

Increase in Provision for Bad and Doubtful 
Debts

209,600 155,800 180,000 182,000 183,100 184,300

Depreciation & Impairment of Fixed Assets
14,268,900 2,369,000 2,370,300 2,346,800 2,393,700 2,441,100

Debt Management Costs
1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100

D>2@E(#NO846;2138 ))HLIKH.** --HJKJHI** --HL.*HL** -)H..KH.** -)HL-.HI** -.HJ-.HL**

$#D(B0PD(0=(Q9!(P#9R&B#P +H--LHK** G)H..JHL** G)H-LLH.** G)H.K+H+** G)HI/*H/** G)H/K+HJ**
(Gain) or Loss on Sale of HRA Fixed Assets

-65,600 0 0 0 0 0

Interest Payable & Similar Charges
798,800 808,000 717,700 751,400 801,900 831,000

Amortisation of Premiums & Discounts 0 158,500 158,500 159,000 161,000 161,700
Interest & Investment Income

-33,100 -55,000 -22,900 -32,500 -53,700 -74,200

Pensions Interest Costs & Expected Return on 
Pensions Assets

481,900 68,000 68,000 68,000 68,000 68,000

SPM9"TMPU(09(%#=&B&D(=09(DQ#(V#!9( -*H)++HK** G-H.JIH)** G-H)JIH*** G-H///H*** G-HII.H)** G-HJ*.H***

Adjustments to reverse out Notional Charges 
included above 

-11,740,600 -65,400 -63,200 -63,200 -63,200 -63,200

Net charges made for retirement benefits -295,300 -68,000 -68,000 -68,000 -68,000 -68,000

Transfer to/(from) Major Repairs Reserve 143,900 0 -411,100 73,100 355,400 330,600

Transfer to/(from) Earmarked Reserves 409,100 238,400 9,600 199,900 225,300 177,100

Capital Expenditure funded by the Housing 
Revenue Account

1,153,700 1,251,200 1,961,900 1,302,200 1,213,700 1,126,500

D0D!T(SPM9"TMPU(,(%#=&B&D(=09(DQ#(
V#!9

G)+H/** * -L.H)** * * *

Housing Revenue Account Balance brought 
forward

-493,900 -350,000 -523,200 -350,000 -350,000 -350,000

Q>1<;47(98:8418(!??>142(5@E@4?8(?@33;86(
W>3X@36 GJ).H.** G.J*H*** G.J*H*** G.J*H*** G.J*H*** G.J*H***

Q0MP&$Y(9#R#$M#(!BB0M$D(%9!=D(5M%Y#D(

=>3(B>4<;683@2;>4(Z[(B>14?;E(*)(=8Z31@3[()*--

Page 18



R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

S
  -

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
ID

E
R

A
T

IO
N

 B
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 0
2 

F
E

B
R

U
A

R
Y

 2
01

1

H
R

A
 G

en
er

al
 

B
al

an
ce

s

M
aj

or
 R

ep
ai

rs
 

R
es

er
ve

 / 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n 
S

up
po

rt

T
ot

al
E

ar
m

ar
ke

d
R

es
er

ve
s

F
la

ts
 -

 
P

la
nn

ed
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce

C
en

tr
al

C
on

tr
ol

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

T
el

ec
ar

e

N
on

-
S

he
lte

re
d

S
ch

em
e

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

I T
 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t

O
ffi

ce
E

qu
ip

m
en

t
R

es
er

ve

S
he

lte
re

d 
- 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

S
he

lte
re

d 
- 

P
la

nn
ed

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

S
he

lte
re

d
S

up
po

rt
 G

ra
nt

 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
JE

 R
es

er
ve

M
an

ag
em

en
t

R
es

tr
uc

tu
re

R
es

er
ve

N
et

 M
ov

em
en

t 
on

 E
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

R
es

er
ve

s

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

B
al

an
ce

 3
1s

t 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0
52

3
68

68
22

87
81

8
73

10
12

5
31

4
52

23
1

32
8

13
7

10
0

10
0

22
87

R
ev

is
ed

 E
st

im
at

e 
20

10
/1

1
  C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 R

es
er

ve
s 

 
23

07
40

0
13

6
10

10
15

57
10

30
63

19
50

  A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
  t

o/
fr

om
 (

-)
 R

es
er

ve
s 

- 
R

ev
en

ue
-1

73
-4

11
-3

14
-1

0
-1

9
-9

5
-2

4
-6

7
-1

00
  A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 fr
om

 R
es

er
ve

s 
- 

C
ap

ita
l

-2
30

7
-7

6
-1

6
-6

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 B

al
an

ce
 3

1s
t 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1

35
0

64
57

22
97

94
4

64
20

45
35

5
62

23
8

33
0

15
6

84
22

97

E
st

im
at

es
 2

01
1/

12
  C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 R

es
er

ve
s 

23
25

33
6

13
6

10
10

15
57

10
30

49
19

  A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
  t

o/
fr

om
 (

-)
 R

es
er

ve
s 

- 
R

ev
en

ue
73

-1
16

-7
-2

0
-6

-8
4

  A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 fr

om
 R

es
er

ve
s 

- 
C

ap
ita

l
-2

32
5

-2
0

-2
0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 B

al
an

ce
 3

1s
t 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2

35
0

65
30

24
97

10
53

74
30

60
41

2
72

24
8

37
3

17
5

24
97

E
st

im
at

es
 2

01
2/

13
  C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 R

es
er

ve
s 

23
71

32
7

13
6

10
10

15
57

10
30

40
19

  A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
  t

o/
fr

om
 (

-)
 R

es
er

ve
s 

- 
R

ev
en

ue
35

5
-4

1
-1

1
-2

6
-4

  A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 fr

om
 R

es
er

ve
s 

- 
C

ap
ita

l 
-2

37
1

-6
0

-6
0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 B

al
an

ce
 3

1s
t 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3

35
0

68
85

27
22

11
78

84
40

75
46

9
82

25
2

34
9

19
4

27
22

E
st

im
at

es
 2

01
3/

14
  C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 R

es
er

ve
s 

24
17

32
0

13
6

10
10

15
57

10
30

33
19

  A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 fr

om
 R

es
er

ve
s 

- 
R

ev
en

ue
 

33
1

-8
3

-3
4

-2
5

-2
4

  A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 fr

om
 R

es
er

ve
s 

- 
C

ap
ita

l 
-2

41
7

-6
0

-6
0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 B

al
an

ce
 3

1s
t 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
4

35
0

72
16

28
99

12
80

94
50

90
52

6
92

25
7

29
7

21
3

28
99

E
st

im
at

es
 2

01
4/

15
  C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 R

es
er

ve
s 

25
00

35
6

13
2

10
10

15
57

10
30

73
19

  A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
  t

o/
fr

om
 (

-)
 R

es
er

ve
s 

- 
R

ev
en

ue
  A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 fr
om

 R
es

er
ve

s 
- 

C
ap

ita
l 

-2
50

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 B

al
an

ce
 3

1s
t 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5

35
0

72
16

32
55

14
12

10
4

60
10

5
58

3
10

2
28

7
37

0
23

2
32

55

E
st

im
at

es
 2

01
5/

16
  C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 R

es
er

ve
s 

25
00

35
6

13
2

10
10

15
57

10
30

73
19

  A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
  t

o/
fr

om
 (

-)
 R

es
er

ve
s 

- 
R

ev
en

ue
  A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 fr
om

 R
es

er
ve

s 
- 

C
ap

ita
l 

-2
50

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 B

al
an

ce
 3

1s
t 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
6

35
0

72
16

36
11

15
44

11
4

70
12

0
64

0
11

2
31

7
44

3
25

1
36

11

* 
N

ot
e 

th
at

 M
aj

or
 R

ep
ai

rs
 R

es
er

ve
 in

co
rp

or
at

es
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r 
th

e 
H

R
A

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n.

* 
P

le
as

e 
no

te
 th

at
 fu

rt
he

r 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 m
ay

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

re
se

rv
es

, b
ut

 th
e 

tim
in

g 
is

 u
nc

er
ta

in
.

APPENDIX E (1)

35
6

35
6

20
0

22
5

17
710

Page 19



R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

S
- 

F
o

r 
C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 b
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 0

2 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
11

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E
 (

2)
 

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r/
p

u
rp

o
se

  
H

o
w

 &
 w

h
en

 it
 b

e 
u

se
d

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
&

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 

C
ap

it
al

 R
es

er
ve

s 
 

 
 

 
 

M
aj

o
r 

R
ep

ai
rs

 R
es

er
ve

 
(M

R
R

) 
/ B

u
si

n
es

s 
P

la
n

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

S
et

 u
p 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 

th
e 

H
R

A
.  

G
ra

nt
 

re
ce

iv
ed

 fr
om

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t a
nn

ua
lly

 
w

hi
ch

 m
us

t b
e 

cr
ed

ite
d 

to
 th

is
 r

es
er

ve
 w

ith
 th

e 
in

te
nt

io
n 

of
 fu

nd
in

g 
m

aj
or

 w
or

ks
 to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ho

us
in

g 
st

oc
k.

 

C
an

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 C

ap
ita

l 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 H
R

A
 

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k 
(s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 

ex
cl

ud
in

g 
de

m
ol

iti
on

) 
an

d,
 

ad
di

tio
na

lly
 fr

om
 1

st
 A

pr
il 

20
04

, r
ep

ay
m

en
t o

f H
R

A
 

de
bt

 a
nd

 c
re

di
t l

ia
bi

lit
ie

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
em

ia
 o

n 
ea

rly
 

re
pa

ym
en

t o
f P

W
LB

 
lo

an
s)

. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
th

irt
y 

ye
ar

 
H

R
A

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n 

ha
s 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 le
ve

ls
 

of
 b

al
an

ce
s 

in
 e

ar
ly

 y
ea

rs
 

to
 fu

nd
 d

ef
ic

its
 in

 la
te

r 
ye

ar
s,

 a
nd

 it
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 
th

at
 th

es
e 

ba
la

nc
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

he
ld

 in
 th

e 
M

R
R

. 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

/ 
F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
In

co
rp

o
ra

te
 in

 y
ea

r 
g

ra
n

t 
an

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o 
ca

p
it

al
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e.
   

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r/
p

u
rp

o
se

  
H

o
w

 &
 w

h
en

 it
 b

e 
u

se
d

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
&

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 

R
ev

en
u

e 
R

es
er

ve
s 

 
 

 
 

F
la

ts
 –

 P
la

n
n

ed
 

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 R

es
er

ve
 

E
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 s

m
oo

th
 

th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 m
aj

or
 

re
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

ca
pi

ta
l 

w
or

ks
 to

 fl
at

s 
fu

nd
ed

 
fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

es
.  

 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
es

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
is

 
re

se
rv

e,
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 

in
 li

eu
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t. 

R
es

er
ve

 to
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 
m

aj
or

 w
or

ks
 to

 c
om

m
un

al
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 fl
at

s.
   

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

/ 
F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
In

co
rp

o
ra

te
 r

ev
is

ed
 in

 y
ea

r 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£1

36
K

 a
n

d
 

tr
an

sf
er

 £
10

K
 t

o
 r

ev
en

u
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 f

o
r 

in
cr

ea
se

d
 

ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
 o

n
 P

la
n

n
ed

 
m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

. 

Page 20



R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

S
- 

F
o

r 
C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 b
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 0

2 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
11

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E
 (

2)
 

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r/
p

u
rp

o
se

  
H

o
w

 &
 w

h
en

 it
 b

e 
u

se
d

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
&

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 

C
en

tr
al

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 

E
q

u
ip

m
en

t 
R

es
er

ve
 

E
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 s

m
oo

th
 

th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 m
aj

or
 

re
ne

w
al

 o
r 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

of
 C

en
tr

al
 C

on
tr

ol
 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t a

nd
 

sy
st

em
s 

F
un

de
d 

fr
om

 C
en

tr
al

 
C

on
tr

ol
 s

ub
sc

rip
tio

ns
 w

ith
 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 

in
 li

eu
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t. 

R
es

er
ve

 is
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 

re
ne

w
al

 o
r 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f 
m

aj
or

 it
em

s 
of

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

an
d 

sy
st

em
s 

fo
r 

C
en

tr
al

 
C

on
tr

ol
 s

ys
te

m
. A

ls
o 

us
ed

 
fo

r 
ch

ar
ge

ab
le

 
en

ha
nc

em
en

ts
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 
th

e 
lif

e 
of

 th
e 

sy
st

em
. 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

/ 
F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
In

co
rp

o
ra

te
 in

 y
ea

r 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£1

0K
 a

n
d

 
tr

an
sf

er
 £

19
K

 t
o

 C
ap

it
al

 
b

u
d

g
et

 t
o

 c
o

ve
r 

th
e 

p
u

rc
h

as
e 

o
f 

eq
u

ip
m

en
t 

an
d

 
so

ft
w

ar
e.

  

T
el

ec
ar

e 
E

st
ab

lis
he

d 
to

 s
m

oo
th

 
th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 r

en
ew

al
 o

r 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f 

T
el

ec
ar

e 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t. 

F
un

de
d 

fr
om

 L
ife

lin
e 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

. 

R
es

er
ve

 is
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 

re
ne

w
al

 o
r 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f 
ite

m
s 

fo
r 

T
el

ec
ar

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t. 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

/ 
F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
In

co
rp

o
ra

te
 in

 y
ea

r 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£1

0K
 

N
o

n
-s

h
el

te
re

d
 s

ch
em

e 
eq

u
ip

m
en

t 
E

st
ab

lis
he

d 
to

 fu
nd

 
pu

rc
ha

se
s 

of
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t f
or

 n
on

-
sh

el
te

re
d 

sc
he

m
es

 
fu

nd
ed

 fr
om

 S
er

vi
ce

 
C

ha
rg

es
. 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
es

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
is

 
re

se
rv

e,
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 

in
 li

eu
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t. 

R
es

er
ve

 to
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 
pu

rc
ha

se
s 

of
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
fo

r 
no

n-
sh

el
te

re
d 

sc
he

m
es

. 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

/ 
F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
In

co
rp

o
ra

te
 in

 y
ea

r 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£1

5K
 a

n
d

 a
 

tr
an

sf
er

 o
f 

£9
5k

 t
o

 r
ed

u
ce

 
th

e 
b

al
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
re

se
rv

e.
 

Page 21



R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

S
- 

F
o

r 
C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 b
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 0

2 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
11

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E
 (

2)
 

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r/
p

u
rp

o
se

  
H

o
w

 &
 w

h
en

 it
 b

e 
u

se
d

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
&

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 

IT
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

 
E

st
ab

lis
he

d 
to

 fu
nd

 
fu

tu
re

 m
aj

or
 IT

 s
ys

te
m

s 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t. 

T
o 

be
 a

pp
lie

d 
to

 fu
tu

re
 

re
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 / 
ch

oi
ce

 
ba

se
d 

le
tti

ng
s.

 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

/ 
F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
In

co
rp

o
ra

te
 in

-y
ea

r 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£5

7K
 a

n
d

 
tr

an
sf

er
 £

16
K

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e.

 
O

ff
ic

e 
E

q
u

ip
m

en
t 

R
es

er
ve

 
E

st
ab

lis
he

d 
to

 fu
nd

 
pu

rc
ha

se
s 

of
 m

in
or

 I 
T

 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

of
fic

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t. 

U
se

d 
to

 fu
nd

 a
d-

ho
c 

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
of

 m
aj

or
 o

ffi
ce

 
fu

rn
is

hi
ng

s 
re

su
lta

nt
 fr

om
 

he
al

th
 &

 s
af

et
y 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

an
d 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 
(d

es
k,

 c
ha

irs
, c

ab
in

et
s 

et
c)

 
an

d 
m

in
or

 o
ffi

ce
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t i
te

m
s 

e.
g.

 p
c 

up
gr

ad
es

. 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

/ 
F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
In

co
rp

o
ra

te
 in

 y
ea

r 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£1

0K
.  

 

S
h

el
te

re
d

 E
q

u
ip

m
en

t 
R

es
er

ve
 

E
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 fu

nd
 

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
of

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t f

or
 

S
he

lte
re

d 
sc

he
m

es
 

fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
es

. 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
es

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
is

 
re

se
rv

e,
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 

in
 li

eu
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t. 
R

es
er

ve
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
of

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

fo
r 

co
m

m
on

 a
re

a 
se

rv
ic

es
 

fo
r 

S
he

lte
re

d 
sc

he
m

es
. 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

/ 
F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
M

ai
n

ta
in

 in
 y

ea
r 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 
at

 £
30

K
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
sf

er
 £

23
.5

K
 

to
 r

ev
en

u
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 f

o
r 

sh
el

te
re

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

en
t 

p
u

rc
h

as
es

.  

S
h

el
te

re
d

 –
 P

la
n

n
ed

 
M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 
E

st
ab

lis
he

d 
to

 s
m

oo
th

 
th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 m

aj
or

 
re

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l 
w

or
ks

 to
 fl

at
s 

fu
nd

ed
 

fr
om

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
ha

rg
es

 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
es

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
is

 
re

se
rv

e,
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 

in
 li

eu
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t. 
R

es
er

ve
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 

m
aj

or
 w

or
ks

 to
 c

om
m

un
al

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 S

he
lte

re
d 

sc
he

m
es

. 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

/ 
F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
In

co
rp

o
ra

te
 in

 y
ea

r 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£6

2.
6K

 a
n

d
 t

o
 

tr
an

sf
er

 £
60

K
 t

o
 c

ap
it

al
 f

o
r 

b
o

ile
r 

re
n

ew
al

s.
  

Page 22



R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

S
- 

F
o

r 
C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 b
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 0

2 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
11

 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E
 (

2)
 

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r/
p

u
rp

o
se

  
H

o
w

 &
 w

h
en

 it
 b

e 
u

se
d

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
&

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 

S
h

el
te

re
d

 –
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

G
ra

n
t 

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 

E
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 fu

nd
 

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
of

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t f

or
 

S
he

lte
re

d 
sc

he
m

es
 

fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
es

, b
ut

 c
la

ss
ed

 
as

 S
up

po
rt

 C
os

ts
 u

nd
er

 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

ui
de

lin
es

. 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
es

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
is

 
re

se
rv

e,
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
 

in
 li

eu
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t. 
R

es
er

ve
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 

m
aj

or
 w

or
ks

 to
 c

om
m

un
al

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 S

he
lte

re
d 

sc
he

m
es

.  

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

/ 
F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
In

co
rp

o
ra

te
 in

 y
ea

r 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£1

9K
. 

JE
 R

es
er

ve
 

E
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 fu

nd
 th

e 
su

pp
or

t o
f  

th
e 

pa
y 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 th
e 

re
se

rv
e 

to
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
C

ab
in

et
. U

se
 o

f t
he

 
re

se
rv

es
 to

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

(a
nd

 a
gr

ee
d)

 b
y 

bo
th

 th
e 

H
ea

d 
of

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

H
ea

d 
of

 F
in

an
ci

al
 

S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

/ 
F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
F

ai
r 

P
ay

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

 f
u

lly
 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 a

n
d

 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

ow
ar

d
s 

re
ve

n
u

e 
ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

 o
f 

£6
6.

5K
. 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

tr
u

ct
u

re
 R

es
er

ve
 

E
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 fu

nd
 

po
te

nt
ia

l o
ne

-o
ff 

st
af

f 
co

st
s 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

tr
uc

tu
re

. 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 th
e 

re
se

rv
e 

to
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
C

ab
in

et
. U

se
 o

f t
he

 
re

se
rv

e 
re

st
ric

te
d 

to
 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
in

gs
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

P
er

so
nn

el
 

C
om

m
itt

ee
. 

H
ea

lt
h

 &
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

/ 
F

in
an

ci
al

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
u

d
g

et
 &

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

es
tr

u
ct

u
re

 
h

as
 c

o
n

cl
u

d
ed

. R
es

er
ve

 
b

al
an

ce
 t

o
 z

er
o

. 

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r/
p

u
rp

o
se

  
H

o
w

 &
 w

h
en

 it
 b

e 
u

se
d

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
&

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

R
ev

ie
w

ed
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 

P
ro

vi
si

o
n

s 
 

 
 

 

B
ad

 D
eb

ts
 

T
hi

s 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

is
 u

se
d 

to
 w

rit
e 

of
f a

ll 
H

ou
si

ng
 

R
ev

en
ue

 A
cc

ou
nt

 b
ad

 
de

bt
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

.  
 

T
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 is

 fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
an

 a
nn

ua
l c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f 
th

e 
le

ve
l o

f d
eb

t 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g.
 

F
in

an
ci

al
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
B

u
d

g
et

 &
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

In
cr

ea
se

 o
f 

£2
4.

2K
 d

u
e 

to
 a

n
 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 c

u
rr

en
t 

te
n

an
t 

ar
re

ar
s 

an
d

 r
ec

h
ar

g
ea

b
le

 
re

p
ai

rs
. 

Page 23



20
10

/1
1

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
15

/1
6

T
O

T
A

L

O
ri

g
in

al
R

ev
is

ed
 

E
st

im
at

ed
P

ro
je

ct
ed

P
ro

je
ct

ed
P

ro
je

ct
ed

P
ro

je
ct

ed

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

A
da

pt
at

io
ns

25
0,

00
0

   
   

   
25

0,
00

0
   

   
   

25
0,

00
0

   
   

   
25

0,
00

0
   

   
   

25
0,

00
0

   
   

   
25

0,
00

0
   

   
   

30
0,

00
0

   
   

   
1,

55
0,

00
0

   
   

   

E
ne

rg
y 

E
ffi

ce
nc

y/
B

oi
le

r 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

58
5,

00
0

   
   

   
58

5,
00

0
   

   
   

54
5,

00
0

   
   

   
46

0,
00

0
   

   
   

46
0,

00
0

   
   

   
51

0,
00

0
   

   
   

46
0,

00
0

   
   

   
3,

02
0,

00
0

   
   

   

K
itc

he
n/

B
at

hr
oo

m
 R

ef
ur

bi
sh

m
en

t
1,

04
0,

00
0

   
   

1,
08

6,
00

0
   

   
1,

02
6,

00
0

   
   

89
7,

00
0

   
   

   
94

5,
00

0
   

   
   

81
7,

00
0

   
   

   
72

4,
00

0
   

   
   

5,
49

5,
00

0
   

   
   

E
xt

er
na

l R
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
ts

1,
13

6,
00

0
   

   
1,

35
2,

00
0

   
   

1,
33

1,
00

0
   

   
69

6,
00

0
   

   
   

80
0,

00
0

   
   

   
1,

16
2,

00
0

   
   

1,
04

0,
00

0
   

   
6,

38
1,

00
0

   
   

   

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
36

7,
00

0
   

   
   

43
3,

00
0

   
   

   
42

1,
00

0
   

   
   

36
0,

00
0

   
   

   
36

0,
00

0
   

   
   

36
0,

00
0

   
   

   
35

0,
00

0
   

   
   

2,
28

4,
00

0
   

   
   

R
e-

ro
of

in
g

22
4,

00
0

   
   

   
17

1,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
42

9,
00

0
   

   
   

53
4,

00
0

   
   

   
25

7,
00

0
   

   
   

52
0,

00
0

   
   

   
1,

91
1,

00
0

   
   

   

R
en

ew
al

 o
f H

ea
te

rs
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

R
ew

iri
ng

83
,0

00
   

   
   

  
62

,0
00

   
   

   
  

85
,0

00
   

   
   

  
52

4,
00

0
   

   
   

26
7,

00
0

   
   

   
26

0,
00

0
   

   
   

26
0,

00
0

   
   

   
1,

45
8,

00
0

   
   

   

N
ew

N
on

-S
he

lte
re

d 
S

ch
em

e 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
ew

IT
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

N
ew

P
ro

sp
ec

t G
ro

ve
 O

ffi
ce

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

N
ew

C
en

tr
al

 C
on

tr
ol

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

F
ire

 P
re

ca
ut

io
n 

W
or

ks
 

20
0,

00
0

   
   

   
24

0,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

0,
00

0
   

   
   

  
 

C
ho

ic
e 

B
as

ed
 L

et
tin

gs
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
90

,0
00

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
90

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

T
O

T
A

L
 -

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 E
X

P
3,

88
5,

00
0

   
   

4,
27

4,
00

0
   

   
3,

65
8,

00
0

   
   

3,
61

6,
00

0
   

   
3,

61
6,

00
0

   
   

3,
61

6,
00

0
   

   
3,

65
4,

00
0

   
   

22
,4

34
,0

00
   

   
 

F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G S
up

po
rt

ed
 B

or
ro

w
in

g
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

U
ns

up
po

rt
ed

 B
or

ro
w

in
g

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

G
ra

nt
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

15
,0

00
   

   
   

  
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

C
ap

ita
l R

ec
ei

pt
s

58
,0

00
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

26
,0

00
   

   
   

  
26

,0
00

   
   

   
  

67
,0

00
   

   
   

  
69

,0
00

   
   

   
  

70
,0

00
   

   
   

  
25

8,
00

0
   

   
   

  
 

D
ire

ct
 R

ev
en

ue
 F

in
an

ci
ng

1,
19

1,
00

0
   

   
1,

28
3,

00
0

   
   

1,
28

2,
00

0
   

   
1,

15
4,

00
0

   
   

1,
06

7,
00

0
   

   
1,

04
2,

00
0

   
   

1,
07

9,
00

0
   

   
6,

90
7,

00
0

   
   

   

E
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

R
es

er
ve

s
60

,0
00

   
   

   
  

95
,0

00
   

   
   

  
20

,0
00

   
   

   
  

60
,0

00
   

   
   

  
60

,0
00

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
5,

00
0

   
   

   
  

 

M
aj

or
 R

ep
ai

rs
 A

llo
w

an
ce

2,
30

7,
00

0
   

   
2,

30
7,

00
0

   
   

2,
32

5,
00

0
   

   
2,

37
1,

00
0

   
   

2,
41

7,
00

0
   

   
2,

50
0,

00
0

   
   

2,
50

0,
00

0
   

   
14

,4
20

,0
00

   
   

 

M
aj

or
 R

ep
ai

rs
 R

es
er

ve
 

25
4,

00
0

   
   

   
58

4,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
58

4,
00

0
   

   
   

  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 -

 H
R

A
-D

E
R

IV
E

D
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

3,
88

5,
00

0
   

   
4,

27
4,

00
0

   
   

3,
65

8,
00

0
   

   
3,

61
6,

00
0

   
   

3,
61

6,
00

0
   

   
3,

61
6,

00
0

   
   

3,
65

4,
00

0
   

   
22

,4
34

,0
00

   
   

 

S
H

O
R

T
F

A
L

L
/(

S
U

R
P

L
U

S
) 

O
N

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

APPENDIX F

D
ra

ft
 C

o
u

n
ci

l H
o

u
si

n
g

 5
 Y

ea
r 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
F

o
r 

co
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 b
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 0

2 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
11

Page 24



APPENDIX G 

Lancaster District Wide Tenants Forum 

Response to Council Housing Budget Consultation for 
Consideration at Council 02 February 2011 

“The District-wide Tenants’ Forum accepts the recommendation to set the 
average council housing rent for the forthcoming year at 6.9%. 

The DWTF considers that the rents charged are good value for money and 
reasonable particularly when compared to the private sector and other 
social housing providers. 

The DWTF wants to ensure that the level of maintenance and improvement 
is maintained to ensure that the quality and standard of accommodation 
remains high. 

The DWTF recognised the challenges faced in ensuring that the housing 
services are adequately funded to ensure that the services tenants expect 
and want are fundable. 

The DWTF is concerned how any increase in rent affects people on low 
incomes but recognises that those who are on the lowest incomes are 
protected through housing benefits and that the rent levels proposed  
still are excellent value when compared with other housing providers. 

The DWTF expressed its thanks for the good quality services they  
received, particularly the repair and maintenance services.” 

Page 25



Council 2nd February 2011  
Officer Briefing Note on Notice of Motion  
 
 
‘This Council considers that 60 Councillors is too many for a small District 
Council. 
 
Furthermore, given the pressures on the revenue budget, this Council resolves 
to reduce the number of Councillors from the current 60, to a more acceptable 
40. 
 
To achieve this objective by 2015, the Council further resolves work with the 
Boundary Commission.’ 
 
Proposed by Cllr Robinson 
 
Seconded by Cllrs Sowden and Woodruff 
 
 
Background Information 
 
Electoral reviews are undertaken by the Local Government Boundary Commission 
for England, which  is an independent body set up by Parliament in April 2010 under 
the Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009. 
 
Schedule 2 to the 2009 Act sets out the ‘statutory criteria’ to which the Commission is  
required to have regard in conducting electoral reviews. In broad terms.  These are: 
 
• the need to reflect the identities and interests of local communities 
• the need to secure effective and convenient local government, and 
• the need to secure equality of representation 
 
The Commission can make the following recommendations for local authority 
electoral arrangements: 
• the total number of councillors to be elected to the council (known as 
‘council size’) 
• the number and boundaries of wards or divisions 
• the number of councillors to be elected for each ward or division, and 
• the name of any ward or division 
 
Generally, the Commission conducts electoral reviews where electoral imbalances 
across wards have grown since the last periodic electoral review process which took 
place between 1996 and 2004.  The criteria adopted by the Commission is that it will 
undertake a review if more than 30% of a council’s wards/divisions have an electoral 
imbalance of more than 10% from the average for that authority; and/or if there is one 
ward/division with an electoral imbalance of more than 30%, and the imbalance is 
unlikely to be corrected by foreseeable changes to the electorate within a reasonable 
period.  
 
The Commission also offers to assist Councils who wish to maintain high quality 
services at a time of reduced funding by altering the number of councillors 
representing the Council. 
 

Agenda Item 9 Page 26



Council size is the starting point in any electoral review since it determines the 
average number of electors per councillor to be achieved across all wards or 
divisions of that authority.    
 
The Commission is of the view that each local authority should be considered 
individually and not compared with other authorities of similar geographic or 
population size, or those facing similar issues and concerns. In the Commission’s  
opinion, local government is as diverse as the communities it serves, providing 
services, leadership and representation tailored to the characteristics and needs of 
individual areas. In addition, the demographic make-up and dispersal of communities 
in England are such that to aim for equality in the number of electors each councillor 
represents as an average across the whole country would be impractical, if not 
unachievable.  The Commission therefore will not base its decisions on council size 
on comparisons between local authorities 
 
Proposals for council size are most easily, and regularly, argued in terms of effective 
and convenient local government (in terms of choosing the appropriate number of 
members to allow the council and individual councillors to perform most effectively). 
Arguments can also be made on the basis of reflecting communities and allowing for 
fairness of representation. When making recommendations the Commission has to 
ensure that it can justify its proposals for council size on the basis of the statutory 
criteria, and the evidence it receives from stakeholders based on these criteria.  
 
The Commission advises that a starting point should be to consider the model of 
local governance used by the local authority, or intended to be used by any authority. 
These models have impacts on the workload of councillors and the working practices 
of the council, and therefore will have an effect on the number of councillors needed 
by that council. The existence of parish and town councils in an area may also have 
a bearing, although it is unproven as to whether this factor necessitates more or 
fewer councillors. The functions of the scrutiny, planning and licensing committees of 
the council may also have an effect, as might the representational aspect of 
councillors’ roles. 
 
The Commission’s technical guidance indicates that it will be for those submitting 
proposals to it to examine the political management and working practices of the 
council under review, and make well-argued and reasoned proposals.  The 
Commission has no pre-conceived ideas regarding the number of councillors 
necessary to run a local authority effectively, and is content to accept proposals for 
an increase, decrease or the retention of the existing number of councillors, but only 
on the basis that they can be justified. However, in the absence of sufficient 
justification the Commission will challenge and ask searching questions about the 
rationale for the council size being proposed and, if necessary, reach its own 
conclusions. Such conclusions may be different from those of interested parties to a 
review. 
 
 Even if the Commission is content with the rationale provided in support of a 
proposal for council size, it may choose to consider whether it is necessary to change 
this number in order to ensure better levels of electoral representation across the 
district. It is often possible to improve the levels of electoral representation across an 
authority by making minor modifications of one or two to the council size. The 
Commission will also examine whether the allocation of councillors between certain 
easily distinguishable parts of an authority (for example – a town and a rural area) is 
accurate. Improving the accuracy of the allocation of councillors between areas in an 
authority can help achieve better levels of electoral equality. 
 

Page 27



The Commission’s approach to conducting electoral reviews is one of consultation, 
openness and transparency, aiming to build as much of its recommendations as 
possible on locally-generated proposals and, to that end, conduct as much 
consultation as is practicable in any review. The Commission publicises the review 
as widely as possible, and asks that the local councils, political parties, parish and 
town councils, community groups, residents’ associations and other main 
stakeholders do the same.   Timescales for electoral reviews vary depending on 
complexity, interest, cooperation from interested parties, and the Commission’s  
workload. They are also dependant on the amount of consultation undertaken by the 
Commission. Their starting point is usually to conduct at least two rounds of 
consultation – one at the very start of the review and one following the publication of 
draft recommendations.  However, there are occasions when the Commission will 
wish to conduct further consultation on specific areas or issues, particularly if they 
are proving controversial. 
 
Implications for the Council 
 
Should  Council be minded to support the motion, then the first step would be for 
officers to contact the Commission to establish whether the Commission would be 
willing to undertake a review and how this would fit with the Commission’s current 
workload, and to establish what information and detail of proposals  the Commission 
would require. 
 
In advance of a review, it is likely that the Council would be required to submit to the 
Commission various information including electoral data, maps, information about 
governance arrangements, information about the Council, parish councils, 
community groups, partners and stakeholders.  There would be resource implications 
for providing such information and for liaising with the Commission throughout the 
review process.  Staff resources would not allow for this to be done during the period 
leading to the local elections and proposed referendum on the  parliamentary voting 
system in May 2011. 
 
In the light of the forthcoming elections, Members may also wish to consider whether 
it would be more appropriate for Council to delay considering any possible review of 
the size of the Council until the newly elected Council is in place, to ensure that any 
request or proposals put to the Commission have the support of that newly elected 
Council.  
 
Section 151 Officer Comments 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments to add. 
 
Monitoring Officer Comments 
 
The Monitoring Officer has prepared this briefing note.     

Page 28



COUNCIL  
 

Members’ Allowances Scheme - Report of the 
Independent Remuneration Panel  

2nd February 2011 
 

Report of the Head of Governance 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To enable Council to consider members’ allowances for 2011/12, in the light of a report 
from the Independent Remuneration Panel. 

 

This report is public 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

(1) Council is asked to consider the recommendations put forward by the 
Independent Remuneration Panel, and to approve a Members’ 
Allowances Scheme for 2011/12 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 The Council is required by the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) 
(England) Regulations 2003 to make an allowances scheme for each year.  
The Regulations require that before an authority makes or amends a scheme, 
it must have regard to the recommendations made to it by an independent 
remuneration panel 

1.2 The report of the Independent Remuneration Panel is attached to this report 
for consideration by the Council.   

1.3 A copy of the current Members’ Allowance Scheme, extracted from the 
Constitution, is also attached to this report for Members’ information and ease 
of reference.  

2.0 Proposal Details 

2.1 The recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel are set out in 
its report, and the Chairman of the Panel has been invited to attend the 
meeting to present the report and to answer any questions.  

2.2 Members will note that the report sets out a number of options, which Council 
is asked to consider.  

3.0 Details of Consultation  

3.1 The attached report presents the recommendations of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel, which the Council is required to have regard to in 
making any decisions about the allowances scheme.  

4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 

4.1 The Panel’s report sets out a number of options for consideration by Council.  
 It would be open to Council to accept any of those options in its entirety, or 

Agenda Item 10Page 29



 with amendment, or a combination of the options.  Council does not have to 
 accept the recommendations of the Panel, but it must have regard to them in 
 making its decision.   

 

5.0 Conclusion  

5.1 Council is asked to approve a Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2011/12 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 

None directly arising from this report. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

The relevant regulation is set out in the report. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The proposed 2011/12 budget for members’ basic allowances is £206,500 and for special 
responsibility allowances £101,500, giving a total of £308,000, which could be redistributed 
between basic and special responsibility allowances.  These figures are based on the 
current year’s budget plus inflation.  There are separate budgets for carers’ allowance and 
travel allowance. 

The special responsibility allowances actually payable will depend on the number of 
members appointed by the Leader to Cabinet in 2011/12, and on whether there is any 
duplication of member roles, given that the scheme provides for any member to receive only 
one special responsibility allowance. 

Assuming no duplication of roles it is estimated that the Panel’s option 1 would cost in the 
region of £378,100, option 2A £306,100, option 2B £309,400 and option 2C £291,400.  
However, for the reasons given above it is not possible to give an accurate figure.  
Dependant upon which scheme Members approve, option 1 would result in an increase of 
£70,100, option 2B an increase of £1,400, option 2A a saving of £1,900 and Option 2C a 
saving of £16,600, which would need to be built into the budget as part of the 2011/12 
budget process.  

These estimates are on the basis that Council will support the Panel’s recommendation to 
remove the Group Administrator allowance, and the Group Leader allowance in its current 
form.  Based on the current allowances and on six groups and full take-up of the allowances, 
the maximum cost of the Administrator allowance is £10,700, and the maximum cost of the 
Group Leader allowance in its current form is £16,590.  

 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources: 

None 

Information Services: 

None 

Property: 

Page 30



None 

Open Spaces: 

None 

 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has prepared this report as she has been providing support to the 
Independent Remuneration Panel throughout its deliberations.  

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None 

Contact Officer: Mrs Taylor 
Telephone:  01524 582025 
E-mail: STaylor@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 
 

 

Page 31



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION

[May 2010] Page 1 [Part 8, Members’ Allowance Scheme]

PART 8 

MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 

Page 32



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION

[May 2010] Page 3 [Part 8, Members’ Allowance Scheme] 

Part 8  
Members’ Allowances Scheme 
1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The scheme outlined in this document was based on the recommendations of the Independent 
Panel in accordance with the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances)(England) Regulations 
2003.  The present Scheme came into effect on 1st May 2007 following a full review by the 
Independent Panel.  A further review will be carried out after 4 years (i.e. no later than 1st May 
2011).  Increases in the level of allowances were made on 1st May 2008 and 1st May 2009 in 
accordance with paragraph 13.1.  On 1st May 2010 it was agreed not to apply paragraph 13.1 
but to apply a freeze on all allowances for 2010/11.  

2.0 BASIC ALLOWANCE

2.1 Basic allowance is to be paid to all Members, and is intended to recognise a time commitment 
expected of all Members, including such inevitable calls on their time as meetings with officers 
and constituents and attendance at political group meetings.  It is also intended to cover 
incidental costs such as the use of homes and private telephones. 

2.2 Each Member is entitled to £3,300 per annum, which will be paid monthly. 

2.3 In addition to the Basic Allowance, all Members will be provided with a laptop and printer 
together with a suitable broadband connection to enable them to access the Council network.  
Where Members use their own broadband connection for such purposes a payment of a 
monthly amount equivalent to that paid by the Council for the provision of the service will be 
paid which can be used by the Member as payment (in part or in full) to their own Service 
Provider.  Where a member wishes to utilise their own PC rather than use a Council provided 
laptop, the Council will enable a remote access facility for that Member. 

2.4  In order to comply with the requirements of Data Protection legislation the Council will, in 
addition, pay for the registration of each Councillor under the Data Protection Act. 

3.0 SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCE

3.1 A special responsibility allowance will be paid in addition to any entitlement to basic allowance 
for those Members who have significant responsibilities.   

3.2 The Members receiving special responsibility allowance and the allowances payable are as 
follows:- 

2010/11 

Leader of the Council and Chairman of the Cabinet £11,060 

Cabinet Members £5,525 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chairman £4,145 

Budget and Performance Panel Chairman £3,315 

Planning Committee Chairman £4,285 

Licensing Regulatory Committee Chairman £4,285 

Licensing Act Committee Chairman  £1,430 

Page 33



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION

[May 2010] Page 4 [Part 8, Members’ Allowance Scheme] 

Licensing Act Hearings Sub-Committee Chairmen £870 

Personnel Committee Chairman £3,270 

Audit Committee Chairman £2,280 

Appeals Committee Chairman £575 

Group Leaders   £1,845 
plus £92 per Member 

Group Administrators  £620 
plus £117 per Member 

3.3 In addition to the above Member responsibilities the Independent Chairman of the Standards 
Committee will also receive a co-optee’s allowance of £1,210.  (Subject to review pending the 
receipt of the Local Government Act 2000 Section 66 Regulations.) 

3.4 No Member is entitled to more than one payment from the Scales identified above. 

3.5 It will be for individual Members who would qualify for more than one special responsibility 
allowance to inform the Head of Democratic Services as to which allowance they would wish 
to be allocated, otherwise it will be assumed that the highest allowance is to be paid. 

4.0 CARERS’ ALLOWANCE

4.1 The Council will make reasonable payments for the reimbursement of the care of dependent 
relatives living with the Elected Member.  Full details of the Carers’ Allowance Scheme are 
attached at Appendix A. 

5.0 PART PAYMENTS

5.1 In the case of basic and special responsibility allowances, payment will only be made for the 
period during which a person performs the duties for which these allowances are payable. 
Where a member (or co-optee) is suspended or partially suspended from his responsibilities or 
duties as a member of the Council, in accordance with Part III of the Local Government Act 
2000 or regulations thereunder, the part of basic allowance or special responsibility allowance 
payable to him in respect of the period for which he is suspended or partially suspended may 
be withheld by the Council.   

6.0 REPAYMENTS

6.1 Where payment of any allowance has already been made in respect of any period during 
which the member concerned is suspended or partially suspended from his responsibilities or 
duties as a member of the Council in accordance with Part III of the Local Government Act 
2000 or regulations made thereunder, or ceases to be a member of the Council or is in any 
other way not entitled to receive the allowance in respect of that period, the member (or co-
optee) shall repay to the Council on demand such part of the allowance as relates to any such 
period. 

7.0 REVOCATION

7.1 Basic and special responsibility allowances will be paid automatically unless notice is received 
in writing from the Member concerned revoking the entitlement.  All such notices should be 
delivered to the Head of Financial Services. 

Page 34



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION

[May 2010] Page 5 [Part 8, Members’ Allowance Scheme] 

8.0 CLAIMS

8.1 Claims for travel and subsistence allowances should be submitted monthly after the end of the 
month in which the entitlement to the allowance arose and in any event no later than 3 months 
from that date.  Claims must be made on the official claim form available from the Head of 
Financial Services. 

8.2 Claims will be checked on receipt in Members Services and when verified forwarded to 
Financial Services for payment.    Those received in Financial Services by the 20th of a month 
will be paid on the 15th of the following month.  Claims received after the 20th cannot be 
guaranteed to be paid the following month. 

8.3 Payments are made net of income tax, through the PAYE system used for salaried 
employees.  Bank details are, therefore, required for each Member.  If a Member changes 
their bank details, the revised details should be provided to the Head of Financial Services. 

9.0 TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCES

9.1 In addition to the Members’ Allowances Scheme, travel and subsistence allowances are 
payable.   

9.2 A full schedule of rates payable for travel and subsistence and eligible duties is attached at 
Appendix B, and the approved duties for which travel and subsistence allowances are payable 
are set out in Annexes 1-3. 

9.3 All such travel and subsistence payments are payable to independent and parish members of 
the Council’s Standards Committee when attending meetings or training in connection with 
their duties on that committee or its sub-committees. 

10.0 LGA ALLOWANCES

10.1 For those Members of the Council who have accepted political appointments on the LGA the 
Council’s policy for the payment of Carers Allowances and Travel and Subsistence 
Allowances is set out at Appendix C. 

11.0 PUBLICATION

11.1 The Council is required to publish details of the Members’ Allowances Scheme and the total 
amounts received by each Member.  The Head of Democratic Services is responsible for this 
matter. 

12.0 MAYORAL AND DEPUTY MAYORAL EXPENSES

12.1 These expenses are paid to the Mayor and Deputy Mayor to reflect the additional expenditure 
that arises with these positions. 

12.2 The level of Mayoral allowances will be:-   2010/11 
  

    Mayor  £6,720  
      Deputy Mayor £1,335  

Page 35



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION

[May 2010] Page 6 [Part 8, Members’ Allowance Scheme] 

13.0 REVIEW OF SCHEME

13.1 Allowances (including the carer’s allowance) shall be adjusted annually on the 1st May in each 
year (for a maximum of 4 years) by reference to the Retail Price Index (excluding mortgages) 
RPIx. 

13.2 The Independent Remuneration Panel will monitor the Scheme. 

13.3 Minor revisions are the responsibility of the Corporate Director (Finance & Performance) in 
consultation with the Chairman of the Independent Remuneration Panel. 

13.4 Any queries or matters of clarification or determination as to Members’ entitlements to any 
provisions of this scheme shall be ultimately determined by the Corporate Director (Finance & 
Performance). 

14.0 QUERIES

14.1 Any specific queries regarding the entitlement to the scheme should, in the first instance, be 
addressed to the Head of Democratic Services (telephone 582060).  Queries regarding claims 
and payments should be addressed to the Allowances Clerk in Financial Services (telephone 
582134). 

Page 36



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION

[May 2010] Page 7 [Part 8, Members’ Allowance Scheme] 

APPENDIX A

CARERS’ ALLOWANCE SCHEME

1.0 Legality

(a) The scheme is established by the Council under the Local Authorities (Members 
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003.  The Carers’ Allowance is payable in respect 
of the approved duties set out in Annexes 1-3 of Appendix B.  The scheme requires 
Councillors claiming the allowance to demonstrate and certify that carer expenses are 
actually and necessarily incurred in the conduct of their official duties. 

2.0 Entitlement

(a) The scheme provides for payments to be made to Councillors in respect of care for 
“dependent relatives” living with the Member.  For the purposes of the scheme, 
“dependent relatives” are defined as: 

 (i) children aged 14 or under; 
 (ii) elderly relatives requiring full-time care; and 
 (iii) relatives with disabilities who require full-time care. 

(b) The allowance is payable for care provided by carers registered by a Councillor with 
the Authority (see paragraph 6.0(b) for details).  In the case of (i) above, under no 
circumstances will the allowance be payable to another parent, the parent’s spouse or 
partner.  In the case of (ii) and (iii) above, under no circumstances will the allowance 
be payable in respect of care provided by a member of the Councillor’s household. 

(c) For meetings or duties within the Council’s boundaries as set out in Annexes 1, 2 and 
3, the allowance will be paid for the duration of the meeting or otherwise approved duty 
plus an allowance for up to one hour’s travelling time before and after the meeting.  For 
duties outside the Council’s boundaries, the allowance will be paid for the duration of 
the duty plus the actual travelling time to and from the venue.  In all instances, total 
time claimed should be rounded to the nearest half-hour. 

3.0 Rates of Allowance

(a) The actual cost of care will be reimbursed, up to a maximum of £8.35 per hour, 
irrespective of the number of dependants. 

(b) Where a dependent relative requires specialist professional care, the full cost of care 
will be allowed, with the prior written approval of the Head of Democratic Services 
(HDS) (see paragraph 6 (b)). 

4.0 Claims Procedures

(a) Members wishing to apply for Carers’ Allowance must submit an application form to the 
HDS, declaring that: 

(i) claims made will only be made in respect of a named dependent relative (or 
relatives) as defined in the scheme; 

(ii) claims will only be made in respect of the entitlements set out in 2.0 above; 
(iii) receipts will be provided in support of all claims; and 
(iv) where a specialist professional carer is to be engaged, that this is a necessary 

expense for which full reimbursement will be claimed. 

Page 37



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION

[May 2010] Page 8 [Part 8, Members’ Allowance Scheme] 

(b) Members are required to notify Member Services in the event of their entitlement to 
Carers’ Allowance ending. 

(c) All claims will be processed by Financial Services through the Council’s payroll system.  
In exceptional circumstances, and with the approval of the Head of Financial Services, 
advance payments may be made in cash and subsequently adjusted through the 
payroll. 

5.0 Taxation and National Insurance Contributions

 Advice from the Council’s taxation consultants is that payments made under such a scheme 
will be subject to Income Tax and NIC’s unless an arrangement can be reached with the 
Inland Revenue and dispensation not to tax obtained on the basis that the payments are 
reimbursement of costs actually and necessarily incurred. 

Because of the potential taxation and NIC implications, all payments must be processed 
through the Council’s payroll system. 

Negotiations are being entered into with the local Inland Revenue office with a view to 
agreeing the principle of a dispensation not to tax any Carers’ Allowances payable. 

6.0 Administration

(a) The scheme is an integral element of the Council’s Members’ Allowances Scheme, 
and responsibility for supervising, maintaining and reviewing the scheme is assumed 
by the Head of Democratic Services. 

(b) Signed applications for registration of a carer are to be submitted by Members for 
approval by the Head of Democratic Services.  Approved applications will be retained 
by the Member Services Section and a copy forwarded to Financial Services. 

(c) Claims for payment of the allowance should be submitted by Members to Financial 
Services on the revised standard Members’ Allowances forms.  All claims must be 
supported by a signed pro-forma receipt (in the case of care provided by a non-
professional carer) or a receipted official invoice in the case of a specialist carer.  
Financial Services will check all claims for approval of entitlement, accuracy and 
reasonableness of duties and times claimed, and submission of supporting receipts 
and invoices. 

(d) Any queries regarding entitlement to the allowance, or individual claims, will be 
referred in the first instance to Member Services.  Should a dispute arise as to the 
eligibility of a claim, this will be referred to the Head of Democratic Services or 
Corporate Director (Finance & Performance) for decision.  Should agreement not be 
reached between the Member and the Head of Democratic Services or Corporate 
Director (Finance & Performance), the matter will then be referred to the Members’ 
Allowances Independent Remuneration Panel for arbitration. 

7.0 Audit

 Internal Audit will review the systems for payment of Members’ Allowances on a cyclical basis 
and include sample testing of Members’ Allowances transactions in annual probity 
programmes. 

Page 38



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION

[May 2010] Page 9 [Part 8, Members’ Allowance Scheme] 

APPENDIX B 

TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCES PAYABLE

Travelling Allowances

(A) Public Transport (except taxis and aircraft)  

(i) The rate must not exceed the ordinary standard class fare or any available saver fare, 
but the Council may generally or specially determine to substitute first for standard 
class fare. 

(ii) Supplementary allowance may be paid for expenses actually incurred on Pullman Car 
or a similar supplement, reservation of seats, deposit or portage of luggage and 
sleeping accommodation for overnight journeys, but in this last case the maximum 
overnight subsistence allowance is reduced by one-third. 

(iii) All long distance rail journeys and sea-travel bookings must be made by Members 
Services on behalf of Councillors, to seek the most cost-effective deal within current 
parameters. 

(iv) For journeys by public transport the cost of any private vehicle travel to and from the 
point of public transport may also be reimbursed at the rate set out in B below. 

(v) For journeys within the 35-mile radius of Lancaster Town Hall valid receipts must be 
produced. 

(vi) For journeys beyond the 35 mile radius of Lancaster Town Hall where the journey has 
been undertaken by car, the equivalent of a standard class rail fare as determined by 
Members Services on receipt of the claim shall be payable, subject to this being less 
than the payable rate set out in (B) below. 

 (B) Private Vehicle – for journeys with a destination less than 35 miles as the crow flies from 
 Lancaster Town Hall or where the cost would be lower than the equivalent standard class rail 
 fare: 

(i) By motor cycle or motor car - 40p per mile.  (The rate payable is that recommended 
  by the Inland Revenue and will be increased in line with their guidance.) 
  
(ii) Cycling/other non-motorised transport allowance (in all cases) - 40p per mile 

(iii) Supplementary payments may be made for tolls, ferries and parking fees actually 
incurred (on production of a valid receipt). 

(iv) Payment of mileage allowance is limited to journeys with a destination less than 
35 miles as the crow flies from Lancaster Town Hall. 

(v) Beyond the 35-mile limit, the lower of the mileage allowance and the equivalent 
standard class rail fare will be paid.  However the cost of any private vehicle travel to 
and from the point of public transport may also be reimbursed at the rates set out 
above.  

Page 39



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION

[May 2010] Page 10 [Part 8, Members’ Allowance Scheme] 

(C) Taxis and Hire Vehicles 

(i) Taxis:  in cases of urgency or where there is no reasonably available public transport, 
the fare plus any reasonable gratuity paid.  In other cases, the fare by appropriate 
public transport. 

(ii) Hire Vehicles:  the rate appropriate if the Member had owned the vehicles, unless the 
Council approves additional amounts up to the actual hiring cost. 

(D) Aircraft 

(i) The rate applicable to travel by appropriate alternative transport plus any amount of 
attendance or financial loss or subsistence allowance saved by travelling by air. 

(ii) But if the Council generally or specially resolves that the saving in time is so 
substantial, then – 

 (a) the ordinary or available cheap fare by regular service; or 
(b) where no such service is available or in the case of emergency, the fare  

actually paid. 

(iii) The Corporate Director (Finance & Performance) and Head of Democratic Services 
have discretion to authorise air travel. 

(iv) All bookings must be made by Members Services on behalf of Councillors. 

Subsistence Allowance

(i) In case of an absence, other than an overnight absence from home, subsistence allowance is 
payable as follows – 

Breakfast (when more than 4 hours away from normal place of residence) 
Members on approved duties who leave home before 7.00 a.m. to attend a location 
outside the Council’s boundary, may claim breakfast expenses as follows - 

Breakfast, on production of a valid receipt Up to £5.85 
Breakfast, (in London), on production of a valid receipt Up to £8.50 
Breakfast, (in or out of London), where unable to produce a receipt £3.20 

Lunch (when more than 4 hours away from normal place of residence) 
Members on approved duties outside the Council’s boundary from 11.45 a.m. 
to 1.30 p.m. may claim lunch expenses as follows – 

Lunch, on production of a valid receipt Up to £5.85
Lunch, (in London), on production of a valid receipt Up to £8.50 
Lunch, (in or out of London), where unable to produce a receipt £3.20 

Evening Meal (when more than 4 hours away from normal place of residence) 
Members on approved duties who have not returned home by 7.30 p.m. 
may claim an evening meal as follows – 

Evening meal, on production of a valid receipt Up to £11.45 
Evening meal, (in London), on production of a valid receipt Up to £17.00 
Evening meal, (in or out of London), where unable to produce a receipt £5.85 
In the case of an overnight absence - £90.60 
For an overnight absence in Central London £103.40 

Page 40



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION

[May 2010] Page 11 [Part 8, Members’ Allowance Scheme] 

(ii) The value of free meals must be deducted from the allowance.  Where main meals are taken 
on trains during which there is an entitlement to a day subsistence allowance, the reasonable 
cost of meals (including VAT) may be reimbursed in full.  In such circumstances, 
reimbursement for the cost of a meal would replace the entitlement to the day subsistence 
allowance for the appropriate meal period. 

(iii) All accommodation bookings should be made by Member Services.   

(iv) Where pre-booked the cost of hotel meals will be paid by the Council. 

Eligible Duties

Approved duties eligible for claiming travel and subsistence allowances are set out in Annexes 1, 2 
and 3. 

Page 41



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION

[May 2010] Page 12 [Part 8, Members’ Allowance Scheme] 

Annex 1 

Approved Duties - Meetings of the Authority 

Council 
Committees established by Council and any sub-committees established by 
those Committees, currently:

Personnel Committee 

Audit Committee 

Appraisal Panel 

Appeals Committee 

Licensing Regulatory Committee 

Licensing Act Committee 

Licensing Act Sub-Committees  

Planning and Highways Regulatory Committee 

 Scheduled Planning Briefings 

Standards Committee 

Standards Sub-Committees 

Council Business Committee 

Cabinet 

Committees established by Cabinet 

Cabinet Liaison Groups established by Cabinet 

Scheduled Cabinet Briefings 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Task Groups established by Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Budget and Performance Panel 

Page 42



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION

[May 2010] Page 13 [Part 8, Members’ Allowance Scheme] 

Annex 2 
Approved Duties - Outside Bodies

Note: All the following bodies are currently operating with one or more Council-nominated 
representative.  Representatives are usually, but not necessarily, Councillors.  Where non-
Councillors are currently nominated to an outside body, this is indicated in the right hand column 
of the table.  The Council has no authority to pay expenses to such representatives. 

Organisation 'Outside' 
Nominee(s) 

Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
Alfa Aesar Liaison Group 
Arnside & Silverdale AONB Unit 
Barton Road Youth and Community Centre Community Association  
Board of Trustees of Skerton Charities Yes 
Board of Trustees of the Lancaster Charity 
British Resorts Association 
Carnforth Station and Railway Trust Company Limited
Children’s Trust Partnership Lancaster District  
Citizens Advice Bureau 
Court of the University of Central Lancashire  
Court of the University of Lancaster 
Crook O'Lune Advisory Committee 
Cycling Demonstration Town 
Dukes Playhouse Board of Directors 
Folly Board of Trustees 
Forest of Bowland AONB Joint Advisory Committee 
Friendship Centre Management Committee 
George Fox School Educational Charity 
Heysham Mossgate (Community Facilities) Company Limited  
Heysham Nuclear Power Station LCLC 
Heysham Youth and Community Centre Management Committee  
Historic Towns Forum 
Homelessness Forum 
Lancashire Economic Partnership 
Lancashire Leaders Meeting 
Lancashire Police Authority – Partnerships Forum 
Lancashire Rural Affairs Forum 
Lancashire Rural Partnership 
Lancashire Valuation Tribunal Yes 
Lancaster & District Multi Agency Forum on Domestic Violence  
Lancaster and District Vision Board 
Lancaster & Morecambe Fairtrade District Steering Group  
Lancaster & Skipton Rail User Group 
Lancaster Canal Restoration Partnership 
Lancaster District CVS 
Lancaster District Sustainability Partnership 
Lancaster International Twinning Society 
Lancaster Police and Community Forum 
Lancaster Ripley Church of England Education Trust 
Lancaster University Council 
Lancaster University Public Arts Strategy Committee

Page 43



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION

[May 2010] Page 14 [Part 8, Members’ Allowance Scheme] 

Organisation 'Outside' 
Nominee(s) 

Leeds-Morecambe and Settle-Carlisle Railway Development Partnership  
LGA Coastal Issues Special Interest Group 
LGA Executive 
LGA Rural Commission 
LGA Urban Commission 
LSP Children and Young People Thematic Group 
LSP Economy Thematic Group 
LSP Education, Skills and Opportunities Thematic Group   
LSP Environment Thematic Group 
LSP Health and Wellbeing Thematic Group 
LDLSP Management Group 
LDLSP Partnership Board 
LSP Safety Thematic Group and Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnership    
LSP Valuing People Thematic Group 
Lune Park Children’s Centre 
Lune Valley Transport Enterprise 
Marsh Community Centre Management Committee 
Morecambe Bay Partnership 
Museums Advisory Panel 
National Association of AONBs 
North & West Lancs Priority 1 Action Plan Partnership Board  
North Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Group 
North West Home Safety Council 
North West Local Authorities Employers' Organisation 
North West Rural Affairs Forum 
Older Persons’ Partnership Board 
Preston and Western Lancashire Racial Equality Council  
Rainbow Centre, Morecambe 
Regional Leaders’ Forum  
Relate Lancashire, Lancaster District 
Reserve Forces and Cadets Association for NW of England and Isle of Man  
Storey Centre for Creative Industries 
Waste Management Strategy Steering Group 
West Coast Rail 250 
West End Partnership Management Committee 
Williamson Park Limited Board of Directors 
Winning Back the West End Steering Group 

Page 44



Lancaster City Council 
CONSTITUTION

[May 2010] Page 15 [Part 8, Members’ Allowance Scheme] 

Annex 3 

Approved Duties - Other Duties  

Attendance at Conferences/Seminars to which the Council or Cabinet has nominated 
a delegate 
Media Receptions 

Scheduled, Formal Meetings with Chief Executive/Directors/Service Heads 

Mayoral and other public ceremonies/launches etc approved by the Council or 
Committee of the Council 

Scheduled, Formal Meetings with Trade Unions 
Scheduled, Formal Meetings of Cabinet / Overview and Scrutiny meetings / Working 
Groups 

Notes: 

The essential criteria for these, and any other such duties that may arise, is that they must be formally 
structured and diarised elements of Council business.  The inclusion of other duties within this 
definition will be at the discretion of the Corporate Director (Finance & Performance). 

Page 45



L
an

ca
st

er
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
T

IO
N

[M
ay

 2
01

0]
 

P
ag

e 
17

[P
ar

t 8
, M

em
be

rs
’ A

llo
w

an
ce

 S
ch

em
e]

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 C
 L

G
A

 S
ch

em
e 

o
f 

M
em

b
er

s 
A

llo
w

an
ce

s 
- 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l P
o

lic
y

T
he

 L
G

A
's

 c
ur

re
nt

 s
ch

em
e 

of
 m

em
be

rs
' a

llo
w

an
ce

s 
be

ca
m

e 
be

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
fr

om
 A

pr
il 

20
03

.  
T

he
 m

ai
n 

fe
at

ur
es

 o
f t

he
 s

ch
em

e 
ar

e:
 

• 
M

em
be

rs
 o

f a
ll 

E
xe

cu
tiv

es
 a

re
 p

ai
d 

an
 a

nn
ua

l l
um

p 
su

m
 'R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 A
llo

w
an

ce
' r

ef
le

ct
in

g 
bo

th
 th

e 
tim

e 
w

hi
ch

 m
ig

ht
 b

e 
sp

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
ca

rr
yi

ng
 o

ut
 th

es
e 

po
st

s;
 n

o 
ot

he
r 

at
te

nd
an

ce
 a

llo
w

an
ce

 is
 p

ai
d;

 
• 

T
he

 L
G

A
 p

ay
s 

tr
av

el
 a

nd
 s

ub
si

st
en

ce
 fo

r 
m

ee
tin

gs
 a

t w
hi

ch
 a

 M
em

be
r 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 in

 a
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
ro

le
 o

n 
be

ha
lf 

of
 th

e 
LG

A
.  

T
he

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

pa
ys

 th
e 

tr
av

el
 

an
d 

su
bs

is
te

nc
e 

co
st

s 
fo

r 
ot

he
r 

m
ee

tin
gs

. 
• 

T
he

 L
G

A
 p

ay
s 

ca
re

rs
 a

llo
w

an
ce

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f a
ll 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 d
ut

ie
s 

an
d 

to
 m

em
be

rs
 r

ep
re

se
nt

in
g 

th
e 

LG
A

 o
n 

ou
ts

id
e 

bo
di

es
. 

• 
A

llo
w

an
ce

s 
pa

id
 b

y 
th

e 
as

so
ci

at
io

n 
ar

e 
in

de
x-

lin
ke

d 
to

 th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

l l
oc

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t p
ay

 s
et

tle
m

en
t.

T
yp

e 
o

f 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 
T

ra
ve

l &
 S

u
b

si
st

en
ce

 
C

ar
er

s 
A

llo
w

an
ce

 
A

tt
en

d
an

ce
 

A
ll 

st
an

di
ng

 c
om

m
itt

ee
s,

 p
an

el
s,

 fo
ru

m
s 

an
d 

ta
sk

 g
ro

up
s 

of
 th

e 
LG

A
. 

R
ea

so
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 a

nd
 s

ub
si

st
en

ce
 c

os
ts

 
w

ill
 b

e 
pa

id
 b

y 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t s

ch
em

e 
of

 M
em

be
rs

' 
A

llo
w

an
ce

s.
  W

he
re

ve
r 

po
ss

ib
le

, t
ra

ve
l a

nd
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

m
ad

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
M

em
be

r 
S

er
vi

ce
s.

 
A

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
t m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 M

in
is

te
rs

, 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 o
r 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
ns

 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 b
od

ie
s 

w
he

re
 M

em
be

rs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
LG

A
. 

A
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

t r
ec

ep
tio

ns
, v

is
its

, 
co

nf
er

en
ce

s,
 s

em
in

ar
s,

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 

w
he

re
 M

em
be

rs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
LG

A
 to

 a
tte

nd
 in

 a
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
ro

le
 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f t

he
 L

G
A

. 
A

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
s 

th
e 

LG
A

's
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

on
 a

ny
 p

ub
lic

 b
od

y,
 c

ha
rit

y,
 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
bo

dy
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

fo
rm

ed
 fo

r 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 p

ur
po

se
 (

an
d 

no
t f

or
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

 o
f i

ts
 m

em
be

rs
).

 

T
he

 L
G

A
 w

ill
 p

ay
 tr

av
el

 a
nd

 s
ub

si
st

en
ce

 
co

st
s 

at
 th

e 
ra

te
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
by

 th
e 

S
ec

re
ta

ry
 o

f S
ta

te
, s

ub
je

ct
 to

 
re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t o

f r
ai

l f
ar

es
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 

th
e 

st
an

da
rd

 fa
re

.  
T

he
 L

G
A

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
re

ce
ip

ts
 to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 s

up
po

rt
 o

f  
tr

av
el

 
an

d 
su

bs
is

te
nc

e 
cl

ai
m

s.
 

E
xp

en
se

s 
in

cu
rr

ed
 b

y 
M

em
be

rs
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
cl

ai
m

ed
 in

 th
e 

fir
st

 in
st

an
ce

 fr
om

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

.  
T

he
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
ill

 s
ub

m
it 

a 
qu

ar
te

rly
 r

ec
la

im
 to

 th
e 

LG
A

. 

A
ct

ua
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 u

p 
to

 a
 m

ax
im

um
 

(c
ur

re
nt

ly
 £

4.
50

 p
er

 h
ou

r 
pe

r 
de

pe
nd

an
t)

 is
 

pa
id

 b
y 

th
e 

LG
A

.  
T

hi
s 

is
 p

ay
ab

le
 fo

r 
a 

m
ax

im
um

 o
f t

he
 d

ur
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

du
ty

 p
lu

s 
re

as
on

ab
le

 tr
av

el
lin

g 
tim

e.
 

E
xp

en
se

s 
in

cu
rr

ed
 b

y 
M

em
be

rs
 a

re
 

cl
ai

m
ed

 in
 th

e 
fir

st
 in

st
an

ce
 fr

om
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
.  

T
he

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
w

ill
 s

ub
m

it 
a 

qu
ar

te
rly

 r
ec

la
im

 to
 th

e 
LG

A
. 

M
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 L

G
A

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e,
 L

G
A

 
E

xe
cu

tiv
es

 w
ith

 F
or

um
s,

 a
nd

 O
th

er
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

es
 r

ec
ei

ve
 a

 lu
m

p 
su

m
 a

m
ou

nt
 

pa
id

 d
ire

ct
ly

 fr
om

 th
e 

LG
A

 to
 r

ef
le

ct
 th

e 
tim

e 
w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

sp
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 c
ar

ry
in

g 
ou

t t
he

se
 

po
st

s.
 

N
o 

ot
he

r 
pa

ym
en

t r
eg

ar
di

ng
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

 is
 

m
ad

e.
 

O
ne

 P
ar

ty
 m

ee
tin

gs
 o

r 
du

tie
s.

 
A

ny
 tr

av
el

 &
 s

ub
si

st
en

ce
 to

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
po

lit
ic

al
 fu

nd
 o

f t
he

 r
el

ev
an

t p
ar

ty
. 

A
ny

 c
ar

er
s 

al
lo

w
an

ce
 to

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
po

lit
ic

al
 fu

nd
 o

f t
he

 r
el

ev
an

t p
ar

ty
. 

A
ny

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

llo
w

an
ce

 to
 b

e 
fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

po
lit

ic
al

 fu
nd

 o
f t

he
 r

el
ev

an
t p

ar
ty

. 
N

on
-A

pp
ro

ve
d 

D
ut

ie
s:

 
In

cl
ud

in
g 

G
en

er
al

 A
ss

em
bl

y,
 U

rb
an

 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, R

ur
al

 C
om

m
is

si
on

, S
pe

ci
al

 
In

te
re

st
 G

ro
up

s,
 C

on
fe

re
nc

es
 w

he
re

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 p
ay

s 
a 

fe
e 

fo
r 

at
te

nd
an

ce
. 

R
ea

so
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 a

nd
 s

ub
si

st
en

ce
 c

os
ts

 
w

ill
 b

e 
pa

id
 b

y 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t s

ch
em

e 
of

 M
em

be
rs

' 
A

llo
w

an
ce

s.
  W

he
re

ve
r 

po
ss

ib
le

, t
ra

ve
l a

nd
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

m
ad

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
M

em
be

r 
S

er
vi

ce
s.

 

C
ar

er
s 

al
lo

w
an

ce
 w

ill
 b

e 
pa

id
 b

y 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t s
ch

em
e 

fo
r 

M
em

be
rs

' A
llo

w
an

ce
s.

 

T
o 

be
 c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ba

si
c 

al
lo

w
an

ce
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 p
ai

d 
to

 a
ll 

M
em

be
rs

. 

Page 46



 
 

Lancaster City Council 

 

Independent Remuneration Panel  

Report to Council  

February 2011 

RECOMMENDATIONS ON THE LEVEL OF 
MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES TO BE PAID IN 
2011/2012 

 

Page 47



  

Introduction 
The requirement for an Independent Remuneration Panel, how it operates, and the contents of a 
members’ allowances scheme continue to be subject to the provisions of the Local Authorities 
(Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. 
 
Regulation 19(1) states that “Before an authority….makes or amends a scheme, the authority shall have 
regard to the recommendations made in relation to it by an independent remuneration panel. 
 
Panel Members 
Following a recruitment exercise in summer 2010, the Independent Remuneration Panel (The 
Panel) for Lancaster City Council now comprises six members, who are: 
 
Steve Leach – Professor of Local Government at De Montfort University (Chair) 
 
Brian Penney – Lancaster and Morecambe Trades Union Council  
 
Colin Everett – retired Local Government finance officer 
 
Unity Lawler – Finance Manager for family business, with previous experience in Local 
Government and research in academic institutions. 
 
Pat Loryman – retired Local Government IT officer, and previously a director of a private 
company 
 
Janice Wilson – retired Local Government Learning and Development Officer with previous 
experience in the public and private sector.   
 
Meetings 
The Panel met on the 12th October, 9th November and 7th December 2010 and on the 11th 
January 2011, in order to consider its recommendations and prepare its report.   
 
At the meeting on the 7th December, the Panel met nine elected Members on an individual basis 
to seek their views on the current scheme and possible changes.  Interviewees included the 
Leader and three other Cabinet Members, four non-executive Members, the Chairman of the 
Planning and Highways Regulatory Committee and the leaders of the six political groups on the 
Council.  The Panel also received written comments from two other Members. 
 
The Panel is grateful for the contribution of the Councillors who met the Panel, and for the 
support of the Head of Governance and Democratic Support Officer throughout the process. 
 
Background and Comparative Information 
The Panel had received a copy of the previous Independent Remuneration Panel’s report to 
Council of the 14th April 2010, and was informed of the decision of Council of the 16th June 
2010, which in the main rejected the recommendations in the report, (save to allow the 
independent and parish members of the Standards Committee to claim travel and subsistence 
allowances), and maintained all allowances at the 2009/10 level.   
 
The Panel received comparative information about the allowances paid by other Lancashire 
district councils, and by councils in the Exeter Historic Cities and former CIPFA Benchmarking 
Group.  This information is appended to this report. The Panel also had access to websites which 

Page 48



  

provided information about allowances paid by councils in Essex and in the south west of 
England.  
 
The Panel also had information about the political composition of the Council; governance 
structure of the Council; Committee timetable, and the activities undertaken by Cabinet and the 
various Committees.   
 
It was noted that in accordance with the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health 
Act 2007, the Council would be moving to “strong leader” executive arrangements effective from 
May 2011.  This will include the introduction of a Deputy Leader. 
  
The Panel was also aware of a proposal to stand down the Budget and Performance Panel from 
May 2011, incorporating its terms of reference into those of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
In considering its recommendations, the Panel was mindful of the difficult financial 
circumstances facing all local authorities at this time, when budgets across all services are to be 
reduced.    
 
Principles 
The Panel considered the twelve principles underlying the Scheme which had been adopted by 
the former Panel. 
 
These were: 
Principle 1: The system of Members’ Allowances should not restrict the possibility of any group 
in society from standing for Council and should ideally have the effect of encouraging groups 
currently under-represented on Councils to become Councillors. 
 
Principle 2: The voluntary public service principle should be one of the major factors influencing 
the Allowances Scheme. 
 
Principle 3: There should be established proper processes for holding Councillors to account in 
the performance of their duties.  Transparency and accountability are essential components of a 
new system. 
 
Principle 4: The Allowances Scheme is based on responsibilities and workloads as approved by 
the Council 
 
Principle 5:  There should be a basic payment received by all Councillors irrespective of their 
formal responsibilities on the Council, reflecting the demands of their representative roles and 
other duties. 
 
Principle 6:  Special recognition for Councillors holding positions of responsibility should be 
acknowledged in the Scheme.  Special Responsibility Allowances (SRA) paid should reflect these 
different levels of responsibility. 
 
Principle 7: Levels of remuneration in Lancaster should bear comparison with those agreed in 
other Authorities. 
 
Principle 8: The allowances paid to Councillors should take into account those paid in relation to 
comparable positions of responsibility in the public sector. 

Page 49



  

 
Principle 9: The system of Members’ Allowances should be as uncomplicated as possible; easy 
for Councillors and members of the public to understand. 
 
Principle 10:  Internal political roles and activities should not be eligible for allowances. 
 
Principle 11:  The Allowances Scheme should be reviewed annually to reflect any significant 
changes and subjected to a more fundamental review every three years. 
 
Principle 12: Members’ Allowances should be seen specifically as a remuneration which reflects 
the time commitments and responsibilities of Council activity and that expenses incurred for 
dependent relatives and travel should be reimbursed separately. 
 
The Panel endorsed these principles, subject to the following: 
 
Principle 8:  Whilst endorsing this principle, the Panel felt that it was difficult to put into 
operation in the current financial climate. 
 
Principle10:  The Panel firmly believed that purely political roles should not receive allowances, 
but, as set out later in this report, was prepared to accept that the role of an opposition Group 
Leader does have both political and non-political elements 
 
Principle 11:  The Panel was of the view that the Scheme should be fundamentally reviewed every 
four years, with the facility to re-convene at any time if there were significant changes in the 
structure of the Council or responsibilities of the Members  

The Panel’s Approach and the Identification of Options 
The Panel faced a dilemma.   
 
(i) It felt an obligation to develop recommendations which it felt were fair and appropriate 
to Lancaster City Council, drawing upon data of allowances that were paid in comparable 
authorities, and recent changes in the expectations associated with the role of different 
councillors (leaders, ward councillors etc).  Such recommendations may well imply an 
overall increase in the total members’ allowances budget.   

(ii) The Panel was aware of the extremely difficult financial circumstances facing all local 
authorities over the next 3-4 years, including Lancaster.  Councillors could find it difficult 
to support recommendations involving a significant increase (or indeed any increase) in 
the overall allowances budget. Under these circumstances, the Panel recognised there was 
an argument for ensuring that the impact of its recommendations did not result in an 
overall increase in the allowances budget. 

 
The Panel felt the following might solve the problem. 

(i) As it listened to the evidence presented and considered comparative allowances data the 
Panel felt there was a case for increasing certain allowances, for example the basic 
allowance and the SRAs for Council leader and their cabinet colleagues.  It felt that it 
was appropriate to set out recommendations which acknowledged these arguments.   

(ii) However it also recognised the financial realities facing Lancaster, and felt it would be 
helpful to provide alternative sets of recommendations anticipating a likely (and 
understandable) view amongst Councillors that any increase could not be justified in the 
current circumstances.  These recommendations include different options for changes 
to the current pattern of allowances, but broadly within a financial envelope of below or 

Page 50



  

around the identified budget.  If the Council did adopt this position, the Panel would 
wish that the initial recommendation, which involved an increase in overall expenditure 
to be reconsidered when the financial climate became less severe. 

(iii)The Panel also felt it appropriate to put forward an alternative  recommendation which 
would reduce the current allowances budget.  It may be that Members would wish to  
lead by example by accepting a reduced budget in response to a situation where public 
sector pay increases are capped and all authorities are being asked to reduce their 
budget.  This would not, however, respond to the concerns expressed by several 
members about the levels of basic allowance or SRAs for Cabinet positions. 

 
The Options proposed by the Panel 
The four options the Panel wishes to put before the Council are:-  
1. An allowance package which the Panel feels would be justified ‘in principle’ but does not 
feel it can recommend at the present time. 

2A An allowance package which makes adjustments to the existing scheme, without involving 
 any increase in overall expenditure, in a way which acknowledges the increased demands 
 placed on Council leadership. 
2B An allowance package which makes adjustments to the existing scheme, without involving 
 any increase in overall expenditure, in a way which acknowledges the need to increase the 
 incentives for people to stand as Councillors. 
2C An allowance package which makes minor adjustments to the existing scheme but 
 maintains the current and basic leadership allowances but reduces the overall cost of the 
 budget. 

 
Other suggestions made to the Panel included a reduction in the number of Councillors (which is 
outside the Panel’s remit), plus an option which recommended no changes in the current pattern 
of allowances, but simply increased all existing allowances by a factor reflecting the average 
increase in officers’ salaries (if any).  The Panel rejected this option as one which did not address 
anomalies in the existing system of allowances.   

Option 1 ‘Normal Circumstances’ 
Looking at data which compares Lancaster with various comparators* certain anomalies became 
apparent.  In particular 
1. The basic allowance paid to members in Lancaster is relatively low (£3,300 compared 
with averages of (i) £4,590 (ii) £3,394, (iii) 4,660, (iv) £4,922) 

2. The council leaders SRA in Lancaster is relatively low (£11,060 compared with averages 
of (i) £15,086, (ii) £12,347, (iii) £13,600, (iv) £16,883) 

3. The SRAs paid to cabinet members in Lancaster are relatively low (£5,525 compared with 
averages of (i) £7,564, (ii) £5,327, (iii) £6,800, (iv) £9,618) 

4. Lancaster is unusual (almost unique) in paying SRAs to group administrators. 
 
It should be noted that in relation to the Lancashire district averages, Lancaster City Council is a 
much larger and more proactive council than many of the other Lancashire districts (e.g. Ribble 
Valley, South Ribble, and Rossendale). 
 
The Panel considered these issues in turn.  .   
Given the growing importance given to individual Council leadership under the 2007 Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act, the Panel felt that in normal circumstances, 

                                                
* Including  (i) Lancaster’s CIPFA family, (ii) all Lancashire district councils, (iii) district councils in the 
South West and (iv) district councils in Essex 

Page 51



  

it would wish to recommend an increase in the Council leader’s SRA to £13,500, with the 
possibility of further increases when it became clearer how the new system currently being 
considered by the Council actually worked out.  Similarly, acknowledging the significant degree of 
individual responsibility exercised by cabinet members in Lancaster, the SRA for cabinet 
Members should be increased to £6,750 (also with possibilities for further increases).   
 
Several Members stressed to the Panel the importance of seeking to ensure that a reasonable 
cross-section of the population were motivated to stand as Councillors (and the Panel noted in 
this respect the Task Group report which had looked at “Breaking Down the Barriers to Being a 
Councillor”).  The Panel strongly agreed that this was desirable.  It was also aware of the 
importance to a healthy local democracy of the work of ward members who did not hold posts 
qualifying for SRAs and for whom the basic allowance was their only financial remuneration. 
 
To acknowledge the importance of the work of the ward Councillor and to seek to encourage a 
more representative cross-section of those wishing to gain nomination as a candidate, the Panel 
felt that, in normal circumstances, an increase in this basic allowance in Lancaster could be 
justified, from £3,300 to £4,500 which would bring it close to the average figure in Lancaster’s 
CIPFA family. 

Party group leaders and administrators  
The Panel re-examined the question of whether SRAs for party group leaders (including leaders 
of ‘independent’ groups) and for group administrators could be justified.  Previous panel reports 
have argued that ‘political’ positions of this nature were not appropriate for SRAs (involving, as 
they would, a cost to council tax payers).  The Council rejected the previous Panel’s 
recommendations and retained SRAs for both types of position. 
 
The Panel supported the view of its predecessor that if the roles of party group leaders and group 
administrator were wholly ‘party political’ in nature, then SRAs for these positions could not be 
justified.  However, they noted with interest the evidence from group leaders that two separate 
elements of their role could be identified – they acknowledged that sometimes their role was 
indeed ‘political’ – organising and facilitating group strategy and tactics.  Certain Members also 
argued that there was an element of leadership which transcended party group activity – times 
when leaders operated in various ways ‘for the good of the Council’.  For opposition groups, 
there was also an important ‘holding to account’ (or ‘scrutiny’) role – ensuring that there was 
informed debate and (where appropriate) robust challenge from opposition groups in relation to 
the proposals of the administration, and (usually) spearheading such processes.  It is also the case 
that almost all other authorities allocate SRAs to party group leaders.  
 
Unlike its predecessor, the Panel felt that on balance there was a case for SRAs for party group 
leaders, but only  by reflecting the ‘leadership’ element, rather than the ‘party political’ element in 
their role.  The Panel felt the case was much stronger for opposition groups than for groups who 
were working together in a joint administration.  For the latter the crucial ‘holding to account’ 
element of leadership would not apply; the group leaders concerned would normally be working 
with the leader of the Council as the executive (and so qualify for a SRA as an executive Member. 
This is the current situation for leaders of four of the six groups on Lancaster Council). 
 
The Panel’s proposal would be that an SRA equivalent to half that of the Council Leader should 
be allocated to leaders of groups who are ‘in opposition’ – i.e. who do not form part of the 
administration and are not represented on the Cabinet.  This sum (currently £5,530) should be 
divided amongst the leaders of opposition groups, in proportion to the respective size of their 
groups.  There should be a minimum number of Members in a group of four. 

Page 52



  

 
Thus if there were a single opposition group (as at present), its leader would receive an SRA of 
£5,530.  If there were two such groups one of 12 and another of 6, then their leaders would 
receive SRAs of £3,690 and £1,840 respectively.  If the council decided to agree an increase in 
the Council leaders SRA, then their figures would be adjusted accordingly. 
 
In relation to the ‘group administrator’ issue, the Panel felt that although the role did contribute 
to the smooth running of the council, and did not involve adversarial party politics, it was an 
administrative role operating purely within the different party groups and was (in that sense) 
Political, nor was there any significant leadership element involved.  The Panel was also aware 
that of the 50 or so other authorities whose members’ allowances scheme it reviewed only one 
allocated SRAs to ‘group administrators’.  The Panel felt that if the groups (party or otherwise) 
on Lancaster City Council wished to provide some form of financial reward for the group 
administration role, they should make their own arrangements to do so, perhaps through a small 
levy on other allowances received within the group.   

Other anomalies 
There are further anomalies in the current (2010/11) Scheme which the Panel would wish to see 
rectified.  In each case, the Panel accepted the arguments and recommendations in the report of 
its predecessor (April 2010), as follows: 
 
That an SRA of £1,400 per annum be introduced for the Chairman of the Council Business 
Committee. 
 
That the SRAs paid to the Chairmen of the Licensing Act Committee, Licensing Act Hearings 
Sub-Committees and the Appeals Committee be reduced by half as set out below: 
SRA Currently From May 2011 
Chairman of Licensing Act Committee £1,430 £715 
Licensing Act Hearings Sub-Committee Chairman £870 £435 
Appeals Committee Chairman £575 £290 
 
Taking these recommendations together with those already set out in relation to party group 
leaders and group administrators, we can summarise a number of general recommendations 
which apply to all options set out.  

General Recommendations  
1. The payment of SRAs to all group leaders should cease. 
2. The payment of SRAs to group administrators should cease. 
3. An SRA equal to half that of the Council Leaders allowance (currently £11,060) should be 
allocated to leaders of opposition groups (i.e. groups who are not represented on the cabinet), 
in proportion to their respective sizes (if more than one such group). 

4. The minimum ‘group size’ qualifying for these SRAs should be 4. 
5. That an SRA of £1,400 per annum be introduced for the Chairman of the Council Business 
Committee 

6. That the SRAs paid to the Chairmen of the Licensing Act Committee, Licensing Act Hearings 
Sub-Committees and the Appeals Committee by reduced by half. 

 
It should be emphasised that these general recommendations apply to all of the options (1, 2A, 
2B, and 2C) discussed below.  The Panel would not wish any of these options to be seen as an 
opportunity to override any of the general recommendations set out above.  
 

Page 53



  

Option 1 - Summary of recommendations  
1. All recommendations set out under “general recommendations” should apply. 
2. The Basic Allowance should be increased from £3,300 to £4,500. 
3. The Council Leader Allowance should be increased from £11,060 to £13,500, with a further 
review in a year’s time. 

4. The Allowance for Cabinet members should be increased from £5,525 to £6,750 with a 
further review in a year’s time. 

5. The ‘Deputy Leader’ post should attract an SRA of £7,750  
6. SRAs should be paid to leaders of any groups operating ‘in opposition’.  A total sum of 
£6,750 should be allocated for this purpose, divided between those group leaders who qualify, 
in proportion to the size of their groups (see below). 

 
If, however, the council decides that it does not feel it appropriate to agree any level of increase 
in the circumstances (which would be quite understandable) then the Panel would wish to put 
forward three other options for consideration.  These options require the inclusion of all the 
general recommendations set out earlier, but provide proposals for the re-allocation of resources 
stemming from a reconsideration of different elements in the current set of allowances.   
 
 Three alternative options can now be set out drawing on the above material. 

Option 2A 
1. All recommendations set out under ‘general recommendations’ should apply. 
2. The resources generated from the changes proposed under the general recommendations 
should be reallocated to increase the following :-. 
a. Leader of the Council       £13,500 
b. Deputy Leader (£1,000 more than Cabinet Member)  £7.750 
c. Cabinet Members      £ 6,750 
d. Leader(s) of Opposition Group    £ 6,750 (in total) 

3. Basic Allowance remains unchanged @ £3300 
 
Option 2A would reduce the overall cost of the allowances scheme by 0.63% .   
 

Option 2B 
1. All recommendations set out under ‘general recommendations’ should apply. 
2. The resources  generated from the changes proposed under the general recommendations 
should be reallocated to change  the following :- 
a. Basic Allowance       £3,600 
b. Deputy Leader (£1,000 more than Cabinet Member)  £6,530 
c. Leader(s) of Opposition Group    £ 5,530 (in total) 

3. Leader of the Council remains unchanged @ £11060 
4. Cabinet Members @ £5530 

 
Option 2B would involve a negligible overall cost increase in the allowances scheme of 0.46%  
 
Option 2C  
1. All recommendations set out under ‘general recommendations’ should apply. 
2. The resources generated from the changes proposed under the general recommendations 
should be reallocated to change the following :- 
a. Deputy Leader (£1,000 more than Cabinet Member)  £6.530 
b. Leader(s) of Opposition Group    £5,530 (in total) 

Page 54



  

3. Basic Allowance remains unchanged @ £3300 
4. Leader of the Council  remains unchanged @ £11060 
5. Cabinet Members @ £5530 

 
Option 2C would result in a reduction in the overall cost of the allowances scheme of 5.38% 
                                                                                                                    
Other Issues 
Apart from the positions already discussed, the Panel received no representations to amend any 
of the other SRAs, and saw no reason to do so.  Thus the SRAs allocated to Chairs of Overview 
and Scrutiny, Budget and Performance Panel, Planning, Licensing Regulatory, Personnel, Audit 
and Standards Committees should remain the same.  In the event of a merger of Overview and 
Scrutiny and Budget and Performance Panel, the Vice-Chair  should receive an SRA equivalent to 
that of the current Chair of Budget and Performance Panel. 
 
The Panel saw no reason to recommend changes in the current Travel, Subsistence or Carers’ 
Allowances.  It supports the view that the City Council should pay a mileage rate to cyclists (40p) 
equivalent to that paid to car users.  .  It was noted that 40p for cars and 20p for cyclists is the 
current tax-free limit imposed by HMRC.  
The Panel did not feel that it was in a position to judge between the respective merits of the 
Retail Price Index (RPIx) and the Consumer Price Index (CPI) as a basis for indexing Members’ 
allowances.  It recommends that no index-based increase should be applied for 2011/12, in line 
with the restrictions placed on officers’ salaries.  When the Council feels it appropriate to re-
introduce some form of annual index-linked increases, the Panel would wish to be consulted 
about the best basis for doing so. 
 
In keeping with the ethos of Principle 3, the Panel recommends the introduction of a scheme of 
performance review for all Councillors.  However, the scheme should be as simple as possible, 
and should ideally be seen as an incentive for Councillors rather than an imposition.  It should 
combine qualitative and quantitative data, and should be based on role descriptions.    
 
For all councillors there should be measures of attendance at meetings (as at present) and the 
scope of ward-based activities.  For Cabinet members, there should be the opportunity to explore 
how they had contributed to the Council objectives set for their portfolios over the course of the 
municipal year, and to respond to questions about their performance in this respect (perhaps 
through Overview and Scrutiny Committee).  For non-executive Members there should be the 
opportunity to appraise a wider audience of the contribution they have made over the course of 
the year to their constituents 
 
There are various examples of members’ performance review schemes, and it is recommended 
that the Council seek out some “best practice” examples and develop a scheme which is 
appropriate for the particular circumstances of Lancaster.  The Panel recognises that the Council 
may not wish to give immediate priority to such a scheme, given the many other challenges it 
faces over the next years. 
 
Conclusion 
Four options have been identified by the Panel.  It is right that the Panel should consider and 
present an option which it feels is appropriate “in principle” (ie one which seeks to rectify some 
significant discrepancies in the allowances paid by Lancaster City Council, in the context of those 
paid by comparable authorities).  However, the Panel would understand and indeed support any 
view taken by the Council that, whatever, the merits of the arguments in favour of such increases, 
now was not the time to implement them.  Options 2A and 2B provide opportunities to respond 

Page 55



  

to two such discrepancies (allowances for executive/leadership  positions and basic allowance) 
respectively, broadly within the current overall total of members’ allowances.  Option 2C does 
not address either of these anomalies, but provides an opportunity for the Council to agree a net 
reduction (of around 5%) in the total members’ allowances budget, if it so wishes. 
 
 
Appendices     
1. Allowances paid by Lancashire District Councils and councils in the Exeter Historic 
Cities former CIPFA Benchmarking Group  

2. Members’ Allowances Scheme – IRP Proposals  
 
 
 

Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



� �������� �
	
�

������ � �������������
	
�
�
�
���������� ���������	
� ���	�������	�� ����	����� ������
���	���� �����		���

�����������	��� ��������	������� �����������	�� ��� �!�		� � �
"���	�#����
���

� �
� $%%���	
�������� ���&'� �
� � �
� (	)��������� ����%��*��������
� +����	�(�(��
� ��,��������%��*��������
� (	)�����
� +� ��%�����	����������	����
�
� �� 	������
��� +� ��%�#�����	������ �"��������	����� �(������

-.�������
� / ����(�
���,� +� ��%�����������	����
�� ���������010�$%%���	�
� �	��2���	� +� � �%� ����� � � +���� #�
��	��
� � �

(�����	����$%%���	��(������34�������
� � 	���#����
��� +� ��%�#������
�� �����%��
��(������30�������
� ��5����
��� "	����,�������	������,,�	��$%%���	�
�
�� ���������
�
� 2���������
� �%� ������������ ��� � ��� 2��
 �� .�/������	� 6707���	�� ,,	��� � 
� �

��		����	���	 8�
�

� �
�� ���������������������������������������������������
�
� 2������	��� ��
� ��������	����	���������
��%��	�������
���

8��
� �
�� ��������������������������
�
� ���������	� �����	��  ���	� � � ,�	
���� ����	�
�� ����� 	��	 � ��� ���� ��	� � ��	�����

������	�� 9� "������ #���� 	�,�	��� 
� ���	��� �%� ����'����'������ ��� "	�
�� �������8�
�(������37�	�%�	
�8�
�
���������	� �
���	���  ���	� � � ,�	
���� ����	�
�� ����� 	��	 � ��� ���� ��	� � ��	�����
������	��9�"������#����	�,�	���
�������	��%�(�	������2�����������8��(������37�
	�%�	
�8�
�
���������	�!�		� ���	� ��,�	
��������	�
�������	��	 ����������	� ���	�����������	��9�
"������#����	�,�	���
�������	��%�(�	������2�������������(������37�	�%�	
�8�
�
��

� �
� �����������������
�
� (����	
� ��	��  ��
� � ���� ���	�� � � ����� ��� 	�:��
�
� ��� 
,�)� �� ���� �������� ���

���	 ���������������;
��	�� �,	��� �	�8�
��

� �

Agenda Item 13 Page 62



�������� �������������
	
�
�

 � ����������!�����"�������#�������������
�
� $�%&'()*��)+&),-�.'*/��0)1'%2��)-03(-'&'2'*4��35(1'223,-��-/.3,*/�%(6��,4('(78�

�
�������	������ ��	�,�	��%	�������+� ��%�������������������������	 �	���� ��� ��
������	� ��� �%%�	� �������� 
�,,�	�� ���  �����,� � 	��������� 
����%����� ����	�� %�	� 	�������
��������� �)�)������������		����
�����%��������
��	������$;�<����#�����������
�������#���	������������
��	8�
�
2��� �,����
�� �,����
� ���
�
�� ����� ���� 	�
)� 

�

����� � � �%%���	� ,	�%�		� � �,������
��	��
��������������	�,�	��
�%�����
&�

�
� �0*'3(�	��(����	
�

,,	�����%%���	
����,	��� ��
 ������ �
�,,�	���������

�������

�0*'3(����(����	
� ������
,,	�����%%���	�
�,,�	��%�	����
�

�����8�

� �����
� $%%���	
����� ���	)������
�����	���
�����
��
����������� �	�������
�
�����
�	������,	�,�
��
,	���� 
��������������
��	,�	�����=������
8�

$%%���	
�%	�����������
����������
����	�	�
��%���	)8�

��
 �����
� 2���
������,	���� 
������
�������������������%	���
������������� �
�,,�	�������
�����*���
��
���
�������>�����%��
�%�	�
����
�� ������������ �
���	���
�������,�������
�
	������,	��� � 8�

��������
������
���%����� �
�%%��������
�	��� �
���������>����������	������
���	�
��� ����	������� �����
����*,��	� 8�

#�
)
� �
�����
������ �����,
����
	�:��	�
����
� �	����
�%%���	������9����� ���� �
���������� ����	����	�
	�,�	����������
�	����	)�
,	��	���
�	��
,,	�,	���8�

������������

����� �����

���������������� �,�
��������
��,���������	�
���	�
� ���
�
� �����
�	�
����������,��	�
,��������8�

�

$%%���	�"	�%�		� �$,������� ��������
���
2��	���
�����%%���	�,	�%�		� ��,���������
�����
�������
������
��	���
���
��%%���	
�
���� ��������������	�����	������
,�������
�� ��� 
�%	�������	�	�
��������	������

���� ��,�����0����,,	��� 8��
�
���������	��	������,	�,�
� ��
���� � �������������	��
���	��&'�
�

?�0�� �����������
����� ����
��%�����,	�,�
���,	��	�

���� ���� �,	���	
�������� 8�

�6�� ������� 
�,,�	�
� ���� �����,�� �%� ,	��� ���� � 	��������� 
����%����� ����	�� %�	�
	���������������� �)�)������������		����
�����%��������
��	������$;�<����

Page 63



�������� �������������
	
�
�

#������������������#���	������������
��	8�

�@�� ������� �	��
� ��� ,	��� �� �%%���	� 
�,,�	�� %	��� ������� ���� ����������
���������� � � #�����	����� � � "������ 
�	����
� 
� ,,	�,	���� ��� 

�
�� ����
 �����,������%��������	�����	�8A�

���������	
���������� &'�
�
��������	�
�

�� ������� 
������������ ���������� ������� �������� ��������� ���������� ����� ����
 �������!����������"�����������#�������
�������������������!����������$!�
�

�0�� �����������
����� ����
��%�����,	�,�
���,	��	�

���� ���� �,	���	
�������� 8�

�6�� ������� 
�,,�	�
� ���� �����,�� �%� ,	��� ���� � 	��������� 
����%����� ����	�� %�	�
	���������������� �)�)������������		����
�����%��������
��	������$;�<����
#������������������#���	������������
��	8�

�@�� ������� �	��
� ��� ,	��� �� �%%���	� 
�,,�	�� %	��� ������� ���� ����������
����������� �#�����	������ �"������
�	����
�
�,,	�,	�������

�
�� ����
 �����,������%��������	�����	�8�

�99'1),-�,)-03(-'&2)�93,�)99)1*'(7�*/)�6)1'-'3(��
�
+� ��%���������������������
+� ��%�#�����	������ �"������
�
�)%-3(-�93,�+%:'(7�*/)�6)1'-'3(��
�
2��� ���
���� %��
� �������� ������	,�	���,	��	����
������ 	��	 � �����
���	�������������	���
��
�� � � ,	���	
��,� ��	)���� � � ���� 
������ �
� ,���������� � ���
� �	����
��,	�������� ��� ���� ��		���� �%%�	8� � $���	� ���� �%%���	� ����� ���� ����� �
� ���� 
��)����
%�������
�,,�	��%	��������������8��

� �
;� ������������������������������<��������������������
�
� $�%&'()*��)+&),�.'*/��0)1'%2��)-03(-'&'2'*4��35(1'223,��,4('(78�

�
(����	
����� �����  ���������%�	������� ������	������ ����	�������������
������� �
��� �
� ,	�,�
� � ��� ���������	� �����	��� 
���� � � ��� ���������	� !�		� � � 	�
���� �
�������
��&�
�
�������������������	�
�
2��� ���� ����� ���  �%�		� � %�	� ���
� �	����� �� � 	�������� ��������� ��� 2��
 �� 0B�
�������	�6707���07877��������
��	�2����+��8�
��

� �
 
� ����������<��������<�������������������
�

Page 64



�������� �������������
	
�
�

� $�%&'()*��)+&),-�.'*/��0)1'%2��)-03(-'&'2'*4��35(1'223,-��%,,4�%(6��%(7/3,(8�
�

����������� �������������������%�������� ��������� �������� �������������"����������
������������"������&����& ����������'�������������$� ���������������������� ����
��������������%�������� ���������� ��� ����� ���� ���������"� ������ �����������������
(���������������$!�
�
������� 	������ � � 	�,�	�� %	��� ���� +� � �%� ����	�������� ��	����
� ������ 
������
,,	����%�	�����,	����,����%������������������ �	������ �����	�����	�����%�,������������

�	����
��������%��%�������������������8�
�
2��� �,����
�� �,����
� ���
�
�� ����� ���� 	�
)� 

�

����� � � �%%���	� ,	�%�		� � �,������
��	��
��������������	�,�	��
�%�����
&�
�
� �0*'3(� 	�� 2�� ����	� ����� � �

,������ 	���� �	������� �����
���� ������� �������� %�	�  �	����
 �����	����� ����������������� �%�
�	�����%�
�	����
�

�0*'3(� ��� 2�� ���� ����	� ����� �
,������	�����	��������

� �����
� ����
� �,� ��
�	���� � � �������
,������	����
�	����
�
�
C�,	��� ���
����	�
�	�����
�
C�,	��� ��%%��������
�
���
�
����� 
�	����� %�	� 	�	��

���������
�>�"	�
��
�
�
C�,	��� � ���
�
������ �%�

�	����� �������� 	�	�� � �
�	���	�
8�

�

��
 �����
� "	�
���������
�����,	�����
���
 �	������ �� �	���)� ��	)� ���
����%� �%� ���� ������� ��������
���%���������������

�����	���
�%�
�	����� �����	�8�
�

����		�� ��� ��	,�	��� "���
� � ���
� ���
�� �	�� �

�	� �
�	����
�,	��	���8�

#�
)
� 2��� ������� ��������  ��� �� ���
�%%�	� "	�
��
� ���� �,����� ���
 �����	� 
���� �%� ���� 
�	����
�
����
����
'� ����������
�� ����
��
���

� �
�� ��� ������ ��	�
�	������� ���� � ��� �
� �
���� ���������	���������8�
�
�
� � 	�
���� �%� ����
���,	����
���� 
,�� ����
	������ ���� ������� ��������
	� ���
� �� ���
� ������� %�	�
���
���	)8�

�

Page 65



�������� �������������
	
�
�

�

$%%���	�,	�%�		� ��,�����

$,����0��
������%%���	�,	�%�		� ��,�����%�	�����	�
��
�
������8�

�
���������	��		��,	�,�
� ��
���� � �������������	�����	�&'�

?�0�� 2����������,,	��������,	����,����%������������������ �	������ �����	�����	����
�%�,������	����
�	����
��������%��%�������������������8�

�6�� 2�������+� ��%�����	����������	����
��
� ������ �����	������� ����
��%�����
,������	�����	������������������8�

�@�� 2���� �����  ����
� 	�� �	�� � 	������� ����	�� %�� � �� ���
� 	�� �, �� �
���	 �������
��=����������	�������������
�
�%�������������������������8A�

���������	
���������� &'�
�
�������������������	�

�0�� 2����������,,	��������,	����,����%������������������ �	������ �����	�����	����
�%�,������	����
�	����
��������%��%�������������������8�

�6�� 2�������+� ��%�����	����������	����
��
� ������ �����	������� ����
��%�����
,������	�����	������������������8�

�@�� 2���� �����  ����
� 	�� �	�� � 	������� ����	�� %�� � �� ���
� 	�� �, �� �
���	 �������
��=����������	�������������
�
�%�������������������������8�

�
�99'1),-�,)-03(-'&2)�93,�)99)1*'(7�*/)�6)1'-'3(��
�
+� ��%�����	����������	����
�
+� ��%�����������	����
�
�
�
�)%-3(-�93,�+%:'(7�*/)�6)1'-'3(��
�
2���  ���
���� ����� ������ ���
�	� ��	)���� � � 
�	� �  �����	�� 		�������
� ��������
���
��	������� ����
��	����������������
�� �,	��� �������	������%�	�������� �
��,	��� �
�	����� �����	��
�� 	 
�%�	�����5��
��%����
��	�8����)����������%����������
�������;
� ��	,�	��� ,��� �
� D��� ��,������� �����������;
� �	�� � ,	��	���� %�	� 
�	� �

�	����
�� �	�
�	�������	��,,�	�������
�%�	���	)�������	���	�,�

����8;�
��

� �
 	� ����������<����������������#�����������������������������

��<����������������������<�����
�
� $�%&'()*��)+&),�.'*/��0)1'%2��)-03(-'&'2'*4��35(1'223,��%(7/3,(8�

�
������� 	������ � � 	�,�	�� %	��� ���� +� � �%� �������� ��	����
� ��� 
��)� ,,	���� %�	�
����	���� ����� � %���� 
�	� � 
�	����� ����� "	�
���� ����� �������� %�	� ���� ,	���
���� �%�

Page 66



�������� �������������
	
�
�

#������
�� �����%��
�
�	����
���������
�
�
�
����������������
���

��
���
��=�������
��������

	�����
���������������
�������,,	��� ���� ������	
�8�
�
2��� �,����
�� �,����
� ���
�
�� ����� ���� 	�
)� 

�

����� � � �%%���	� ,	�%�		� � �,������
��	��
��������������	�,�	��
�%�����
&�
�
$,����� 0&� ��� ,,	���� ���� ��
���

� �
�� %�	� ����	���� ����� � %���� 
�	� � 
�	����� �����
"	�
����������������� %�	�����,	���
�����%�#������
�� �����%��
�
�	����
����������
�
�

� 
��� ���� �� �,,�� �*� �� ��� ���� 	�,�	�� ������ 
�,,�	����� 	������� ����
� 	��	 ����
����	������ ����
��������������	
�8��2��
�,	��� � �%�	��%����,,	�
���%����
��,������
����� ����	�
)����
� �	����
8�
�
$,�����6&� ��� ���� ,,	���� ������
���

� �
��� � ��
�� � ��
�	���� �%%���	
� ��� ,�	
�����
���	������ �,����� 
� ������� � ��� ���� ��
���

� �
�8� � E���
�� ���� )���  �����
� � �
 �
 �����
�	��������� � ��� �����,,�� �*� ��� ����	�,�	��� �,�� ������� �������	������
���
���� �%%���	
� ��� ��� � ��� �� �	�)�� %�	���	�  �����,����� ��	)� � � 	�,�	�� ��)�
���	 �����8��
�
$%%���	�"	�%�		� �$,������� ��������
��
�
2���$%%���	�,	�%�		� ��,������
�$,�����0��
����
��
����
� �	� ����������
����
�'�%%�������
�,����������
�����F�����%����	��������
�
������������������������������	�,�	�8�
�
���������	������	��,	�,�
� ��
���� � �������������	�!�		�
�
?2�������	������� ����
�
�
��������������	�,�	�����,,	��� 8A�
�
���������	
���������� &'�
�
�������������������	�
�
�0�� 2��� ������ ���
� �	� � ������
���

��
�� 
� 
��� ���� ���,,�� �*�����������

,,	���
� � 
�	� � 
�	����� 		�������� %�	� ����  �����	�� �%� ���� #������
� � �
����%��
�
�	�����������"	�
�����������������������
���
������	���8�

�
�6�� 2��� %�	���	� 	�,�	�
� ��� ,	�
���� � ��� (����	
� ���  ��� ���	
�� ���   	�

� ����

%�	���	� ����
��%���������	������ �����	�����		�������
8�
�

�@�� 2��� ��� ������	
��"�	
������������������� 	�:��
�� � ����, ��� �����������;
�
�
����
�����8�

�
�B�� 2�������#��������� ��������, �� ����	 ������������ ���������
����	�
,����

�%����,,	��� ��%%��������,	�,�
�
8�
�
�99'1),-�,)-03(-'&2)�93,�)99)1*'(7�*/)�6)1'-'3(��
�
+� ��%�����������	����
�
+� ��%�#������
�G�����%��
�
�
�)%-3(-�93,�+%:'(7�*/)�6)1'-'3(��
�
2��� ��
���

� �
��  ����
�	��
� ���� ���	�� �
� � 
�	���� �
�� %�	� �	������ � 
�	� �

Page 67



�������� �������������
	
�
�


�	����� ��� #������
� � � ����%��
� � � ���������
� �,,�	�������
� %�	� ��,	������ 
�	�����
�%%�������� �� � ����� 	� ��� � ��
�8� � 2��� $%%���	� "	�=���� ��	 � �
� �� �	
� � ����
��
���

��
��� ����
� �	
���������%����
�	� �
�	����� �����	���� �����
������
�����
��� 
��%�������������
8�
��

� �
 �� �������=�������������#�����
		>	���
�
� $�%&'()*��)+&),�.'*/��0)1'%2��)-03(-'&'2'*4��35(1'223,��%(7/3,(8�

�
(����	
����� ��������������%��%�	���	� ������������

������%�����
������������%�	������
���
� �	������%����
�	�,�	��������� �������	)� �D���%�����;����������� �� ������
 �%�		� 8�
��

� �
 ?� ������������������
�
� $�%&'()*��)+&),�.'*/��0)1'%2��)-03(-'&'2'*4��35(1'223,��%,,48�

�
���������	��		�����%�	�� ������������
��	�(	)�������������
���<	��,���	�� ������
	������� � ,	�
�������� %	��� ���� �	)��� �*,�	�
� �� ����	� �������� ���� �������� �-�
�������	�8��
�
�������������������	�
�
�0�� 2��������	���, ���������� 8�
�
�99'1),-�,)-03(-'&2)�93,�)99)1*'(7�*/)�6)1'-'3(��
�
��,��������%��*��������
+� ��%�"	�,�	�����	����
�
�
�)%-3(-�93,�+%:'(7�*/)�6)1'-'3(��
�
2�����	�
��%�	�%�	������%��������
��	�(	)�������������
���<	��,�
��,�����	����	�
	�,�	�
����������8��

� �
 �� �@���������������������������������
�
� 2��� ���	��� 
)� � %�	� ��� %�	���	�  ���	����
� �%� ����	�
�� %	��� ������� (����	
�

	��	 ���������*��,��	�,�	�8��
�
C���
����� �������������	������	��� �
���� � �������������	�!�		&'�
�
?2����������	 �����������������077��B���%����������<���	����������0.-6������,	�

�
� � ,������ ��� �*��� � � %	��� ���� �������� %�	� ���� %��������� ����� �%� ��
���

�� ��� ����
�	��� 
������������ �������������,�

����� �
���
�	���%��*��,����%�	������
� �%��� ����
,	�	,�
�0�G�6��%����� ����06���%��������8A�
�
(����	
���������� �
�%�����
&'�
�
�������������������	�

Page 68



�������� �������������
	
�
�

�
�0��� 2����������	 �����������������077��B���%����������<���	����������0.-6������

,	�

�� �,����������*��� � �%	���������������%�	�����%���������������%���
���

��
��������	��� 
������������ �������������,�

����� �
���
�	���%��*��,����%�	������

� �%��� ����,	�	,�
�0�G�6��%����� ����06���%��������8���

�
��

� �
 �� ������������������������<��#�=�������������<�����������������

�"��
�0�'�1��
�
� $�%&'()*��)+&),�.'*/��0)1'%2��)-03(-'&'2'*4��35(1'223,��%(7/3,(8�

�
������� 	������ � � 	�,�	�� %	��� ���� ��,���� ����%� �*�������� ������ �
� �*��,�� %	���
,���������� ��� ��	���� �%� ,	�	,�
� 0� G� 6� �%� "	�� 0� �%� ���� ���� 06�� �%� ���� �����
<���	����������0.-68�
�
2��� �,����
�� �,����
� ���
�
�� ����� ���� 	�
)� 

�

����� � � �%%���	� ,	�%�		� � �,������
��	��
���������������*��,��	�,�	�8�
�
���������	� �����	��� 
���� � � ������������	� !�		� ,	�,�
� � ���� 	������� ����
� 
�

���������������*��,��	�,�	�8�
�
���������	
���������� &'�
�

)� ������� 
������������ ���������� ������� ���������� ������  �������� ����
��������!� ������ ��� "������� ���� *� ������� 
������������ ������� ���� �������!�
���������$!�
�
��������	�
�
�0�� 2��� 	�
�������� �
� 
��� ���� ��� � ������� �*��,�� %	��� ,���������� ��� ��	���� �%�

,	�	,�
�0�G�6��%����� ����06���%����������<���	����������0.-68�
�
�99'1),�,)-03(-'&2)�93,�)99)1*'(7�*/)�6)1'-'3(��
�
��,��������%��*��������
�
�)%-3(-�93,�+%:'(7�*/)�6)1'-'3(��
�
2���	�
��
�%�	��)�������� ���
����	��
�������������������*��,��%	���,�������������
��	�����%�,	�	,�
�0�G�6��%����� ����06���%����������<���	����������0.-68�
��

� �
� �/)�+))*'(7�%6A35,()6�%*�	��	
0+�%(6�,)13(B)()6�'(�05&2'1�%*�	
�

%+�3(��5)-6%4�

	���)1)+&),��
	
�%*��%(1%-*),��3.(��%22�'(�%113,6%(1)�.'*/�*/)�,)-325*'3(�.'*/'(�
+'(5*)�;���
�
�/)�93223.'(7�399'1),-�.),)�0,)-)(*����/')9��C)15*'B)D��)05*4��/')9��C)15*'B)D��)%6�
39��3B),(%(1)>����99'1),�%(6�*/)��,'(1'0%2��)+31,%*'1��5003,*��99'1),���

� �
 �� �����������������������������������������������������������

Page 69



�������� �������������
	
�
�

��<����������������������������;���������
�
� $�%&'()*��)+&),�.'*/��0)1'%2��)-03(-'&'2'*4��35(1'223,��,4('(78�

�
2�����,��������%��*�������� ��
� ����������������� ��� �������%� ����	������ �
��

���
�
�����H	����,�
�����	�������������������� ���������������������������	�������
	��	 ����������� ������%�����������,�������	��������)���������������������	���
%�
�������� 
�� ��� �%%���	
� ���� � 	������� � ���� �����	
�  �%�	�  ������ ����� ����
�*���
���� �%� ���� ������,����� ��	������� ������ ���� %�	��� ,������� ,�
������ ��� ����
,�� ����,,��������%	���H	����,�
���
�)����8��$%%���	
����� ����������������
���
���� ���
� ���� ����� ���� ��		���� ����	����� ,�
������ ����� H	��� �,�
�8�
�
2��� �����	� %	��� H	��� �,�
��  ��
� � ���� ����� ��	�� ���� ��� � ,�
������ ��� ���
� �	�
��� ��������	�������� ����� ���)�����
�������,�������,,�������� ���	���� 8��
�
���������	������	��,	�,�
� ��
���� � �������������	�!�		&'�
�
?2������
� �	������%�����(�	����������	��"	���� ��������,�������	����������
 �%�		� �����������,�� ����,�������,,�����������H	����,�
��� ������ ���	���� 8A�
�
���������	
���������� &��
�
��������	�
�

���������
�����������������������������������������������������������������
 �������!����������"�����������#�������
�������������������!��������������$�
�
�
�0�� 2��� ���
� �	����� �%� ���� (�	������ ����	�� "	���� �� ������,�����

��	���������� �%�		� ������� ����,�� ����,�������,,�����������H	����,�
��
� ������ ���	���� 8�

�
�99'1),�,)-03(-'&2)�93,�)99)1*'(7�*/)�6)1'-'3(��
�
��,��������%��*�������8�
�
�)%-3(-�93,�+%:'(7�*/)�6)1'-'3(��
�
2��� �������� �%� ���� %�
�������� 
�� �� ��� ��
� ��		���� %�	�� �
� ���� ���
� �	� �  �%��������
�����������		�����������������*�
�����,�������,������
8� �����%�	���	� �
��

���
�
	��	 ������������	�����,�
������
���� ���� �%�		� ���������������������%�����,�������
,�
�������
�)����8���
�
�
�
�
��

� �
� �
� ���	���
�

Page 70



�������� �������������
	
�
�

�2������������� � ���07806�8�8��
�
�

�(4�E5),')-�,)7%,6'(7�*/)-)��'(5*)-D�02)%-)�13(*%1*�
�'F��%*)-3(D��)+31,%*'1��),B'1)-���*)2)0/3()�$
	���8�� �
��3,�)+%'2�

)&%*)-3(G2%(1%-*),�73B�5:�
�
���������������������#��������D�	��������������
	
����
�
�������<������������������������������������������������������������������
����������?�����������D��
	
����
�
�

�

Page 71



� �������� �
	
�

������ � 	������������
		�
�
�
���������� ���������	
� ���	�������	�� ����	����� ������
���	���� �����		���

�����������	��� ��������	������� �����������	�� ��� �!�		� � �
"���	�#����
���

� ��
� $%%���	
�������� ���&'� �
� � �
� (	)��������� ����%��*��������
� +����	�(�(��
� ��,��������%��*��������
� - ����(�
���,� +� ��%�����������	����
�� ���������./.�$%%���	�
� 0	�����*� +� ��%�"	�,�	�����	����
��(������12��
� ��3������ ��� +� ��%�+������ �+��
�����(������14�5�1/��
� ��3����
��� "	����,�������	������,,�	��$%%���	�
�
�� ���������
�
� 6��� ������
� �%� ���� �������� ��� � ��� 6��
 �� 7� �������	� �� � 	�������� � ��� .8�

�������	�29.9����	��,,	��� �
����		����	���	 :��
� �
� ���������������������������������������������������
�
� 6������	��� ��
� ��������	����	���������
��%��	�������
���

:��
� �
�� ��������������������������
�
� -�� ���	����
���	��� �������
�,����:��
� �
�
� �����������������
�
� (����	
���	�� ��
� ��������	��� ����������	�;��
�
����
,�)���������������%	���

�����	
� �%� ���� ,������ ��� ���	 ��������� ������<
� �	�� � ,	��� �	��� 
� 
��� ���� ���
�������"	��� �	��#����2:7�������	��	 ��������������		� �	�#� �����,������(������
1.�	�%�	
:��
��
6��� ���	���  ��
� � ���� ��� � � �
�� �	�� � ��� �=	 � (����	� 
,�)���� �� ����
�������� �,��� ���� 	�,�	�� 	��	 ���� ���� ���� ��		� �	� #� �����,����� �(������ 1.�
	�%�	
:����

� �
�	� ������������������� ����������
�
� !�"#$%&'��&(#&)�*$'+��,&-$".��&/,0%/$#$.$'1��02%-$..0)��"%3+0)%4�

�
����� ���	
�� ��
��
��� ��� ���	���
�� ������
	���
� �����
�� ��� ����
�	
� ���
��������������������������
����
�
������
������ ����� ��
������		����	
������
��
� ��� � ��!�	��"�� ���

� ���	
!�
� ��� �����
�� ���	
!�
� #!�
� $%&�� ����
� ���
�������
�%'�
�
���!�	������ ����� (���
�
���� ���� ��� �
)!
��
� ��� ��
��� �����
�� ��� �� *!���
(�����!�	�����������
�����������
�'%�

Page 72



�������� 	������������
		�
�

�������	������ ��	�,�	��%	���������,��������%��*��������������
� �	�����������,�����
��	������� %�	� ���� �����,������%� ����������������>
� �� � %�	� ����,	�,�
�
� ������� �
��������������
��	�������		� �	�������,������	��%:�
�
6��� �,����
�� �,����
� ���
�
�� ����� ���� 	�
)� 

�

����� � � �%%���	� ,	�%�		� � �,������
��	��
��������������	�,�	��
�%�����
&�
�
� �,'$0%� 	��

6�	������ ����
������,�����
��	������� �����
����	�
� � ��� ���
���	�� ������
��
�%%������� �����
��� ,	���

� ��
���,�����
,�������
,,�������� ���
$�����	� 29..��
� � 
��)� ���
�		�� ���� �
����������
�
� �
�
��	,�������
,	���

�

�,'$0%�����
�*��� ?#���
�� ����
������,�����
��	������� �����
����	�
�� 
��@���� ���
	���
� � ��	�
� � �
��� �����
� ������
�������� � ��� ����
��
�	���� A���	� ��	�
����	� ,,����� �
,	�%�

������ ���
���,���������.24��%�
���� �����
0���	������ ����
.172�  ��� ��� ����

,����� ,�	��
�	�
		�������
� ����
	�����,����

�,'$0%� 5��
6�	������ ����
������,�����
��	������� � �
	���������*�
�����
�
�
� ��� ����
�������� ���� �
�� �

�,'$0%� 6��
6�	������
����
������,�����
��	�������
� �  �
,�
��
�%� ����
��������
���� � �� �
��� ���� �,���
�	)���

� �����
� ����� � ,	���

�
����� ������ �����
��� ����
����������
�
���� ���� ��
����	�
�� ��� ����
,	���

��
����� ���� ����
	�
� ���
�


����� � �����
BC�
�$�	�����D:��

�

6��� ��������
���� � �
��
��%�	�� ���� �����
������,�����
�	����	)��� �
���������
�
,	���

� %�	�
(����	
� ���
���
� �	:��

�
�  ����� � ���
�,,�� �*� ��� ����
 @������� �� �
����	� �
� �	�� �
��� ����	� ����� � �� �

����	������������
����	�
� ���  �
,�
��
�%� ����	� ����	�
�
� ���
���� �� :��
���
� �	���� ���
��
���� �������� ���� �
���� ��� � ���
���
� �	� �;��	����
���� �� �� ��	� ���� �
��� ��� � ��� ���
� �	�
���� ��
�� �%�

���������� �
,������� ,,��������

� ���
�� ���� � ���
��� ����	� � ��� ����
������,�����
��	������� ����� ����
 @������� �� �
����	������	�
:�

�

C�� ���� � ���� ���

-���� 6��� ��������
���� � ������
� �,����
	����,��� ����
���
����� ����
����	� ����
���� 	������ �
�%� ,�������
,,	���� �
�

������%�	
�:�

Page 73



�������� 	������������
		�
�

���
� �	� � ��� ���
������������ �����
%�	� ������ ���
���
� �	� �;��	����
�� � %	��� �
 �����,�	� ���	��
����  �����,�	� �
�
�������� ��� �� �	�)��
 �����,�����
����
����
:� � �����
���,������%�B
,�����
,�	��
�	D� �
�
���
� �	� �
���,����� ��� ����
,	���
�� ���� ����
 �
,�
���� ����	����
��
�	�� ��� 	������
�
�	)��������%�	�����


��� � � ���
%�������� ���
�� ��� �
�
,	�,�
� � ���� ����
��
�	���� A���	� �����
��� ,,����� � ���
�	��� 
�������
��	�
� � �
��� �����
� �%� ����
,	�,�
� �
������,�����
��	������:�

�

6��� �������� ���� �
	����� ����	
��,� �%�
����
������,�����������
,����� ����� ���� 
����
�
�  �����,� �� ���
�
���������� ����	���
���	� ����
 �����,�����
,	���

:�

�

����� � �����	
�
,,	���� ��	)����
����� ����	�
�� ���
�
���� ���������	���

�	�� ��� ����
,������� ,	���

��
�*���
���� ��� ����
,�
������ ,	��	�

�
� ����� ��:�

�

Page 74



�������� 	������������
		�
�

��
 �����
� ����������
����������
�
� �,	���

�
���� �	�
��������
�
��	,���
������,	� ��� ��
���	������ ����
��� �����,�	����
��	 ����
��,�����������

�����:�

�

����
������

���������
;��
������
�

�	������� ������
%%�������������
,�,��������%�����
 �
�	��������	�
.89�999��� �
����������
�
%	���������
�)�
�� �=�	���
����
� �%%���������
� ����%�������
����������
�
� �,	���

�
���� �
���,	����
������
�,��	��� �
���������
����
��%�����
���������:��
����
���%�����

�	���������	��
�%�����,	�@��������
���� �,	������
�����
����������

����
����������
���������
�������������
���� �����,�	�
� ������
	���
��
����������

�	�������	�����
����,�������
,	���

:�

-���� ��������,�����
���� ����
����		���������
��		����
������,�����
�	��%�%�	�����
����
� �����
,	����,��
��%�����
�������<
�
,,	��� ������
������,�����
�	����	):�

6�����������
���� �����
����	�
����
�� �����	�
����	������	�
����%�	������
����,�������
,	���

�
���� ��)��

��
 �����,�����
,	���	:��C��
���� ������
��������	���
��	�������
�
	������	��
%�������:��� �
���������� �
���
���		�  ���
�������
���	��	���%�
����:�

#�
)
� 6��	����������� 6��	���
��	�
)����� -���� -����

Page 75



�������� 	������������
		�
�



�	���
�����
�,	�����
����	�
 �����,�	����� �
���,���
������������ �
 �����,�����
� ����������
������������ �
�������� ����
%�� �������
���%�
�		�������������
�
��	,�������
,	���

�������
���� �	��������
��� 	� 
��%�
����
� 
��%�
,��� 
:�

�

�������������� �
,,	�������� �
�
��	�
������
�*,�������
��%�
��������������
� �����	����
�,����������
�
�� �����	�������
�����	����
��	�
:����%�	���
�� �������������
������������ �
�������� ���%�
,	������ �����	��
��	��
;��
�������:�

����������,�	������
�����		������
����������
���
������������

��
%���	�������:��
+�����	�����
����
���������� �
��	�����,�	
����
�����������	���
� �
������,�����
��	������:�

6��� $%%���	� ,	�%�		� � �,����� �
� $,����� 2E� ���  �
��

� ����� ����	�
� ���� �*���
���� � �
��� ������%�����������,�������	�������� �����	������)�����,	�,�
� ���	�
�� �
��� �����
� ���������:� �$%%���	
��
��	������� � ���������+� ��%�"	�,�	�����	����
�
������ � �� �,�� ���� ��������  ����� %	��� ���� ��
�	���� A���	� ��	� ����	� ,,����� �
,	�%�

������� %�� � � ��	����� ����������,�������	�������� ��� ��
�	�� ���� ��� ���� � ���

����������������,	�,�	���� �,	� ��������	�������������
� �����
:�

�
���������	������	��,	�,�
� ��
���� � �������������	��	�����&'�
�
B6�������	������� ����
��
�
��������������	�,�	������,,	��� :D�
�
�������%���� ���������������	��		��,	�,�
� �� ����������	��������	�
���� � &'�
�
B6�������������,�������	����������������	�
������	����� �� ��������
� �	��������
������ ��� ��� ���� � ,	����,��	��  �
���� ���,�������� ��� ����� ���
� �%�
	�������
? �����,�	
����,	�
��������	�� �
�%�	�����
���:D�

Page 76



�������� 	������������
		�
�

���������	
���������� ����������� ����&'�
�
�� �������� 	
���� �� ��	
��� ��
�����
��� ������ ���� ����������� �� �������� �������
��
�����
�������
������������� �����!����
�������"
���
�������#�����������������
��
�����
����������������$
��������������������������������������
�����
��%�
�
(����	
���������� ���������	������,	�,�
�����:�
�
#
���+
,�
�
�-��
��
������!�	�������.���������*� ������/
����������������#�������'�+��
�
��� ��+�!��� $� �
��
��� ���!�	������� *��� � ��� 0�
�	�
�'� +��
� �������� ��� 1�
�
��
�����!�	������*�����
'��������
%'�
�

�.�� 6��  �
��

� ����� ����	�
� ���� �*���
���� � � ��� ����� �%� ���� ������,�����
��	�������� �����	������)�����,	�,�
� ���	�
�� ���� �����
����������:�

�2�� 6�������+� ��%�"	�,�	�����	����
������
��� �,�� ������������ �����%	���
���� ��
�	���� A���	� ��	� ����	� ,,����� � ,	�%�

������� %�� � � ��	����� ����
������,�������	�������� ��� ��
�	�� ���� ��� ������ 
���� ��� ��� ������ ,	�,�	���
� �,	� ��������	�������������
� �����
:�

�4�� 6����������������������������,�������	��������
,���%���	�%�	������
�� �����
����	�
� �		��������� ���,	����
���� ���
������������� ����������
�
�,	�� �%�
���� ,������� ,	���

:� � 6���  �����,����� �	������� 
���� � �
�� �)��
	�%�	����� ��� ���� ���� ��������� �	����� �%� ���
��	� ��
�	���� ��� ���
��,������� � ��	����� ���� ��
���	� ��������� ,	�����	��� �����	�� � � ��	�����

,���
:�

�8�� 6�������������		� �	�����������
���0	��,����	�'�
����
�� :��

�
�77$-&)/�)&/,0%/$#.&�70)�&77&-'$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
��,��������%��*��������
+� ��%�"	�,�	�����	����
�
+� ��%�0���	�����
�
�&"/0%/�70)�("9$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��

6���  ���
���� ����� ������ ����������
� ��� �)�� ,���� ��� �*��� � � � ��� � ����
������,����� ��	�������� � � ,	�,	�� ��	�
� � � ��� �����
� %�	� ���� �������<
�
���
� �	��������������� ��*���
������%�������	���	��������������������������� �� �
��
�	�� ���� ��� 
��
�;����� �����,������%� ���� 
���� �
� �		�� ����� ��������	�������
 �����	
������
���	,�	���,	��	����
����������������%�	�
)�� ���
����������������:�

�
��� �� ��:������������������������������
		;	���
�
� !�"#$%&'��&(#&)�*$'+��,&-$".��&/,0%/$#$.$'1��02%-$..0)��"%3+0)%4�

�
�������	������ ��	�,�	��%	�������+� ��%�"	�,�	�����	����
�������������
� �	������%�
����������#�������%�"	)�������
�� ���	��
�%�	�29..?.2:�

Page 77



�������� 	������������
		�
�

6��� �,����
�� �,����
� ���
�
�� ����� ���� 	�
)� 

�

����� � � �%%���	� ,	�%�		� � �,������
��	��
��������������	�,�	��
�%�����
&�
�
� �,'$0%�	���

6��
��,������
����
,,	�������	�
�
�
�������������
%��������	�����%�
F..9�499�

�,'$0%�����
6��
��,������
����
,,	���������@�	����
�%�����
	������� ����
�
����� ����������
�
	�,�	��� �����
�*��� ������
%��������	�����%�
F..9�499�

�,'$0%�5���
6��
��,������
���� ��
���������	���������
�*�
�����%��
�� �
��	��
�� �����
��)������ ��%�����
����	���������������
%��������	����

� �����
� �
6��
��,���������
�
����%��������	����
%�	�,	)����%��
�� �
��	��
��)���������
���������%������� �
������,�������
��%�
�������	�
�����A�6:�
�
6��
��,������
���)����
���,	��� ����

�,	����
���	�
�
�� ������
�
������,�������
���
� �����,��������%�	�
 ��	
���	����
����
����29..?.2��� ���:�
�

�
6��
��,���������
�
,	)����%��
�� �
��	��
�������������
%��������	����� �
����
���)����
  �������
����	���������������
29..?.2��� ����
,	���

:�
�
��%�	���	�����	��������
���� ����� ��
 �,�� �����������
�������%���	���
���	� ��� �%�	�
,	���	�,�	���
:�
�

�
6��
��,����������
�
������,������
,	)�����
���� �
���������	����������
� ��	 ���:�
�
6��
��,������
���)����
���	�����������
�	���
��
�,,�	��
��	���������
���
��������
,	���

�

��
 �����
� �
6��
��,����� ��
�����
�*���
������
����	������������
,	)����%��
�� �
��	��
����� ��)��
�������29..?.2�
�� ����,	�,	�����
,	���

:�

�
��,�� �����������
	�����%����	�
�
�
,,	��� ����
��,�����
���� ������
����������,������

��	��
���,	)����
� ����������	��
�	 ���:��
�
6��
��,������
���)����
���	�������������
��
��@������
���	�����
�������
��������
,	���

:����
�

�
�,	��%	�������
,�

���������%�
���	�
� ��������
	�
����%	������%���
���	�
�
����
�
�,����������	�
��������

����%������� ����
,	������	�;��	����
  ���������������	�

����
�������
����	�� �%	���
����	���������
�?�

�	����
��� �	�)���
��������������:�

#�
)
� �
6��
��,�����
������
�
����	����	�
)
�


����� ������,	����
���	�
�
�
�

�
6��
��,��������������
�
����%�����	�
)��%�
��
����	�	�
�
�����
���  �������%���

�
6��
��,�����
���	�
�
�����
�� ����,	�,	�����
 �%%�������
���������

Page 78



�������� 	������������
		�
�

��
����	
����
����
������	��� �
�
�%��	�
,�	���	��
��
����	��	�,	)
����
���� �
�	���:�

���	�
�
�������
��		�
,�� ����

��
��������
���	�
� �	�
)��%�
 ��	
���	����
�
���������29..?.2�
�� ���:�
�

�����  �������
��������	��@�	�

����
�	��
	�;��	� :��

�

6���,	�%�		� ��,������
�$,�����2��������
�
���	�
� ������&�

�.�� 6����������,,	���
�9:29,����	�
�
��������,��� � �
,����	�%%
����������� �
��� ���� ����� �� ,	�	,�� 4:.� %�	� 29..?.2� ��� ����	���   ������� ������� �%�
F.GH�H99���*��� ��������%��������	�����%�F..9�499����F7H�499�:�

�2�� 6����������,,	���
��/I�	� ������� ��� ���� �������%�,������,�	������	��
� %�	�
29..?.2�����	�����  ���������������%�F2�899:�

�4�� 6���������� ,,	���
� ���� �����	
�����%� �������	�����	�"	)� ���� 
��	�� 
���
,��� � �
,����	�,	)�����	�����  ���������������%�F.9�999:�

�8�� 6��� ������� ,,	���
� ���� �����	
���� �%� ���)� ��	���� �	� "	)� ��� � 
,���%���
,�	������� �	
<��	�,	)�����	������������,���������������������:�

�/�� 6����������,,	���
��HI����	�
�������%%�� �(����	
�,�	������	��
�%�	�
29..?.2�����	�����  ���������������%�F4�.99:�

�H�� 6��� ������� ,,	���
� �*��� ���� ���� �*�
����� ��%%� � � (����	� ,�	����
		�������
����,	���	�����	���
����
���,�������
�%%� ����	���
� ���������
������������ ���
�� �����+� ��%�"	�,�	����������	�
� ���� ���	���������������
�%� ,	)���� ��	��
� %�	� 29..?.2� %��	� %�	���	�  �
��

���
� ����� ���� ,	���	����
�	���
����
�� ������,�����������,�	������	��
�%�	�29..?.2:�

�
���������	������	��,	�,�
� ��
���� � �������������	�!�		&'�
�
B6�������	������� ����
��
�
��������������	�,�	������,,	��� :D�
�
C���
�,	�,�
� �������������	�#����
���� ����,�� �
��%	��� ������ ������������
,	�,�
�	�� �
���� �	��%������	������,	�,�
�����&�
�
B6������	�����������	�
����������	�,	)������	��
���������
�����(	)����	�,	)���
����,	�
��������:D�
�
�������%��%�	���	���� ���������
�,	�,�
� �������������	�#����
��&�
�
B6��� ���	�� ��� � /I� 	� ������� ��� ,�	���� ��	��
� %�	� �*�
����� 
�%%� ��� ����� ����� ����
	� ���������������������%�,������,�	������	��
:D�
�
+�����	������
����� ��������	���
����
���� �	����������� ������ �����	�%�	������
�
� ���� ��������%����:�
�
C���
������,	�,�
� �������������	��		��� �
���� � �������������	��������	&�
�
B6��������@�	�����%�(����	�� �$%%���	�,�	���
�������) ������E������(����	
�����
��� ����,	)������)�� 
�%�	�����������
���

���������������	��
�� ������$%%���	
�

Page 79



�������� 	������������
		�
�

	�;��	� ������	)������)�� 
��������,,���%�	��7� ��,�	���:D�
�
(����	
���������� ����������� ����:�
�
���������� ��
�����
��������� �������������� 	
���� �� ��	
��� 
�� ���� ���������� ���� &�
����������
����
�������
��������������������� �����!����
�������"
���
���	
����
�������������$
��������������������������������������
�����
��%�
�
���������	
���������� ���������	������,	�,�
�������
���� � :�
�
#
���+
,�
�
�2��
��
������!�	���������!�	������.���������*�����
��*� ������/
�������������
���#�������'�+��
� ��� ��+�!������$��
��
��� ���!�	�������*��� ����0�
�	�
�'�
�������
%'�
�

�.�� 6����������,,	���
�9:29,����	�
�
��������,��� � �
,����	�%%
����������� �
��� ���� ����� �� ,	�	,�� 4:.� %�	� 29..?.2� ��� ����	���   ������� ������� �%�
F.GH�H99���*��� ��������%��������	�����%�F..9�499����F7H�499�:�

�2�� 6����������,,	���
��/I�	� ������� ��� ���� �������%�,������,�	������	��
� %�	�
29..?.2�����	�����  ���������������%�F2�899:�

�4�� 6���������� ,,	���
� ���� �����	
�����%� �������	�����	�"	)� ���� 
��	�� 
���
,��� � �
,����	�,	)�����	�����  ���������������%�F.9�999:�

�8�� 6��� ������� ,,	���
� ���� �����	
���� �%� ���)� ��	���� �	� "	)� ��� � 
,���%���
,�	������� �	
<��	�,	)�����	������������,���������������������:�

�/�� 6����������,,	���
��HI����	�
�������%%�� �(����	
�,�	������	��
�%�	�
29..?.2�����	�����  ���������������%�F4�.99:�

�H�� 6��� ������� ,,	���
� �*��� ���� ���� �*�
����� ��%%� � � (����	� ,�	����
		�������
����,	���	�����	���
����
���,�������
�%%� ����	���
� ���������
������������ ���
�� �����+� ��%�"	�,�	����������	�
� ���� ���	���������������
�%� ,	)���� ��	��
� %�	� 29..?.2� %��	� %�	���	�  �
��

���
� ����� ���� ,	���	����
�	���
����
�� ������,�����������,�	������	��
�%�	�29..?.2:�

�7�� 6������	�����������	�
����������	�,	)������	��
���������
�����(	)����	�
,	)�������,	�
��������:�

�
�77$-&)/�)&/,0%/$#.&�70)�&77&-'$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
+� ��%�"	�,�	�����	����
�
+� ��%�����������	����
�
�
�&"/0%/�70)�("9$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
6���  ���
���� � �� ����
� ���� �� ���	�� 	�;��	������ � � ����
� %�	� ��   �������
����	���������������29..?.2� 	%���� �����������������%%��������	�
,�	������������ �
�
����
�
����������������
�� ���@������
��%�����"	)������	����:�
�

��
��

������3�!��
����11%4-�������
	��+
�
����1$%55��%�
��

� �

Page 80



�������� 	������������
		�
�

�5� �������������������������������������
		;	���
�
� !�"#$%&'��&(#&)�*$'+��,&-$".��&/,0%/$#$.$'1��02%-$..0)��&))4�

�
������� 	������ � � 	�,�	�� %	��� ���� +� � �%� +����� � � +��
���� ��	����
� ������ � �
����� ,	�,	� � 
� ,	�� �%� ���� 29..?.2� �
������ ,	��� �	�� � � 
��� ���� ���� �,����
� %�	�
���	�
���������������%�%��
�� ���	��
:�
�
6��� �,����
�� �,����
� ���
�
�� ����� ���� 	�
)� 

�

����� � � �%%���	� ,	�%�		� � �,������
��	��
��������������	�,�	��
�%�����
&�
�
� �,'$0%�	�

6��,,	�����������	�
�����
%��
�
�	������� � ��������
	�,�	��

�,'$0%���
6��,,	����� �%%�	����
,�	����������	�
�:�

�,'$0%�5�
6�� ����������� �
	����������*�
�����
%��
�� ���	��
:�

� �����
� 6��
��,���������
�%�	�
���	�
� �%���	�����������
��
	��������%��
������,��������
�����
:�
�
6������	�
�����,�
������	���
%��
�	� ���
������������<
�

��
� ���%����
�
�	���������

��
����������������
��
	��������,�
������	���%��
�
%%�	 �������,	� ����
����
,	�����
����	�,	��� �	
:�
�

6��
��,�����,����������
����
�%�	���	���	�
���	�
�����	��������%�
�����	�
���%��	���	�
����2:8I��
�
,,	��� :�

6��
��,��������� �
�������,	����
���	�
�
�%�	�
��
����	
:�

��
 �����
� �������	�
�����%��
��
���)����
��������,�,��	������
��
����	
:�

������	�
�����%��
�
���������
	������� � �
�������
���)�������
,	������,�,��	������
��
����	
:�
�

-���,,�	����������
	�
��  �������
	���������	�����
%��
�� ���	��
:�

#�
)
� 6��	���
����
��	�
)�����
��
����	
����������
���������
���

�
�	����
��%�%��
�	������
����:�
�
+�����	����� ���������	� �

���
���	��%��
�� ���	��
�
	�����,	�����������	�
��	������������	����
:�

6��	���
����
��	�
)�
������
����	
������
����
������������

�

�	����
��%�%��
�	��
��������:�
�
6��	���
��	�
)�����
�������		�����������
�����
������%���������
������ ��%�%��
�	��
,�	����� �����������
����:�
�

6��
��,�����
���	�
�
�����
 �%%�������
��%�

���	�����������
�� ������������
�����  �������
�������� �

����
�	��
	�;��	� :�

�
6����%%���	�,	�%�		� ��,������
�$,�����.:��6��
��,���������
�%�	����	�
� �	�����������
��
	��������%��
���%%�	 ����� ����,�������������
:�
�

Page 81



�������� 	������������
		�
�

���������	�!�		�,	�,�
� ��
���� � �������������	��
���	��&'�
�
B6�������	������� ����
��
�
��������������	�,�	������,,	��� :D�
�
���������	
���������� &'�
�
#
���+
�!������!�� ,�
�
�.�� 6��� ���� +����� 5� ��	������ +��
���� %��
� ��� �,,�� �*� .� �%� ���� 	�,�	�� ���

���	�
� � ��� 2:89I� ���%������� 
��@���� ���  ��� ���� ,�
�� ����	��� %��
� 
� ,�	�
	������� ����
�2��4�� �8:�

�
�2�� 6��� ���� ��		���� %��
� %�	� 	� ���� � � ��
���� �	������
� � � ���	��� ,�
�� ����	���

	��
�������	�
� ����.9I�
�
�����������,,�� �*�.��	��������/9I� �
�����
����
;���%������
�
��%��
�� 	�
�� %�	� ���
�� ��� 	����,���%���������6*�� ?�	�+��
����
����%��:�

�
�4�� 6��� ��	��
� 	�� ���	� ��� � �� ���� 
�� 	 � 	� ���?��
���� �	������� 	��� %�	�

 ��
�	����
��
��������	��������	�������
�
����	����,�����
�������,�
������	���
�%%���	
�	����������,�
���������,	��� ���	����,������	������
:�

�
�8�� 6��� � ��	��� �
� ���	� ��� � %�	� �� � ���� �	������
� �� ���� 
�� 	 � ��
����

�	�������	���,��
������ ���
�������	���	���%�	����	��
��
�;��������,������	�
,	�����	� 	�;��	� � ��� %���
��� �	�������������/9I� �
�����
� ���;���%������
�
�
%�	����
�����	����,���%���������6*�� ?�	�+��
��������%��:���

�
�/�� 6��� ���� %��
� � � ��	��
� %�	� ���� -�,����� ���� � � J����� ���� � (���	���

0	 ��� 	�� ���� ���	�
� � %�	� 29..?.2� � � ���� ���� ��
�� �%� � ,�	��
� � �	���
����� �
������*���
����#������%���	��:�

�
�H�� 6��� ���� ��		���� ��
�
� �%� ����	��� ,�;��
� ��� ���� -�,����� ���� 	�� 	��

	� ��� ����/9I:�
�
�7�� 6��������%����%�F.7/:99�,��
�A�6�������	� ��� �%�	���� �� ���	���,�;��
:�
�
�G�� 6��������%����%�F299:99�,��
�A�6�������	� ��� �%�	�����	�����	���,�;��
:�
�
�1�� 6��������%����%�F89:99�,��
�A�6�������	� ��� �%�	�������������� �	�'���� ����

�%��*�
������� �
������	 ����%�	�����	����,�;��
�������
���� ���
�	�,�����
�
�	�;��	� :�

�
�.9�� 6��� ���� %��
� ��� ���	� ��� � %�	� ,	����� ���	� 
�,,���
� 	�
)� 

�

������

����
��������� 
�,������ ���
�
� � � �	������ �%� ����	�
����
� 
�  ����� � ���
�,,�� �*�.��%�����	�,�	�:�

�
�
�77$-&)/�)&/,0%/$#.&�70)�&77&-'$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
+� ��%�+������ �+��
������	����
�
�
�&"/0%/�70)�("9$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�

Page 82



�������� 	������������
		�
�

6���  ���
���� ����� ������� ������� ����
�� 	�������� %��
� �� %%�	 ���� � � ���,��������
�����
:��

� �
�6� ������������:���<���������������� ������������������������

������������������
�
� !�"#$%&'��&(#&)�*$'+��,&-$".��&/,0%/$#$.$'1��02%-$..0)��"%3+0)%4�

�
������� 	������ � � 	�,�	�� %	��� ���� ��,���� ����%� �*�������� � � +� � �%� ��������
��	����
� ���,	��� �� ��%�	��������� ����,������ %	����	)�� � ���
���� ����,�
������ %�	�
��		����� � %���	����	
�� ��� ��%�	��������<
��� ����,	�,�
�
�� � �������� ��� ����)��
%����	������� ����
���������������	��	 ������������6*������
�%�	�29..?.2:�
�
6��� �,����
�� �,����
� ���
�
�� ����� ���� 	�
)� 

�

����� � � �%%���	� ,	�%�		� � �,������
��	��
��������������	�,�	��
�%�����
&�
�
$,����
���	�� �,�� ������	����������(����	
<�����
����
,�� ����,	��	����
������ �
���
����������6*� �����
:� ��
�
������ %�����,����
����
�
����� ����������� �	�)���
����� ��� ���	������ ,	�,�
�
���	�� )����� � � ��� 
���� � ��� ���� � ����$%%���	
����
	�;��	����	�����������	 �	���� �����
:��$��������,����
���	������������ ��������������	:�

�
�� #��	 ������������6*���	���
��,����
���	��
���������
�������G��%�����	�,�	�:��

C�� ���
� �	���� ���
��� (����	
� 
���� � ���� 	��	 � ��� ���� ��,��� ��� 
�	�����
 �����	��� ������� � ����)��
����
��	�,	��� �� %�	��	������ ���� ��,������ %���	��
��	
�� �������)������ ��%��,,���:��

�
�� =����	��	 �������
� �	�����	� �����,����
����
�� ��	������,����
����,	� ����

��� �����������������,	�%�		� ���������6*������
�����,	�,�
�
�,���%�	�	 ����
������� 
���� � ��� ���
� �	� � ����
� �� ����  �����,����� �%� ,	��	����
� � � ���
�������%�����,���������
�������:����,�
�
�
���� ������	���������������� ����
��� �����	� ��	�� ,�
������� ������ ���� %�	���	� 	� ������
� ��� 	������� %�� ���� 	��
�*,���� ����%���	����������������0���	�����<
��,�� ����#�����:�
�

�� =����	��	 ��������
�%�	�������������,����
���	��,	�
���� :�
�
K� �	��������
������������������
�	�;��	� ����,���%�	�	 ��� ����,	�,�
�
�%�	��������<
�
���
� �	������ ��� ����� %�	� ����� ��� ��� 	�%�		� � ��)� 
� ,,	�,	���:� � 6��
� �
� ����
	������� ����
�	��	�;��	� ����%�� ��������������������������������	�	���,	��	��������
������� ���������������(	��:�
�
$%%���	�,	�%�		� ��,����
���	��	�%����� ��������	������� ����
�����	��,,	�,	���:�
�
6���,	���
�����������������
�����������	� �����*,���� �������� ���� ������������
�����
%�� �
����%�������	������	�%�� ����	� ������
E����
����������
�����������*,�������
�
���� 
��%�� � ��� 	�����������
:� � 6����������� � � ����� 
����

%��� ��� ����������@�	�
�� ����	� ������
�� ����	�%�	���������
��	�'��	��������������<
�	�������,	�
,���
����
����
�������� ����������� ������������	���	����
������������	���)� E��������������
�%��������������������<
��� ��������� �29..?.2���� �����	� ��
���	,�	���,	��	����
�
�����
	����� :��=����	��	 �����,���������)���	�
)
�
���������	� �������,��������� �
��
�� �
	������� ���
���
����
���� �	�����	�����
�����
:�
�
���������	������	��,	�,�
� ��
���� � �������������	��		�&'�

Page 83



�������� 	������������
		�
�

�
B6�������	������� ����
��
�
��������������	�,�	������,,	��� :D�
�
�������%���� ������������
����,�� �
��%	��� ������ ����������������	�� �

���� �	��%������	������,	�,�
����������������	��
���	���,	�,�
� &�
�
B6���	������� �����4����	���
� �� �������	 
�L,	���	
��,���	)������������
��	��
������� �������� � <� ��� ��
�	�� � �������� L����� ���� ��
�
� ������ %�� � � %	��<� � �
L��������
����
��	� ��,,	��� ���� �����,���������� ���:<��
�
�������%������ ��������	������� �����7�����������	�#����
���,	�,�
� &�
�
B6���	������� �����7������� � ��������� ���������	��������� ����������������%�� �
�	��
�������
� ���� ��
�� �����������
�����F/99!:�
�
+�����	������
����� ��������	���
����
���� �	��������,	�,�
��� �����
����	�%�	��
 ���	� ���
�:�
�
��� ��� �%� �� ��� ����� ��� 	������� ����� 1�� ������ �
� ���,�� � 
� � %	��� ���
��� �������� ��������	�� �
���� �	��%� �����	������,	�,�
����������������	�����	��
,	�,�
� &�
�
B6��� ����	�������� ���	 
� ��� 
��	�%��� ��� %�� ���� �%�"��$<
� ���   � � ��� �����	�����
�,����
�� �,	�,�
�
�����,,�� �*��:D�
�
�������%��%�	���	���� ��������	������� �����1���������
����,�� �
��%	��� ���
��� �������� ��������	�� �
���� �	��%� �����	������,	�,�
����������������	��������	�
,	�,�
� &�
�
B6���
,�� ����
����,����
����  � �����,����
�����,,�� �*��:D�
�
�������%��%�	���	���� ��������	������� �����1�����������	�#����
���,	�,�
� &�
�
B6���FH9!����  � ���������	������,����
�� �,	�,�
�
�����,,�� �*���%�	� �����,����
��	�,	)����"	���������	�����(�	�����:D�
�
+�����	������
����� ��������	���
����
���� �	��������,	�,�
��� �����
����	�%�	��
 ���	� ���
�:�
�
�������%��%�	���	���� ��������	������� �����1�����������	�#����
���,	�,�
� &�
�
B6���������� �%�	�����#�����	�����6������;��
����� ����������%�,	���	
��,���	)����
� ����
����
�%	���	������������#�����	�����6���
���	������,������ �,	�,�
��
����
� ����%�� �  �����������	����������%�	��������%%���	
:D�
�
+�����	������
����� ��������	���
����
���� �	��������,	�,�
��� �����
����	�%�	��
 ���	� ���
�:�
�
(����	
���������� ���������	��������������
���� � :�
�
�
�

Page 84



�������� 	������������
		�
�

#
���+
�!������!�� ,�
�
�.�� 6��������������
�����,	���
�����,	��	����
�
��	�� �������������������������

-������	�29.9�� ��������
��	������	������� � ����%��������������� �����,�
����,������%	����	)�%�	�������	�����	�,�	�� �%	���29..����29.8��
�%�����
&���

M� ���������#�����	�����N����	�����
��� �A�
���	���������
M� �������������N�"	��	���
����	� �����������������<
����	�����
�
�� ����	�
����

�������
M� ������	��	�
,��
��������
�N�%��%�����������
����	���������
�����	�� ����
�'�%���
�

���)��,��������
�	���
������� �
%��
M� "	���	
��,� ��	)���� � � ���������� �� �	
��,� N� ��	)���� ����� ,	���	
� ���

	� ������
�
���)���%%��������
�� ��	����	�
������������������� �
�	����
M� 6���������� ����
� ���� �����
���� ��� ,	������ ������
�� �����	���� ��� ��	� 
�������


���� ��
��������	� �����	��
���	����������	�,	��	����
�

�2�� 6����������������	�����������	����,	���	
��,���	)���������� ������	)�	����������
�������
��	���
�	�����������	������"	���	
��,������	 �	����,	������)���
�	����
�
� �,	��� ���
��������	,�	���,,	�������,	���	
��,���	)���:�

�4�� 6��� ����  ���
���� ��� ���� 	�� %	��� ���� �	������� ����� ���
��	�� �������
�������� �������� ��������������,���
���� ����	� ����%� ��� 	�
��� � �� � ����
���
��	�������������� ��������
� �������� ����,���
��������%��%����
��	��
������� �������� ����� ���� ��
�
� ������ %�� � � %	��� ,	���	
��,� ��	)���� �����
���
��	������������������ ���������
����
��	� ��,,	��� ���� �����,����
������ ���:�

�
�8�� 6��� ������� ,,	���
� ����  	%�� 29.9?..� #���
� � �� ���� �%� F24:H.H(� %�	�

	�%�		�������������������������������� �	�
,�� �����%�F.:.28(��������	�
%�		� �
����������
:�

�
�/�� 6��� ������� ,,	���
� ���� 	�

�

����� �%� ����	� �	�	)� � 	�
�	��
� � �

,	���
���
�
�
����������
�������8��%�����	�,�	��� ��������,	����,����%���	��
�	,��
�
�����
� ��� �
� � ��� 
�,,�	�� ����
�� ��� 
��� 
�����
�� 
��@���� ��� ���
� ������
���
� �	� � ��� �������� ���  ��� ���	
�� 
� ,	�� �%� ���� (� ���� 6�	�� ��������
��	����:�

�
�H�� 6��� ������� ����
� ���� ,�
������ 	��	 ���� ���� ����� 0���	������ �������

������������ ��,,������������	������,	�
,���
�%�	�%���	����	
:�
�
�7�� 6���
��@�������������������������������
�����	�
������� 	%��29..?.2�0���	��

��� �#��������� �����%�F2.:44.(��� � ���� �� �������
,�� ����,	�@������
��%�
F2.:4./(�%�	�29.2?.4�� �F22:987(�%�	�29.4?.8���*��� ����
����
�� ��	�����
�,����
:�

�G�� 6��������������
����� 	%���,��������
������,�
������%	���29.9?..����	 
:�
�
�1�� 6�������������
� �	
����� 	%���� ������%�	������� ��,����
�
�
��������������

	�,�	����������*���%���
�,	�,�
� � 	%��,	��	����
�� &�
�

�� 	������� 
� ��� �������� ���� ����� �������� 6*� 	��
� ��� %	�3��� %�	� 29..?.2��

��@���� ��� 0���	������ ���%�	����� �������� 6*� �	��3�� 0	��� ������������
��;������������2:/I��*����	�
��E�

�

Page 85



�������� 	������������
		�
�

�� 	������� 
�����
,�� ����
����,����
�� �����	�����������	 
����
��	�%������
%�� �����%�"��$<
����  � � ��� ����,	�%�		� �
����
�� ��	������,����
�������
���
�	,��
�	�
��	��
����29..?.2��������	�
%�		� ������#������������
��� �

�
�� 	�%�	
������, �� ��� ������%�	���������%�	��������<
�����������
� �	����:�

�
�77$-&)/�)&/,0%/$#.&�70)�&77&-'$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
��,��������%��*��������
+� ��%�����������	����
�
�
�&"/0%/�70)�("9$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
K� �	��������
���������������� �
�	�;��	� ����,���%�	�	 �,������%	����	)�� ��� ����
,	�,�
�
�%�	��������<
����
� �	�������������%�	������������	�%�		� ���)�
�,,	�,	���:��
6��� ���
�����������
�	�� ���� ����,������� ��� ����,	�,�
�
�	�� %� � ����� ������������
��������������	�	���,	��	������ ���������������(	��:�
��

�=� �
		;	���������������������������� �������������������������
�����������

�
� !�"#$%&'��&(#&)�*$'+��,&-$".��&/,0%/$#$.$'1��02%-$..0)��&))4�

�
������� 	������ � � 	�,�	�� %	��� ���� +� � �%� +����� � � +��
���� � � ���� +� � �%�
����������	����
��������, �� �����+��
����#����������������+#���	���
� ��� ����
,�
������%�	�������		������	�� �
�����������	������� � ��� ����%�	�29..?.2�� �%���	��
��	
:� � C�� �
�� 
��� ���� ���� �, �� � �,���� "	��	���� %�	� 29.9?..� � � � ,	�,�
� �
,	��	�������29./?.H:�
�
6��� �,����
�� �,����
� ���
�
�� ����� ���� 	�
)� 

�

����� � � �%%���	� ,	�%�		� � �,������
��	��
��������������	�,�	��
�%�����
&�
�
=���� 	��	 � ��� ����#���
� ��� ����� ������� ���� � ���
� �	� ����	� ,	�,�
�
� �������
��%�����������#���
� ��� ����%�	�������	�� ������������	������������
:�
�
6�����
��������
��,����
�����������	�
,�����%�����29..?.2�	�������	�
��	����&�
�
��� ����������	������
����	������FH8:29��:�:������	�
���%�H:1I�
�,	�,�
� ����

,	�	,��4:4:.:��6��
��
��	����������������������0���	�����<
�0�� ������#����
���	�
�:�6�������%����%����
��,��������� �����������������	�������� ������������
����� ���� 0���	�����<
� ,	�,�
�
� ��� ������� �����	������ ����� ��� ��������
%������� ��,�������
��������+#�:��=���
�����
����	�
�����,,�	��	�������
�
�
� ����� ����
�� ��		������� ��	��� �������� ���
���� 	���
� 	�� ������ ���
�� �%�
����	�
��������
����,	��� �	
:�

�
���� ���� ���� 	���� ���	�
�� �� ��������� ������ �%� /:.I� ������ ����#"C� ��%������ �%�

8:HI�O:9/I:��6��
����� ��������������	���	�����%�FH4:.2������������ �
	�
����������

��%���������%�F2.9!������
����	������
�%�	�%���	����	
:��=����
��� ����	� ���,��
����� %���	
� %	��� ���� 0���	������ ��� �%%
��� ���� ��

� �%�
�������� ���� 
��	�%��� ���� � ���� ��� ������� %	��� 
����
� ������� ���� +#�� �	�
%�� � � %	��� #�
�	��
:� � 6��
� �,����� ���� � �
�� ���
� �	����  ���� ����
�����	���������������������	�������� � ��
�����
�,,�	��
�
�����������%�����

Page 86



�������� 	������������
		�
�

+#��������������	���	�:�
�

6����,����
�������� ��� 	�
,�����%� ������������ �������%�+#�������
�	�� ���
��� ����
��������F4/9�999������������������ ������%�������������./.�$%%���	���	���� �,��� �%%�	����
�����:������ �(����	
�����
������ ������,�� ���� �������� ���� �������%������
�� �����
���
� 
���� � ��� 	���	 � � %�	����� ��� ���� ������
� �%� ���� ��������� � � ���� � ����
��,�������
�%�	������������<
�%�������
�� �����
�

�

� ������
��*��	���� ���	
:���
�
6��� �,����
� ������� ��� 	�
,���� �%� ���� 	������� �� ���� ,	�@������
� � � 

��� � 	����
�����
�%�	�29.2?.4����29.4?.8�	�����	������� ����
��
�
���������	� ������
� �	�����	�
,	�,�
�
�%�	�����	,�	����:��C��
���� �������� ������%�������� ��� �
�������	������	����
�����
�%�	�29..?.2��	�%���	����	
<�����
������ ����	������� ����,	�@������
:�
�
6����,����
�����������	�
,�����%������,����"	��	����	�&�
�
��� 6��,,	��������,	��	�������%��������������%��������
�
������E�
�
���� 6�� ����	,�	��� ����	� ���	�
�
� �	� 	� ������
� ��� ���� ,	��	����� ������������������

,,	�,	����
��	��
��%�%�� ����������� ����%�� :�
�
����	�
)
������ ����������������� � �,�� ���	����������������
�	�
�(����	
�
,	�,�
� ��� �����	� ��,���������������������
����
�	������ ���
������
:� ��
�
������
%�����,����
����
�
����� ����������� �	�)��������������	������,	�,�
�
�	��)����:��
C�� 
���� � ��� ���� � ����$%%���	
���� 	�;��	����	�� ����� ��� �	 �	� ���  �� ���
:� �6��� 	�
)
�
����� � ��� ���� ,	���
����� ���	�� �%� ��		���� 
��
� ��  ���	�������
� ����� ������� �
��	�����%���	��	�,�	�����		�������
��
�
��������������	�,�	�:�

�
6���$%%���	�"	�%�		� ��,����
�	����&�
�

�� ,,	��������29.9?..�	���
� �#��������� ����
�
������E�
�� ,,	��������,	���
���
��	�
�	��
�� ������
�,�
�����
�
�
������E�
�� 
����H:1I����	�
�������	���	���
��� ����,,	�������� 	%��	�������� �

�,���� �� ���
� 
� 
��� ���� ��� ���� ,,�� ���
�� %�	� 	�%�		�� ��� ��� �������� 
�
,,	�,	���:�

�
6��
��	��
�	�%����� ��������(����	�	������� ����
:�
�
���������	�!�		�,	�,�
� ��
���� � �������������	��
���	��&'�
�
B6�������	������� ����
��
�
��������������	�,�	������,,	��� :D�
�
���������	
���������� &'�
�
#
���+
,�
�
�4� �
��
��� ���!�	������� .��������� /
���� ��������� ��� #�������'� +��
� ���
��+�!���$��
��
������!�	�������*��� ����0�
�	�
�'�+��
������������$��
��
���
���!�	�������*�����
����*� ����'��������
%'�
�
�.�� 6��� ����+��
����#���������������#���
� ��� ���� %�	�29.9?..��
�
���������

�,,�� �*�������	������� � ������������%�	�,,	���:�
�

Page 87



�������� 	������������
		�
�

�2�� 6��� ���� +��
���� #������� �������� �� ���� %�	� 29..?.2� �
�� 
� 
��� ���� ��
�,,�� �*�������	������� � ������������%�	�,,	���:��

�
�4�� 6����������	������� 
�����������������������������������%�+#���������� �

�����
����	����� ���F4/9�999�%	���9.��,	���29..��� ���������������������
#�
�	��
�� ������
�������� �� �	�%�		� ������������%�	���%�	�����:�

�
�8�� 6�����	��������������
���� 	���
� %�	� ������	������������9.��,	���29..����


�����FH8:29��	�,	�
������������	�
���%�H:1I:�
�
�/�� 6�����,	�
�����%���	����	��� ����,	�@������
�

������	���	�������	�
�
��%�

8:78I� %�	� 29.2?.4� � � 8:7.I� %�	� 29.4?.8� ��� ����� ����� ���� ��		���� ���
� ��
����	���������� �����	�
��������� ����,	�@������
��
��
�
����������,,�� �*���
���	�%�		� ���������������%�	�,,	���:���

�
�H�� 6��������,����"	��	����
�
����������,,�� �*������	�%�		� ���������������

%�	�,,	���:�
�
�7�� 6��������������
� ���� ����,	�,�
� � 	��������� ���
�� ��,����,	��	����

� ������	�%�		� ����������
�	����=� ��6����
���	���� ���������

��
�	�
����
� ������%� ���)���	������������������:�

�
�77$-&)/�)&/,0%/$#.&�70)�&77&-'$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
+� ��%�+��
����� �+�������	����
�
+� ��%�����������	����
�
�
�&"/0%/�70)�("9$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
6����������� �
� 	�;��	� � �� �	� 
�����	�� ,	���
���
� ���������� � 
�,	��� 	���'%���� �
�������%�	�����	�
�����
�	��������������,	���
�����%����������	�������
�����)�����
�
����+��
����#����������������+#��:� �6��
�����	
���������������� ����������
�%� �����������<
����
����
���):� � C�� �
� ���	�%�	������

	�� ���,	�,	��
�,	��� 	�������
� � �,���� �� ���
� %�	� ���� +#�� ���� ��	�� � � ��� 
��� ���� ������ �%� ���
���� 	���
� ���

�%%������� ����� %�	� ���� 
�����	�� ������� �%� 	���� �	�����
� ��� ��� �

�� � ��� �����
� ��� 9.�
(	��:� � 6���  ���
���� ��
�	�
� ����  � ����� ����� ��� ���� � � ����� ������ � ����� �
�� ����� �%�����%����� ��,����"	��	����%�	�	�%�		���������������:��

� �
�>� ���������� ����������������
�
� !�"#$%&'��&(#&)�*$'+��,&-$".��&/,0%/$#$.$'1��02%-$..0)��"%3+0)%4�

�
�������	������ ��	�,�	��%	�����������%��*�������������	��	 ��������,	��	�

�� �����
 �����,�����
�	� �
�	����
�,	��	����%�	�������������
�	�;��
�� �
���������%	���
������	,�	��� "�	%�	�����(�����	����#�,�	��P�	��	� .� 29.9�� � � %�	���	� ��� ���� �
��
,	��	�

�	�,�	��,	�
���� ������������������/�$�����	�29.9:�
�
6��� �,����
�� �,����
� ���
�
�� ����� ���� 	�
)� 

�

����� � � �%%���	� ,	�%�		� � �,������
��	��
��������������	�,�	��
�%�����
&�
�
�,'$0%�	��
6�� ����� ���� ,	��	�

� ������ � �� ��� 	�
,���� �%� ���� 
�	����� 	�
� � ����%�� � ��� ����

Page 88



�������� 	������������
		�
�

�,,�� �*� � � ��� 	������� 	�,�	�
� ��)� ��� ������� 
� ,,	�,	���� ��� ��
�	�� ���� ���

�	�������,	�������
�� ��%%��������
�	�����
� �	� �
�,	���%������� �����*�	��
����

�
�,'$0%���
6�� ����� ���� ,	��	�

� ������ � �� ��� 	�
,���� �%� ���� 
�	����� 	�
� � ����%�� � ��� ����
�,,�� �*:��
�
���������	������	��,	�,�
� ��
���� � �������������	��
���	��&'�
�
B6�������	������� ����
��
�
��������������	�,�	������,,	��� :D�
�
���������	
���������� &'�
�
#
���+
�!������!�� ,�
�
�.�� 6��� ������� ����� ���� ,	��	�

� � �� ���  �����,���� � ��	� � ��	����
�

"	��	����%�	��������������
��������� �
��,	��	�

�	�,�	��,	�
���� �����������
�������/�$�����	�29.9:�

�
�2�� 6��� �%%���	
� ��������� ���  �����,� 
�	� � 
�	����� ,	���	
��,� �,,�	�������
� %�	�

���������
�	�������,	�������
�� ��%%��������
���������������	�,�	�������)�
�
 ���	���� �������������������,	�,�
�
����������
� �	� �
�,	���%������� ����
�*�	��
�:�

�
�77$-&)/�)&/,0%/$#.&�70)�&77&-'$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
����%��*��������
�
�&"/0%/�70)�("9$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
6��� �%%��������
�  �����	� � %	���  �����,���� � 
�	� � 
�	����� ,	��	���� ����� �	�����


�
�������������������������
��%������������<
�
����
�� ��%%��������,	��	����� �
�	���
� ����� � � ��� ���� (� ���� 6�	�� �������� ��	����� ����� ���� ���� �������� �
�,�	������%�������	�������������,���
:��C��������
��
�,,�	�������������<
���	,�	���"���
,	��	����
�%�	���	)�������
�������������	�,	���	��	���
����
���� �����	���,	��� �����%��
�
%�	��������
��	���
�	�������������:��

� �
��� ������������� �������������������������
�
� !�"#$%&'��&(#&)�*$'+��,&-$".��&/,0%/$#$.$'1��02%-$..0)��&))4�

�
�������	������ ��	�,�	��%	�������+� ��%������������������������
��)�������<
�
,,	�����%���%���	 ����� ���
�"������� �"	��� �	�:�
�
6��� �,����
�� �,����
� ���
�
�� ����� ���� 	�
)� 

�

����� � � �%%���	� ,	�%�		� � �,������
��	��
��������������	�,�	��
�%�����
&�
�
6��	����	����	����,����
�,	�
���� &�
�
�.�� �6���	������� 	%���%���	 ����A����	����� ���
�,������� �,	��� �	�:�
�
�2�� 6���	������� 	%��"������� �"	��� �	���������� ����
:�

Page 89



�������� 	������������
		�
�

�
�4��� 6�������	�����������,������� �,	��� �	��� ��������,������,�������	�
,����

�%������	���� ���
:��
�
6����%%���	�,	�%�		� ��,������
�$,�����.:�6��� 	%���%���	 ����� ���
�,�������
������
,������  �����,� � ��� ����� ����� ���
��	�� ������� �������� ��� ���� � � 	�,�	�����
,	��� �	�
:� C�� ,	��� �
� ��� ���� ��� 
�%%� ������� ����� ����� ������������ �����	����
 ���
�	��	 ��������� ����%��������%� �%%�	������,�
��%���
��� ��
��������� ���%������
���������	�
�	����������������	���� ���:��6���	���
� �,������� ���� ����,	��� �
�
������������������,� ��� ��� ��%�	������� �,	��� �	�
� ����	������

	�� ���%��%���� ����
�������<
�	�
,��
��������
:�
�
���������	�!�		�,	�,�
� ��
���� � �������������	��		�&'�
�
B6����������,,	��������,������� �,	��� �	��
�����������,,�� �*����%�����	�,�	��� �
����
�%%�� �(����	
�	��� ���	���%���������,�����:D�
�
���������	
���������� &'�
�
#
���+
�!������!�� ,�
�
6����������,,	��������,������� �,	��� �	��
�����������,,�� �*����%�����	�,�	��� �
����
�%%�� �(����	
�	��� ���	���%���������,�����:�
�
�77$-&)/�)&/,0%/$#.&�70)�&77&-'$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
+� ��%���������������������
�
�&"/0%/�70)�("9$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
6��� ���
���������,	��� ��������������������,���� �����%�	������� �,	��� �	�
�����	��
����

	�����%��%���������������<
�	�
,��
��������
:��

� �
�� ��� ��������������������������������
�
� !�"#$%&'��&(#&)�*$'+��,&-$".��&/,0%/$#$.$'1��02%-$..0)4�

�
������� 	������ � � 	�,�	�� %	��� ����+� � �%�0���	����� ��� ���
� �	� ���� %���	�� �%� ����
K����	
����
�����������
���0	��,:�
�
6��� �,����
�� �,����
� ���
�
�� ����� ���� 	�
)� 

�

����� � � �%%���	� ,	�%�		� � �,������
��	��
��������������	�,�	��
�%�����
&�
�
� �,'$0%�	���

��� �  ���� ����
K����	
����
� �������
���
���0	��,�

�,'$0%�����
6��������*�
�����		�������
�
� ��)�������� ����
�

� �����
� 6��
� ���� � ��� ���
���	 ���� ����� ����
���
���������� �	�)���
����� �����	
� �%� ����
�	��,:�

�
-��  �����
� ���� �����
� ����%�� �%�	����
��,����:�

Page 90



�������� 	������������
		�
�

��
 �����
� -���:��
������� ���
���0	��,
�


�
�� ������� ��� ����
 �
��	��� �%� �*��������
%�������
��������	� �����
	�� ,�	���� ���
��������
� � ���' ���
����
�)���� � � ��� ���
����� ������ � ���	 ����
��� ,�	,�
�:� 6��
��
���
���� �%�����������	��
	�� ����	� ������
�
�
%�	� ���
� �	���� ����	
�
�%� ������ ����	�
�� 
�� ���
���� � ,,�	� ���� ����
0	��,� �
� ��� �����	�
����

	�:�

6��
� ���� � ���� ��� ���
���	 ���� ����� ����
���
�������� �� �	�)��� �����
�����	
��%������	��,:�

#�
)
� -�� 	�
)
� ���� ����� � ����%�� � ����� �����	� ,	�,�
�:� �����
�,����
� ,	��� �� ��
� ��� ���
� �	� ����	
� �%� ������
����	�
�:��

�

6��	���
�����%%���	�,	�%�		� ��,����:�

�
���������	�#����
���,	�,�
� ��
���� � �������������	��		�&'�
�
B6�������K����	
����
�����������
���0	��,����
��� � ���:D�
�
���������	
���������� &'�
�
#
���+
,�
�
&��
��
��� ���!�	�������.���������*��� ��*�����
�� 0�
�	�
���/
���� ��������� ���
#�������'�+��
������+�!������1��
��
�����!�	������*� ����'�+��
��������%'�
�
�.�����������6�������K����	
����
�����������
���0	��,����
��� � ���:�
�
�
�77$-&)/�)&/,0%/$#.&�70)�&77&-'$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
+� ��%�0���	�����
�
�&"/0%/�70)�("9$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
6��	��,,�	� �����������
��
�
�����������	
��%�����K����	
����
�����������
���
0	��,���������0	��,��
���������	�	�;��	� ��
���
�%���������
���������	� ��������	�
�	��,
�� ���	)����	������
��,
:���

� �
��� ������������������
�
� !�"#$%&'��&(#&)�*$'+��,&-$".��&/,0%/$#$.$'1��02%-$..0)��"))14�

�

Page 91



�������� 	������������
		�
�

������� 	������ ����	���, ������ ������	)��%� �������
��	�(	)�������������
���
0	��,:�
�
���������	��		����%�	�� ������������������	�,�	��������,����
����� ����,	�
���� ����
�������������	�	�:�
�
#
���+
�!������!�� ,��
�
�.�� 6��������	���, ���������� :�
�
�77$-&)/�)&/,0%/$#.&�70)�&77&-'$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
��,��������%��*��������
+� ��%�"	�,�	�����	����
�
�
�&"/0%/�70)�("9$%3�'+&�8&-$/$0%��
�
6�����	�
��%�	�%�	������%��������
��	�(	)�������������
���0	��,�
��,�����	����	�
	�,�	�
����������:��

� �
� �

�
�

� ���	���
�

�6������������� � ���.:29�,:�:��
�
�

�%1�?2&)$&/�)&3")8$%3�'+&/&��$%2'&/<�,.&"/&�-0%'"-'�
�$@��"'&/0%<��&(0-)"'$-��&)A$-&/���'&.&,+0%&�!
	=�64�=�
6��0)�&("$.�

&#"'&/0%B."%-"/'&)�30A�29�
�
�
���������������������������<��	������������
		����
�
������� ������������������������������������������������������������������
������<�5	������������
		����
�
�

�

Page 92


	Agenda
	7 LEADER'S REPORT
	8 Budget & Policy Framework Update 2011/12
	App A Council Tax Projection Council 020211.pdf
	App B Savings and Growth Proposals Council 020211.pdf
	App C Gross GF Capital Prog Council 020211.pdf
	App D HRA.pdf
	APP E(1) HRA Reserves and Provisions .pdf
	APP E(2) HRA Statement Reserves Council 020211.pdf
	APP F HRA Capital Prog.pdf
	App G Tenants Forum Council 020211.pdf

	9 Notice of Motion - Reduction in Number of Councillors
	10 Members' Allowances Scheme - Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel
	currentscheme2010
	IRP report 200111.doc
	IRPreportappendices.pdf

	13 MINUTES OF CABINET
	Minutes Public Pack, 18/01/2011 Cabinet


